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“2012/13 WAS A RECORD-BREAKING YEAR FOR THE GROUP
AND FOR BRITISH SPORT. WE ARE PLEASED THAT BOTH
HAVE CONTINUED TO BE SUCCESSFUL THIS YEAR AND THAT
OUR STRATEGY OF BEING THE CONSUMERS' CHAMPION
CONTINUES TO REAP REWARDS.

“Our colleagues have worked hard throughout the year and, as a result,
we have exceeded the second underlying EBITDA target of £250m set
under the 2011 Employee Bonus Share Schems and the stretch target of
£270m This means the Group has successfully met the first two targets
while there remain two more years to go under the 2011 Employee Bonus
Share Scheme

“There 1s no doubt that the Group's record-breaking results were in the
large part down to our colleagues and thesr hard work The Employes
Bonus Share Schemes have continued to drive this performance and

we are pleased that sligible employses will be rewarded in August as the
second and final part of the 2009 Employes Bonus Share Scheme vests

“Trading since the penod end has remawned strong and 15 ahsad of
management’s expectattons for the first quarter Whilst 2013 1s a
non-toumament year, there 1s no doubt that our compelling offer of
exceptional quality and unbeatable value continues to resonate well
with our customers ”

Dave Forsey
Chief Executive

18 July 2013




KEY HIGHLIGHTS

Group revenue Reported profit before tax

£2,186m  £20/.2m

Up 20.9% Up 40.0%

Underlying EBITDA Raported earnings per share

£287.9m  26.64p

Up 22.1% Up 46.1%

= Strong growth in online revenue of 52 1% - now

representing 15 0% of Total Sports Retail sales (FY12 11 6%)

* Underlying free cash generation of £245 6m

* Accelerated European expansion including post year end

acquistitions in Austna and the Battic region

* Investment in inventory and strategic acquisitions while

maintaining a strong balance sheet

+ Shirebrook National Distribution Centre Phase 2 completed,

however further enhancements underway

* First part of 2009 Employee Bonus Share Scheme vested in

August 2012

¢+ Second and final part of 2009 Employee Bonus Share
Scheme vesting i August 2013




WHO WE ARE

SPORTS DIRECT IS THE UK'S LEADING SPORTS RETAILER BY REVENUE AND
OPERATING PROFIT, AND THE OWNER OF A SIGNIFICANT NUMBER OF
WORLD-FAMOUS SPORT, FASHION AND LIFESTYLE BRANDS.

We provide a full multi-channe! approach to the UK and European Retaill markets Our strategy includes identifying
opportunities for improvement through in-store specialist collaborations and acqusittons, developing
online opportunities and leveraging the SPORTSDIRECT com fascia

The Group continues to enhance Its store portfolio and now operates
out of over 500 stores in the UK and internationally
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SPORTS DIRECT AT A GLANCE

THE GROUP OPERATES THROUGH FOUR STRATEGIC BUSINESS SEGMENTS: UK SPORTS RETAIL,
INTERNATIONAL RETAIL, PREMIUM LIFESTYLE AND BRANDS.

UK SPORTS RETAIL

£1 P 57 5 m 75% of total revenue

The Group's UK stores (other than Field & Trek) supply a wade range of competitively priced sports and
letsure equipment, clothing, footwear and accessones under 2 mix of brands We stock third-party
brands including adidas, Nike, Reebok and Puma Group-owned brands inchide Dunlop, Slazenger end
Lonsdale We also sell kcensed-in brands

As at 28 Apnl 2013 UK Sports Retail operated out of 396 stores in the United Kingdom {exctuding
Northern Ireland) The majonty of stores trade under the SPORTSDIRECT com fascia, although Field &
Trek stores trade under their own fascia

We have continued to develop our specizlised in-store areas with a substantia! unitary roflout for our
Duniop and Evertast brands Our SheRunsHeRuns areas also benefited from a rollout of the Kammor
runring footwear zone, teatunng an integrated product information and selection panel

The Group s extensive interests outside the UK include wholly
INIEHNAIIUNAL HHA"' owned retail outlets, joint ventures wath other retatlers and
stores within another retailer’s store Dunng the Year, as
f ] 8 5 m part of the accelerated growth programme in our European
subsidiary, we opened 19 new steres n Europe and entered

four new countnes, including a new store in lcetand with a
9% of total revenue joint venture partner and wholly owned stores in Slovakia,
Hungary and the Czech Repubiic Our strategy remains to
dentify partners n new termtones while conbinuing to expand
our operations in the countnes where we currently trade

PH[M"]M I.“:EST“.E Dunng the year we have continuad our expansion of the
Premium Lifestyle division In July 2012 we purchased The
Flannels Group, and in February 2013, 114 stores and certan
m assets were acqured from the admentstrators of the fashion
retailer Republic Both acquisitions expand the breadth of our
prermum offenng Post year end we hava also acquired the
6% of total revenue remaming 20% stake in Cruise Clothing Limited
HHANDS The Group’s portiohio includes a wide vanety of word-famous
sport, fashion and Ifestyle brands The Group’s Retail division
sells products under these Group brands i its stores, and the
m Brands dmston exploits the brands through its wholesate
and licensing businesses
10% of total revenue The Brands diviston continues to sponsor a variety of

prestigious events and retains a base of globally-recognised,
hegh-profite sportsmen and women




OUR BUSINESS MODEL

Our business model 1s focused on leng-term sustamable growth Whilst the central focus remams on growing and developing the
core UK Retall business, development of our brands and Intemational Retal! are also key pnonties Our offenng has developed further
n specialist sports categones and more fashion-based retalling We are constantfy refurbishing and upgrading our stores, in order
to provide our customers with a compefling consumer expenence The continued development of our dedicated specialist areas and
on-going collaboration with Nike, adidas and Puma on in-store concepts are further examples of this

Acquisitions and strategic investments in related businesses am an important
part of our stretegy Opportunities to develop into new product categones or
markets, or to strengthen our position in existing areas, will continue to be
considered on a case by case basis

We aim to maintain cur pasition as the market leader in the UK Sports Retaill
sector The business model provides guidance for the Group to implement an
effectve growth strategy to maintain and develop the success achieved so far
it compares our recent successes with our future ambrhions in order that we can
assess how to progress in the future

Tha Group has significant momentum and we must ensure that our product

offenng and customer proposion continue to grow and develap in order to retain
our cumrent customer base and to attract more customers in the future

¢ HHOUPS

DR GIRIESS

IDEMTIFY
INVEST
DEVELOP (WebsitalandlmCommerce | ..
PROMOTE T — m——

ACHIEVE

atgetsfandlGrotipfSuiceess]

Developing brend awareness 1s a key factor in ensurning a sustainable future, and
the appropnate level of investment in advertising and technology 1s an important
component towards achieving this

Our intemational presence continues to grow through over 300 brend licensing
partners, our onhne presence and on-going European store openings The Group's
appointment of mtemationally recognised cedebrities and sporting professionals
as key ambassadors also promotes our brands endorsement on a global basis




GROUP BRANDS
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COLLECTION

LEE WESTWOOD

Duntop Brand Ambassador LEEWESTWOOU ENDORSES DUNLOP CLOTHING DHIY
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CARL FROCH

IBF and WBA Super-Middteweight Champion

Lonsdlale Brand Ambassadar

\
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GROUP BRANDS

Fashion & Lifestyle
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I am pleased to announce that the Group has continued to perform strongly, both operationally and financially
The rate of growth has increased across the business with revenue and EBITDA growing impressvely

The Group has delivered strong cash generation and our balance sheet remains
solid Our postion as the Consumers’ Champion, offenng an unmatched range

of products at the best avarlable pnces, is now reaching more countries as we
continue to expand intemationally

We are constantly looking for new ways of improving our business We mvest
heawily in staff training to help them achieve thewr full potential Our in-house
programmes have continued in conjunchion with our key partners Niks, adidas
and Puma We focus on both shop floor-based and classroom activities

They include key elements of professionalism such as product knowledge,
commurucation, leadership and decision making The integration of a bespoke
online training platform, ta provide new starters with a thorough induction to the
busmness, s one example of Innovative traning techniques deployed throughout
the Group

We are pleased that construction and ntegration of the Phase 2 extension to
the Shirebrook Distribution Centre has been completed, and the extension to
the Sportsdirect com store at Shirebrook 1s now underway and completion 15
scheduled for tater m 2013

Qur Premium Lifestyle dvision 1s continuing to grow through acquisitions
such as The Flannels Group 1 July 2012 and Republic in February 2013

Woe continue to nurture this division and are already seeing increases in sales
from earlier acquisitions

The Board's am to expand further into Europe has been a key strategic driver
for 8 number of years which has proved extremely successful Since the start
of FY13, we have organically grown our store pottfolio in Europe by 19 new
stores, and entered four new countries In conuncticn with the acquisthons
recently announced in Austria and the Baltics, we are now active n 19
European countries

Internatwonal Retail revenue grew 20 1% in the Year and we have continued
our intematignal growth by opening stores in Poland and Spain durng the first
quarter of FY14

The introduction of the Sportsdirect com website platform in 2006 provided the
Group with another route to market and means of serving our customers We
have continued to invest in this platform and the benefits are now clearty being
recogmsed Onlne sales have increased fram 11 §% of our total Sports Retail
revenue in FY12to 15 0% n FY{3

Dur online offenng prowides an excellent opportunity to expand the range and
value of products available to our customers, reinforcing cur posrtion as the
Consumers’ Champion by delivening exceptional quality at unbeatable value
Woe have a dedicated web team who run the website, marketing to our
customers with pramotions and campaigns to encourage sales Promotions
such as dady deals have proved successful and wa will continue to invest time
and resources in further developing our multi-channel offenng

Employee Bonus Share Scheme

| am dehghted to report that the second and final part of the 2009 Employes
Bonus Share Scheme will vest to our valued employees in August 2013

| hope that all the employees who have contnbuted towards the Group's
performance will enjoy their well-earned bonuses Due to their hard work and
dedication, the Group continues to perform so strongly The financial rewards
have already made a huge difference to so many employees With over 2,000
colleagues eligible for the second award, it remamns a key part of our employee
incentvisation and remuneration strategy

The Group 1s well on its way to achieving the targets set under the 2011
Employee Bonus Share Scheme wath the FY12 and FY13 Underlying EBITDA
targets successfully achieved Although there are a further two targets to be
met, | am delighted by the progress to date

The 2011 Employee Bonus Share Scheme has the following targets for Group
underlying EBITDA {before scheme costs)

| have no doubt this scheme will run as successfully as the 2003 Employee
Bonus Share Scheme ensurng that our staff remain ncentivised

Super Stretch Intsrnal Targets

The Board has decided not to propose the Super-Stretch Executive Bonus Share
Scheme {“Super-Stretch Scheme”) for Mike Ashley, the Company’s Executive
Deputy Chaimman, at the upcoming Annual General Meeting The Board wall
continue to focus on the Super-Stretch underlying EBITDA {before schemes
costs) targets of £310m for FY14 and £360m for FY15 and these will remam
internal targets going forward However the Board has decided to review vanous
ophions with regard to remunerating Mike Ashley in hght of the passage of time
sinca first considering this Scheme

Pension Scheme
The enralment of our employees into the Gevernment’s auto-enrolment pension
scheme took plage in May 2013

The scheme 1s adrinistered by The People s Pension and 15 available to all
employees who are deemed eligible under the Government s cnteria

The Group is committed to meeting the targets of a 1% contribution in 2013,
a 2% contnbytion in 2017 and a 3% contribution in 2018 W also contribute
towards a number of workplace pensions in relation to companies which we
have acquired

Dividend

The Board has decided not to propose a dwvidend in respect to FY13 The
Board feels that it remains in the best interests of the Company and rts
shareholders to mamtain financial and strategic flexabibty, mcluding pursuit
of potential acquisttion oppartunities and ongoing investment 1n Group
mirastructure and store portfolio The payment of dwvidends wall remain under
review for consideration 1n future years

Conclusion
Finally, on behalf of myseff and the Board, | would like to thank all of our
employees for thesr substantial contnbution dunng the Year

Keith Hailawell
Non-Executive Chairman
18 July 2013
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REPORT & BUSINESS REVIEW

GVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

} am pleased to report a further year of strong profit growth for Sports Direct The results for the year have benefited from the UEFA
European Champmonships and the London Qlympics, but have been achieved in a retall environment that remains challenging

The Group has grown consistently, and the resilience and flexibility of our business model continues to allow us to offer an
unparalleled product ranga at the best available pnces We will continue to be the Consumers’ Champion

56 new Sports Retail stores opened dunng the year in the UK and Eurape, with
the Group continuing to put the censumer at the forefront of our business by
offering the best comhination of product range and velue for money Whilst we
are the clear market leader in the UK Sports Retail sector, we are also pleased to
have broadened our customer base i new areas, such as Lifestyle and Fashion,
and built on our strong retay infrastructure and systems

Cur Premium Lifestyle division has continued to expand, having acquired 114
Republic stores from the administrator in February 2013 The dwsion offers s
customers an enhanced shopping expenence, following the previcus acquisition
of companies including USC, Ftannels, Cruise and Van Mildert

Following the success of our 2009 Employea Bonus Share Scheme, the Group
launched a new four-year scheme in 2011, covering the penod FY12 to FY15,
with challenging underlying EBITDA targets of £215m, £250m, £260m and
£300m respectvely We are delighted to inform you that both the first and
the sacond of these targets have been achieved and we would hke to take
thus opportursty 1o thank our colleagues for their outstanding contnbutions
over tha past year There 15 no doubt thet the schemes continue to be a major
contributing factor 1n improving the Group's staff retention Those employees
that were involved in the 2009 schema received therr first share rewards in
August 2012 and we are pleased that August 2013 will see the second part of
the 2009 Bonus Share Scheme vest and we look forward to seetng our fellow
colleagues well-rewarded for their efforts

GROUP

The Financia! Year ended 28 Apnl 2013 (“the Year") was a 52-week year In order
to make a companson to the previous penod, which was a 53-week year, all
references to financial performance in respect of the incoma statement, cash
flow and business reviews are made by reference to & pro-forma 2012 52-week
basis unless otherwise specified

For the Year we increased Group revenue by 20 9% to £2,186m This was
pnmanly due to the Retall division, where we grew revenues by 22 7%, including
a 17 6% growth n total Sparts Retall coupled with the Premium Lifestyle
division, which contnbuted revenues of £128m

Group gross margin in the Year increased by 40 basis ponts from 40 5% to

40 9% Total Sports Retad dvision gross margin increased by 2C basis points to
41 4% (FY12 41 2%}, while Brands drvision gross mangin ncreased to 44 9%
(FY12 41 2%)

Group operating costs increased 22 5% to £607 9m (FY12 £496 2m) Sports
Retal end Brands division operating costs were £491 Om (FYi2 £400 Om) and
£66 6m (FY12 £58 8m), respectively

Group Revenue +20 9%

April 13 £2,185.6in

Underdying EBITDA +22 2%

April 13 £287 9m

£160 4m
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Reflecting the success of our approach — balancing revenues and gross margin,
while mainteirung a tight focus on operating costs — we grew Group undertying

EBITDA {pre-scheme costs) for the year by 22 1% to £287 9m (FY12 £235 7m)

Within this underfying EBITDA, we increased the Total Retail dwision EBITDA by
23 8% to £260 9m (FY12 £210 Tm) while the Brands dwision EBITDA increased
by 8 0% to £27 Om (FY12 £25 Gm)

Excluded from undertying EBITDA 15 a £22 1m (FY12 £20 7m} charge in

respect of the 2009 and 2011 Employae Bonus Share Schemes and the
Executive Bonus Share Schemes This charge has been taken centrally and,
except in note 4 to the accounts, 1s not reflected tn dwisional (Retail and Brands)
numbers in this report

For the Year, Group underlying profit before tax increased 39 6% to £208 1m,
pnmanly as a result of tha £52 2m increase i {pre-scheme costs) EBITDA

and £9 9m decrease n depreciation and amortisation, offset by the £1 4m
increase in Employee Bonus Share Scheme charges Underlying EPS for the year
increased by 43 3% to 26 85p (FY12 18 74p)

Net debit at 28 Apnl 2013 was £154 Om (29 Apni 2012 £145 2m), which 15 058
times reported EBITDA Reported EBITDA includes realised foreign exchange
gainsAasses in selling and admirustration costs and the Employee Bonus Share
Scheme charges

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Board moniters the perfarmance of the Group by reference to a number of key performance indicators {KPts), which are discussed in this Chief Executive's Report,
and also in the Financial Review The most important of these KPls are

rossicontbutionk
rosslcontbutionid

™ The method tor calcubting underying EBITDA 13 sst out in the Firancial Review

2 The FY1 2 incoma statement ks bien restated to provde 8 52-week pro-forma set of results
& UX Sports Rgtzi Ske-for-Eke contribut:on is defined 23 the percentage changs

£1,835 8m £1,599 Zm
£240 Iin £211 0m
41056 419%
+0 7% +6 6%
+0 i%ﬁ +85%

17 6% 70%

15 19p 1683p

306
16 9%

§,237 tonnes

0 (oss contnbution i the successive §2 month period, sdjustad to remove the mpact of the 53-week ysar o 2052, A Eke-for-iks stom s

ona that hes been trading for the Rull 12 months & both penods and has not been affected by 2 significant changs, such 23 a maer refurinshment,

* intemational Ratail Rke-for-iike contnbubion is defined e3 the percentage changs n grss contritation i the successive 12 month period, edjusted to remave the impact of the 53-week year in 2012 A ike-tor-fka stors is
on that has baen trading for the full 12 months in bath penods end has not been affectad by a signdicent changs, such a3 & maor reburbishment.

 The method for calcutating underying samengs per share 18 sat out o the Financial Revew.
M A cors $tore 1 & st acquened &nd fitted out by the Group of etherwnse 3o designated.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REPORT & BUSINESS REVIEW contnues

REVIEW BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

Retail Revenue

edanl tu
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UK SPORTS RETAIL

{976 4}

229 6635
405%

DATIEET

1685

120 274

i li? 1959

a ‘01 {1151}
164 80g

) 41 7%

UK Sports Retail revenue growth continues to be primanly driven by our retall and logistics skills — providing the widest choice of

products at the best value with universal availability

UK Sports Retail sales were up 17 3% to £1,574 9m (FY12 £1,342 4m} Sales and gross profit from the former JJB stores are
excluded from UK Sports Retail revenue and margin and are included in UK Wholesale and Other

Sales in the first half benefited from the UEFA European Championships and

the London Dlympics, although sales in the second half of the Year wers still up
16 4% to £778 Om (FY12 H2 £667 7m) Gross margns for the second hatf of the
Year umproved to 39 9% (FY12 HZ 39 7%} Gross margin for the Year increased
by 10 basis points to 41 1% (FY12 43 0%} We have invested significantly i
gross margin throughout the Year

UK Sports Retai Lke-fordike gross contnibution, which excludes online, increased
by arecord 11 2%, marking the fourth consecutive year of growth in thus kP
{FA12 +07%/FY11 +66%/FYI0 +34%) UK Sports Retall ike-for-dike
contnbution 1s defined as the percentags change in gross contnbution in the
succassive 12-month penod A hke-for-ike store 1s one that has been trading

for the full 12 months n both penods and has not been affected by a significant
change, such as a major refurbishment The number of stores mcluded in this
year's KPl1s 275 (FY12 290)

Dperating costs increased by 18 8% to £409 4m (FY12 £344 5m) Operating
costs i H2 mcreased by 13 9% to £214 5m (FY12 H2 £188 4m) Store wages
wera up 18 0% but as a percentage of sales increased onfy 0 2% to 8 8%
{FY12 8 6%), in spite of a substantial investment n store staff UK Sports
Retanl premuses casts ingreased by only 1 5% due to reduced rent following
the purchase in the pnor year of freehold properties previously rented, and the
ongoing process of store relocations and rent renegotiations

Other operating costs were up 34 2% to £157 0m (FY12 £117m]) which s due
to mcreased warehouse and storage costs to support the growth in our onling
business and increased overheeds relating to the obhgations acquired from
the administrator of JUB The majonty of this increase came i H1, wath other
operatmg costs in HZ only increasing by 15 1% to £84m (FY12 £73m)

Operating costs were also reduced by a release of the onerous lease prowisian
of £14 6m dus to the closure of unprofitable stores, the sub-let of previously
vacant space and a strategic decision to invest tn other stores previcusly
ptanned for closure

Underbyng EBITDA for UK Sports Retail was £247 Tm (FY12 £207 Tm), an
increase of 19 2% for the Year This increase was driven by a £111 Tm increase
in gross profit {includmg UK Wholesale and Other) due to the growth in store
contribution and online sales offset by the £64 9m increase in operating costs

The Group's retail businesses performed strongly m a difficult econormic
environment Our retail model, offening outstanding value to our customers,
remains resthent, both in the UK and intemationally Throughout the Year,
we continued 1o focus on offenng the customer the most comprehensive
product range, the best availabiity and value while reducing our costs
whesever possible
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Online revenue has increased by 52 1% from £174 Om to
£264 6m in the Year and represented 15 0% of Total Sports
Retail sales (FY12' 11 6%)

Wa remain focused on the further development of our successful mutti-channel
offer Order fuffilment and information technology solutons are developed
in-housa with full back-up support from our National Distnbution Centre in
Shirebrook, Derbyshire The website has benefited from the Group's investment
in onhne product range and availability, the launch of the new online platform in
November 2012 and a further growth in recogmition of the online brand wath 376
of the UX store fascia now branded SPORTSDIRECT com

Online % Total Sports Sales

Emptoyes traming has undergone a significant amount of investment over the
past few years This year aone m excess of 40,000 hours have been invested
into the training and development of our employees Our traiming courses mainly
take placs &t our state-of-the-art Nationa) Traiming Facibity 1n Shirebrook where
sessions are led by our expenenced teams We offer a wade portfolio of courses,
which ere continuously being changed and refined, with the ultmate aim of
improving trainee praduct knowledys and customer expenence

The Nike Traitng Academy 1s a key part of our Shirebrook National Training
Facility and the only one of 1ts kind in the world We are also continuing to
wurk with adidas and Puma to pronde traiming m order to support our n-store
campaigns and to gan knowledge of speciglised products New Puma training
rooms at Shirebrook were opened dunng Apnl 2013

Online Revenue +52 1%

Aprik 13 £264.6m

P OT

Group marketing has continued to be a key part of our growth strategy
Investment around tradrional media channels such as TV and pnnt were mtnnsic
to our marketing plans around the 2012 Summer of Sport.

The Sportsdirect com brochure was our biggest ever at 1,092 pages, which was
an increase of 50% on the year before Two million copies were distnbuted both
in store and with the delivery of online orders
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REPORT & BUSINESS REVIEW contnues

UK SPORTS RETAIL continued

Qur store portfofio rematns constantly under review with the performance of
each store and ways of maxmising performanca being regularly examined
Ounng the Year we openad 37 and closed 36 stores We have closed 113
stores since 2008 as tha nux of our portfolio continues to evalve We increased
our penod end square-footage to ¢ 4 Om square feet (FY12 ¢ 39m)

In the 12 months to 28 Apnl 2013, rent reviews have been agreed on 33 stores
The average increasa in rent was 2 48% {0 48% annual equivalent) There ere
currentty 42 rent reviews outstanding with a further 40 falling due in 2013-14
Our leasa expiry profile over all core stores (excluding Litywhites Piccadilly}

1s now 6 years, allowing a significant amount of flextbility wathin our portfolio to
adapt our format to the rapidly changing multi-channel environment

In the current financial year, we are targeting to open 25-30 stores We
anticipate closing more stores than we open m FY14 This 1s in line with our
am of maintaining four milhon square feet of retail space, but with an increased
average store sze We have already opened six m the first quarter, including
two relocstions

UK Sports Ratail Fascias
SPORTS [P4s: |
DIRECT.com P8 B

In-Store

We have continved to develop our specialised in-store areas Cur in-store brands marketing recewved significant investment, wath a substantial unitary roliout for our ,
Dunlop and Everlast brends Qur SheRunsHeRuns areas also benefited from a rollout of the Kammor running footwear zone, featunng an integrated product information }
and selection panel i
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INTERNATIONAL RETAIL
International Retail sales increased by 20 1% to £185 2m (FY12 £154 2m)
On a currency neutral basis, the increase was 26 3%
T
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Intemational Retail gross margin increased by 60 basis ponts in the Year to
44 0% Intemational Retail 52-week like-for{ike stores gross contnbution figure, Inermational Retail Sales +20 1%
which excludes Onkne Retall, increased by 7 0% dunng the year (FY12 0 1%} April 13 £185.2m
There were 65 stores included in this KPl, consisting of core stores that have -

been open for the full 52 weeks in both penods and not affected by a significant
change such as a major refurbishment (FY12 46)

Operating costs wathin Intemational Retail increased by 26 5% to £70 2Zm
{FY12 £55 5m) following an investment in management resource and training
ahead of the expansion into new markets There was a 25 2% increase in floor
space althaugh much of this was from stores that opened late in the year

Excluding income from associates (Heatons), Intemational Retadd underlying
EBITDA reduced by 15% to £11 3m (FY12 £11 5m) Income from associates
was a gain of £1 0m {FY12 loss of £0 7m) and this resutted i an increase in
underiving International EBITDA of 14 0% to £12 3m (FY12 £10 8m)
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REPORT & BUSINESS REVIEW conunuec

INTERNATIONAL RETAIL continued

The Group has a 50% shareholding in the Heatons chain which operates 14
Sports Direct stores in Northem (reland and 26 sports stores in the Republic
of Ireland Dunng the Year we opened a new store in lceland through our
25% shareholding

All of the stores in tha prewvious table are operated by companies wholly owned
by the Group, except Portugal, where the Group owns 50 1% As part of the
accelerated growth programme i1 our European subsidiary, we opened 19

new stores in Europe and entered four new countries As at 28 Apal 2013,
International Retail operated from a total retall sales space of ¢ ¥ Imsq ft
{FY12 ¢ 0895m sq ft)

Importantly, with all of our new and existing stores m Europe, local management
are warking hard to ensute that all stores are committed to the operational
efficiencies and standards that exist across the UK sports stores

Our strategy remains to identify partners in new terntones while continuing
to expand our operations in the countnes where we currently trade For FY14,
and in ine with our accelerated European expansion, we are targeting eight to
12 naw stores and two to three new termtones tn the first quarter, we have
already opened two stores in Poland and ane in Spam In conjunction with the
acquisttion recently announced in Austria and the Battic region, we are now
activa tn 19 countnes across Europe

UK RETALL - PREMIUM LEFESTYLE

Dunng the year we have continued our expansion of the Premium Lifestyle
dwision In July 2012 we purchased a majonty stake in The Flannels Group,

and i February 2013, 114 stores and certain assets were acquired from the
admimistrators of the fashion retaller Republic Following negotiations with
landlords, 85 Republic stares remain open Both acquistions have expanded the
breadth of our Premium Lifestyle offenng Post year end we have also acquired
the remaining 20% stake in Cruise

The resuits of Republic are excluded from the above analysis as the fascia had
not been fully integrated into the Group by the end of the Year For the nine
weeks since acquisition, Republic mads a loss of £4 5m EBITDA

The results for FY13 include a full year’s trading for USC, Crutse and Van Mildert
and nuna moenths for Flannels The FY12 resutts included nine months of tradng
for USC and Erwise and two months for Van Mildert

Sales for the drwision in the Year were E128 4m (FY§2 £73 5m), gross mamgin
was 43 4% which 15 100 basis points lower than the pnor year {FY12 44 4%)
The dwisional EBITDA {excluding Republic) was £5 4m, after the release of an
onerous lease provision of £2 0m {FY12 loss of £7 8m}

USC ontine seles increased by 84 7% to £10 9m [FY12 £5 9m), dnven by the
adoption of the Group's fulfilment systems and online platform

FLANNELS CRUISE van mildect

At the year end, the division traded from 74 stores wath five targeted fascias

Store Portfolio

Promium Lifestyle Sales 474 7%

UST REPUBLIC
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BRANDS

Brands total revenue mcreased by 6 7% to £209 Om {FY12 £195 9m)

Wholesale revenues were up 5 8% to £178 3m {FY12 £168 5m), driven by strong performances in our North Amenican businesses
Brands gross margin increased by 370 basis ponts to 44 9% {FY12 41 2%) Wholesale gross margin rose to 35 4% (FY12 31 7%)

In March 2012 we acquired the Firgtrap brand and assets from the administrator
Durng FY13 the business underwent a complete customer and operabonal
review, resultmg in significant cost savings and a more streamlined operation
The Brands division remamed acquisitive dunng the Year, acquinng Vandanel
Premier, 8 distnbutor of football branded clothing and equipment and also
Whaterline, a wholesale fishing business

Licensing revenues m the Year were up 12 0% to £30 7m (FY12 £27 4m)

We signed 87 new licence agreements, covening multiple brands and product
categones, with minimum contracted values of $53m over the life of the
agreements We remain on track for licence mcome to achieve a compound
average growth rate {CAGR) of 11%, reaching at least $60m of licensing
revenues by FY15

Longer term, we still regand hicensing as the key dnver of Brands dwision
profitability and crucat for the overall growth of the Brands business The main
growth areas are expected to be Asia Pacific and the Amencas which should
compensate for a tougher licensing landscape in the UK and Europe

Operating costs increased by 19 4% to £66 6m (FY12 £55 8m) which includes
a £3 Om cost for the Firetrap reorgamsation Excluding these costs Underiying
EBITDA therefore increased by 8 0% 1o £27 Om (FY12 £25 0m)

> DUNLOP

SPOORT

We continue to focus on developing world-class products that
are endorsed by leadng athtetes on the field of play. A recem
addion te our team of key drand ambassadors s Rohson
Gruen. Robson, the face of Channel 5°s Extreme Fishing, 1S the
ambassadaor of the fishing range developed ender our iconic
Duntog brand.

The Group recogrused that fishing 1s a spart which ivolves
significant mass partcipation and therefore developed
product ranges ol superior quatiy and greas valug, 1o suit the
needs and value expectations of our cuslomers

Brands Wholesale Revenue +5 8%

April 13 E178.3m

£20386m |

Brands Licensing Revenue +12 0%

Aptil 13 £30.7m

WFIr NFIR
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REPORT & BUSINESS REVIEW concinue

EMPLOYEES

Sports Direct has made great progress and a large properhion of this is dus to
the hard work and loyaity of our ¢ 24,000 staff throughout the business

| 2m overwhelmed by the contnbutions that have been made by our employees
towards achieving an exciing future for the Group | believe that the dedication
of our employees has placed us i an extremely strong position in the market in
what 13 most definrtely a difficudt ime for most retalers The past contnbutions
from our employees make me confident that we can replicate our successes as
we look forward to the future

The Employee Bonus Share Schemes have been a fundamental tool which

the Group has used to promate, incentivise and motivate its staff Shanng the
responsibility of achieving these targets was matched by the potential benefits
to employees if the targets were met The schemes have been crucial to
influencing staff behaviour and maximising the Group performance

The 2009 Employee Banus Share Scheme was the first scheme which we
tnalled, vesting in August 2012 and August 2013 Al of the elements of the
scheme were met and the first awards were successfully vested for efigible
employees in 2012 The second award of shares will vest for eligible employses
n August 2013 amounting to approximately 21 miflion shares The second
awards were to the vatue of 75% of base pay for the majonty of employses, and
25% of base pay for those employees who joined the Group later but stil within
the rules of the scheme

To the extent that a significant number of eligible employees elect to sell

some or all of their shares, whilst the Company has no obligat:on to buy back
the shares, the Board wall consider a number of options open to i, mcluding
whether to {1) :mplement an on-market buy back of shares pursuant to the
authonty given by shargholders at the Company’s AGM in 2012, or (u) fund the
Company's Employee Benefit Trust so as to allow it to acquire shares in the
market to replace those shares transferred to eligible employees pursuant to
the vesting

A further incentive for our employees has been the wtroduction of the 2011
Employee Bonus Share Scheme The 2011 scheme has been developed

to incentvise and motivate our current employees in pursuit of our shared

Group objectives The on-going growth and performance of the Group may be
attributed to the successful adoption of the 2009 and 2011 Employee Bonus
Shars Schemes Employees who have receved bonuses under the 2009 scheme
could be efigeble for further awards under the 2011 scheme, and we hope to
retain our valued employees by offenng such rewards This year 15 5% of our
UK employees left the business, down from 17% in FY12

The underlying EBITDA targets (before the costs of the scheme), of £215m in
FY12 and £250m in FY13, have been achieved The targets for FY14 and FY15
are £260m and £300m respectively These further targets, coupled with the
indrvidual employes’s satisfactory personal performance, must afl be met in
order for the scheme to vest in August 2015 and 2017 With appreximately 6m
shares due to vest n 2015 and approximately i 7m shares due to vest in 2017,
1t 15 important that we continue to work together towards thesa shared goals

2011 Employeo Bonus Share Scheme
EBITDA targets of

= £215min FY12 {Achigved £235 7m)
« £250min FY13 {Achieved £287 Sm}
* £260min FY14
* £300m in FY15

All four targets have to be met Maximum award of 23m shares, to include
¢ 3,000 employees

150
£300m
m £288m
£260m
E250m
250 £236m
£215m
200
15
ms

Bonus Share Scheme Key Performancs Indicators

Salaned staff turnover
since FYDS

Pay versus turnover cost index
since FYD9 base yesr

e

FYOS FY10 FYul FY12 FY1

Store stock loss cost indax
since FYO9 base year

Energy consumption per 5q 1t cost
index since FYOS base year

FYio /M iz 3 FYos FY10 FYnn Fiz s
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OUR STRATEGY

Objective

What Next?

dgtiy] _ ; a7
In-Store Tha Group focuses on its stores to enswre tha best presentation of our product The Group continues to enhance ts in-store offenng with further dedicated
range Our product collections provide o good/better/best’ presentation to areas for specialist product collections
ensure our customers find the nght product at the nght pnce Qur speciahist + European Goff
coilaborations with SheRunsHeRuns and Soccer Scene & the Boot Room + Swimshop couk
prowida a hugh level of custsmer sernce  Our mutti-channel approach zlso * Waterling
grves flexibility to our customers s DragonCarp Direct
+ Field & Trek
Acquisitions In FY13 the Group scquired the key assets of JJB including the distnbution The Group continues to identify surtable opportunities to expand the product

centre in Wigan and the Slazenger Golf brand The Group also acquired 8 51%
staks 1 The Flannets Group for the Premium Lifastyle dvision end added Used
Tackle and Waterlne to expand the fishing product offering

In Febwusry 2013 the Group acquired vanous assats of the fashion retailer
Republic including the stock, 114 stores and the website

range, cur specialst collaborations and the Pramwm Lifestyla dvistion

Store Portfolio Since Apnl 2012, UK Sports Retail has opened 28 core stores and closed 10 The Group intends to continue to enhance its store portfolio i bath the UK and

core stores  The Group 2iso epened nina and clased 26 non-core stores. intermationatty The Group wall continua wath the strategy to identify strategic
partners in new temtones wiils expanding operations n those cowrrtnes

Dunng FY13, Imernaucnal Retai apened 19 new stores and closed five Asat  \yperg vy currently have a presence Plans ere in plsce to expand Imemational
28 Apnl 2013, Intemationa Retail cperated wholly owned subsidianes in nine Retad operations mto all countnes that have adopted the Euro
countnes and a 50 1% partnershe n Portugal.
The Group also opened a new stora m lceland as a jownt venture and has a 50%
staka n the Heatons chan in Northem Ireland and Republic of Ireland

People Our employees have contnbuted substantially towards our growth and Due to the success of the first Bonus Share Scheme, wa continue to

TGS

Websits

Y Ot

Brands

success We are consistently mvesting in the traming end development of

our employees to ensure that they ana incentwvised and recogmised for their
contnbution The 2009 and 2011 Employee Bonus Shara Schemes are an
impartant contributer to employee motrvation and Group performance The
targets of the 2009 Employes Bonus Share Scheme were achiaved and the
second award 18 due 10 vest i August 2013 The 2011 Employee Bonus Share
Scheme has been embraced by our employees and they have worked hard to
contributa towards the EBITDA targets to date If the additional Group targets
a2 achieved, members of the 2011 scheme will be rewarded with shares m
the Group

Online Retal sales currertly represant 15 0% of Total Sports Retail revenus, up
from 11 6% 10 FY12

Asded by the new platform launched in November 2012 our monthly unsque
wisitors have nisen 50 $% on FY12 and tho average basket size has nsen 4 6%
to £59 50

Cur conversion ratic of unique wisitors who go on to make a purchase has
nsen from 5 4% to § 7%.

The Group's portfolio includes a wide vanety of world famous spart, fashion
end Ifestyle brands Tha Group's Retaul division sells products under these
Group brands in sts stores, and the Brands diwisien exploits the brands through
1ts wholesals and keensing businesses

The Brands division wholesala bustness sels the brands’ core products,

such as Dunlop tennts rackets and Stazenger tennis balls, to wholesale
customers and distnbutors throughout the world Tlus resudts i far wider
distribution of the products than would be the case if their sale was rastncted
to Group s1ores

The Wholesale business also wholesales chidrenswear and apparel The
beensing busmess hicenses third parties to apply Group-owned brands to
non-cors products manufactured and distnbuted by those third parties We
cumently have in excess of 300 lcensees in over 100 countnes The Brands
division manages thesa icensees 10 ensure global brand conststency and the
intemational success of our Group brands

encourage and matvate employees with the 2011 Employse Bonus
Shara Scheme

Onlina revenue continues to be an area of significant growth and the Group
continues to look at opportunties to davelop this revenue stream further The
website has benefited from the Group s investment m onlina product range and
evatlabidity, and from recognition of the online brand now that 376 stores have
tha SPORTSDIRECT com fasca

The launch of SPORTSDIRECTNEWS com in November 2012 prowndes a further
spportunity to drve ncramental visitors to our website

The Brands diwsion ts closaly tnvolved in the development of licensed products

and monitors licensees and ther manufacturers to ensure product quakly,
prasentation and consistency with the appropnate brand strategy The Brands
division continues to SpONSOr a vanety of prestigious events and reteins a
portioiio of globaly-recognised, high-profile athietes

The Brands Dwision strategy nctudes further axpanston into Asia, 8s well
s the Amencas Such sxpansion will prowide us with mare opportunities to
expand the global presence and intemational appeal of our Group brands.

In order to maurtam brand awareness end suthenticity, the Brands drwision
wil continue tonvast m the development of core products for wholesale
customers and distributors throughout the world
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REPORT & BUSINESS REVIEW contines

MAIN TRENDS AND FACTORS LIELY TO AFFECT THE FUTURE
DEVELOPMENT AND PERFORMARNCE OF THE GROUP'S BUSINESSES

The Group’s retail businesses will undoubtedly be affected by the economic
chmate and changes therein Movements in interest rates and exchange rates
aifect the businesses directly and consumer confidence and spending 15 affected
by a wide range of factors including employment, tax and interest rates, house
pnces and the general feel-good factor, factors beyond the Group’s influence

All of the above apply equally to our Brands businesses, both wholesale and
hcensing Reduction in customer demand 1s reflected i the wholesaling and
hcensing business, as orders and royelties are affected Moreover, m difficult
econoric times, suppliers come under increasing pressure to reduce therr prnces
to therr customers and all supphers run the nisk of ther customers ceasing to
trade or reducing demand for thetr products

Difficult economic conditions can also make it defficutt for suppliers to obtain
credit insurance in respect of some customers, leaving the suppher wath a
difficult question of whether or not to supply and, If they do, with the attendant
nsk of bad debts

Later in tius report, we comment on nsks and uncertainties that relate to the
Group s businesses and while we manage to reduce nsks, where possible, the
likelihood of thewr occurnng and their impact if they do, are factors that coutd
influence the Group or part of it

The Group applies hedge accounting, which is in ine with other major retailers
This reduces an element of potential volatilty in reported profit

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES RELATING TO THE GROUP'S BUSINESS

Internal Controls and Risk Management

The Board has a responsthility to govern the Group in the mterest of the
sharghotders The Board 1s responsible for setting strategic objectves and part
of this involves assessing the nsks involved Risks are an inherent part of the
busmess world and, due to the nature of the business, the Group 1s exposed to
a wide varety of these In order to mimmise the effect of potentially damaging
effects 1o the Group, the Board ensures these are managed and montored
effectively via a framework of controls and robust procedures

The Group’s Approach to Risk

The identrdication and management of nsk s a continuous process, and the
Group s system of internal controls and the business continuity programmes are
kgy elements of that The Group maintains a system of controls to manage the
business and to protect rts assets with the development of contingency plans
and rapid response to changing circumstances and does much to nutigate the
nsks faging the Group The Group continues to mvest in people, Systems and i
[T to manage the Group s operations and its finances effectively and efficiently

 ftdeiltobmanagelthelnsid
X ) 2R h
iemActice reviswedland[monitored: ll'?ilﬂhe nsk

Executive management teams are responsible for the identfication, analysis,
evaluation and miigation of the significant nsks applicable to therr areas of
business These compnse of Directors as well as of semor managers

The teams mest regularly to discuss the identified nsks, and how these

should be reviewed and monitored The Board ensures that the appropnate
arrangements are in place under which employees can raise concems about
possible financial or other impropnety, which are then appropnately investgated
These smrangements include formal gnevance procedures and employes
confidential hothines

The Board 1s assisted by the Audt Comumuttes in fulfilling its everview
responsibilies, reviewing the reporting of financial and non-financial information
to shareholders and the audst process, satisfying itself that appropnate systems
of internal control end nsk managernent are in place and are serving to identify
and manage nsk

The Group operates a Retail Support Unit which provides strong operational
wtemal audit services in the Retal division, and there are procedures in place In
the Brands drision to monstor and control licensees

The external auditars are invited to attend all meetings of the Audit Committee,
save for those parts of eny meeting when the Committee rewiews the
performance of the auditors and when the Commuttee 1s having separate
discussions with the Group Finance Director

With the exception of Heatons, who are the Group s only material associate,
the Group's system of internal control and nsk management and its
affectiveness 1s monitored and reviewed by the Board, the Audit Committee
and management, and the Board believes that the Group has maintained
throughout the Year and up ta the data of approval of the annual report and
accounts an effective embedded system of intemal control and has compled
with the Tumnbull guidance

The systems of mternal control and nsk management are designed to manags,
rather than eliminate, the nsk of fading to achreve business objectives

Risk Polictes and Procedures

Business plans and budgets for each business include financial and strategic
targets against which performance 1s monitored Monitonng includes the
examination of and changes to rolling annual and quarterly forecasts, monthly
measurement of actual schievement against key performance targets and plans,
and weekly reviews of performance

The Group has clear procedures for the approval and controf of expendrture
Strategic investment decisions involving both caprta and revenue expenditure
are subject to formal deteiled appraisal and review according to approval
levels set by the Board Operating expenditure 18 controfted within each
business with approval levels for such expenditure being determined by the
ndwidual businesses

The Group has a formal whistle-blowing policy for employees who wish 1o raise
any 1ssues or concemns relating to the Group's actvities on a confidential basis
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Control environment

The Group’s operating procedures mclude a comprehensive system for reporting
financial and non-financial mformation to the board including

« preparation of three years of strategy pians for busmess development,
» preparation and review of annual budgets, and

* review of the business &t each board mesting, focussing on any new risks
ansing (for example key changes in the market)

The Audit Committes 1s responsible for overseeing and monitonng these
processes, which are designed to ensure that the Group comphes with

refgvant regulatory reporting and fikng provisions As at the end of the peniod
covered by this Report, the Audit Committee, with the participation of the Chiet
Executive and Group Finance Birectar, evaluated the effectiveness of the design
and operation of disclasure controls and procedures designed to ensure that
informatien required to be disclosed in financial reparts is recorded, processed,
summansed and reported within specified tme penods

Monitering Process
The Groups's approach to monitoring the system of key controls 15 set out in this

section of the Chief Executive’s Repont
Control procedures

Detailed operatonal procedures have been developed for each of the Group’s
operating businesses that embody key controls The imphcations of changes in
taw and regulations are taken into account within these procedures

Principal Risks Affectng the Group

The Group has identified the following factors as potental nsks to, and
uncertainties concerrung, the successful operation of its business The Group 15
however expased to a wider range of nsks than discussed betow but these are
the pancipal nsks, that have recently been discussed by the Board and Audit
Committes and are of pnmary cencem

Financsal reporting process

Ths Group has tn place intemal control and nsk managerment systems m
relation to the Group's financial reporting process and the Group's process for
the preparation of consolidated accounts These iclude clearly defined hines
of accountability and delegation of authonty, policies and precedures that
caver financial planming and reporting, prepanng consghdated accounts, caprtal
expenditure, project governance and information securty

Area

S SDRVIL DR i

Mitigation
: V b ¥ ¥

The Group is tharetors subject 1o the risks associated Th|Gmup requimes all mpphﬂmﬂm up to the Group s Code of Ethics/Supply Policy wiich enshles
with intermniationz! trade and transport 23 wedl b3 the Group Lo montar and benchmark the performanca of the supplier 1t atiows the Group to camy out

Tha Group operates intemationally so 13 reliant on
the successhi distnbunon of goods from when

they wre distributed by the *f 1o when thoss relsting to expesure to different legal and other op 0 ensure kance with the Group s codss for continurty and quality of
they ane told in the stores standards Risks including cost mcresses enemy mm&mmmawmmwmamm

natural disasters, working practices end
The Group ts refant on manutacturers in wm"mmwwmwmm Many nsks relatng to the supply cham, reliance on non-UK supplies, and 1o the reputstion of the
developing countnes 25 the majortty of the Group s firoup s brands ere ged and d bry the wngl ol thess policies. Strong Sennce
products sre sourced from outside the UK Lavel Ag and ing rel ups with sl parties invohvad in the supply chain slso

mitigate theye nsks,

XSvis ubpiiars)

Ammmmdnmm Th&wpfdw;pdwdbwhuummhmmhww@wwimnddunhmmhﬂq

The Group « reliznt on good relrhonships with
sts major manutacturers, kay brands or brand or wppbers on ble terms could supply chan compandes to procure much of the Group 3 own branded goods. Thes closs relstionshn
suppllers. hmnnmmm“dnﬁmlhwnus. bnngs # better understanding of the supplier's resourcas enabling the Group to react quickly to changss.

eperating profit or overall financial condition. It may
meza that customers shap stsewher « stores cannot
supply the requined product,

ﬂneruuupos-dmhnmudum-nskmw Thﬁmpudsmmhmﬂnmmwmmmmbymmlwﬂlwmnwmy
from vanous cumincy exposures and a str winch are d &4 cash flaw hedges

w the internations! supply markst.

PSRRURTAR AL nanciallRisk)
Tha Group operstes intemationally The majonty of

formgn relatmg to the of Group
branded goods are denonenatad m US doflars

of the US dolter or & weakermng of the pound staring
end the Euro, thus lemang sxposuns to formgn malkung goods mon expensive. The Group elso holds sasats ovensszs in keal csrency end thess assets ane revatusd in accordance
mm’t with curmency movements, Ths currency righ is not hadged
rmmmmmmm
The G hat net bomowings which are gnesed wssats of are The Group s cash genaretrve ead 1s now targetag its debt levels to mebgats intenest rate nsk and
icloalhat fotin weerett s inked to bark doaomunstad 1 a curancy thet = ot the ety 8 currontly has debt levels of lexs than | x undeying EBITTA
base rates or UBOR functional curency es exchange rates move. This

could sagruficandy rectics profitshifty
The Group could have & credit nsk if credit evehmtions ﬂsﬁrumdmmmxnmhtsdmmufﬁumlm

wars nat performed on afl customers requinng credit
aves a cartasn smount. The Group s kiy suppliers also face credit nsk and a3 such the Group reguiarly essesses the vabdity of
ns suppliers end ensures thers are plana to source from alt b chould ey fiars fail

Crgniinn diS guidityiHisk)

The Group prizniarily the Brands dnasion, provides
credit to soma of its customers

Funding and bquadity for the Group 3 apamtions
The Group s objectrve mantal wfﬁnuniumﬁw
% pronded through bark lows, ovecdaftsand [T B IS B . T e seat R chures &7w in place 1o mitsgate th credit nsk. The Group haa a credi policy in place snd

cf adequats c2sh resouces.rom bank faciites and the expesure ta sk 1s montored on an on-going bass.

sthotrang continuity of funding in the current francaal

Cradit eval. e perf d on &l Ang credit over a cortam amount, and
climate could be n risk to the Group wn future years. of sk i g
The Group mary not be sble to purchase . N
ossmnah.-:vmm Irvestment of cash sumplus, gs and ere made through benks and

compames which have eredit retings and evestment criiana approved by the Boand

The Group metigates Bquadity nsk by kaepsng debit levels low and the curment finance tacility i held with
aclub of 10 banks, thereby spreading the nsk.

The Group works with a number of trustad adwsors.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REPORT & BUSINESS REVIEW conunued

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES RELATING T0 THE GROUP'S BUSINESS continued

Fluctustions m pubBcly-lested companies share poes will have e financial impact on
the husiness or resuits.

Mitigation
"

The Group hes chosen to kmut huther purchases of publicly-listed company
shares in order to reducs the potsntal nsk to the bustness, although curment
vBStnents an i kncwm business sactnrs snd are not deemed 10 ba m
volatile compamss

ISUCE gL icTaR Eaning] I 38 @iw,

"T ""3“4! Wr‘l
F Ty v

The Group s Dirsctors and kay management wmmwmolmwmmmwwwmmc
smployees sasure that the cument level of of the Group
SUCCH3S i3 mamntaned

Succassion plans in place whers eppropnate
Kay mxdinduats working “on te ground” to essess the strengths of
falow smployees.

Rogular s to snsure that smpicyoes are lopng and training s
{rven whan nacessary

RMETKSHESTCey

The Sports Retadl industry by heghiy The comp 1o place pi on the Group 3 pricsng stratagy margns
compatitive and the Group tumently and profitab ity

compates at national and tocel levels with a

wide variaty of rataders of varang szes who

mey have competitive advantages, and new
competitors may enter the market.

Snrr-mbsﬂarics in the Group make

Barahional

The Group s refiant on the dnamional Head Anry disruption to the Head Offices, the National Distnbution Carstre and the fleet
Otfices and the Nztionat Destnbution Cantre nin!uchs nught segneficantly smpact the Group s abulity to manage its operations
at Sherebrook cperatng without ducts o Its stores and mantam it supply cham.

mmhlhnmmmdnmdm
Groug 3 fleet of vehicles. Ay long tarm interruption of the Group s [T systems would have a sigraficent impact
on the Groun # opeeation, particukerly i the Retsd dhnsson

The mejocty of the Group's revenue ia derved  yor s yincks, anmad conflicts, govermment actions of adverss weather Bitecung
from the UK the road natworks within the UK could resuft in & tigndicant reduction In consumer
confidance whith would in tum have an edverss affect ca selos in stores

Failyre to craats and maintain emvironments which are 2afe for bath employees end
the implenentation of policies in thes ragard mwmmmmumwﬂmﬂhunm
) Haadth and Sufaty reguinhons.

Health and Sxfaty s kay to tha Group vs

protects our employsas and with

The Grocep 5 trade marks, patants, designs. n-cmmummnmmmmmm.m
and other mtsllectual property nghts e matenal J and gther kews Tha wok

An mcreass in the schamas funding needs or changes ta obligations in respect of the
rib ) derfined b could have an sdverse Inpact on is busness
mmm

The Group has » discount pricing policy to help reduce the nsk of mcressed
competsion In the Industry The Group has an ncredibly strong propecdy
portiolio and owns & very targe number of key brands. Extemnal suppliers oftsn
considar the Group es a very lerge account.

F ‘

+ -,

Although the Group is unzble to mitigate eny change in legislation regarding
contnbutsons, the schemes ars kstoncal and closed to naw snirants The
Group does not mtend to enter tto any further final salary arangaments

m&mm-mwmwmmmﬂmmm
to sddress aperational nsks The lest review and testing of this tock place
during the most recent financial yoar (FY13)

The Board s confident that es far as 1t is practical, the risks and uncertambes
thatt tace the Group are being momtored and managed and that, where
requred, approprate action s being takan.

Tha Group h tha b and the nature
of the business model allews for the Group to sct swatty under
extraordinary creunistances.

The Group ensures that heskth sad safety maintenance and stafl treenng 15
actively morvtored end enfored

Heaith and Satety is 3 prorty bor the Group Incxdents ars rcorded snd steps
are put in placa to merunuse the risk of thess recumng.

As Haalth end Satety requmsments vary from country to Couitry we
ensure that sach Company m the relevant countnes ere fully trained in the
standards required
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Tthmhasmthnﬁumdnmﬁmﬂmw
that o and ragus This i-ouse

caniral to the value of the Group s brands. uulhgamrsnhmhmn.olunhhvawmmmw-woiﬂuﬁrmc
upplers, agants or distrib could lead to adverss publicrty and &
dacEne m public demand for the Group's products, or requre tw Group to incur

wxpenciters or make changes to its supply chin and other business armangements tn

snsurs compliance

The Group mery need to resort to ktigaton o the futire to snforce s nteSactual
propesty nghts end any § could result o suly i costs and a dhweson
of resources.

Therd partes may try to chabenge the rtup of rfwt the Group s

intsllactual property
The Grocp 8 retsil businesses ere subjact Prok d | weather condi POrary Sovers weather curng peak
1o seasonal paaks. The incidenca and mqu:mnsmhhanammmmuﬂoqmﬂuﬁumswm

partictpanon in major sporting events Group are dapendant upoa the store portfcfio end consumers spending habts
will havs 3 particutar impact on the UK

Retall business

lm«hulsvlﬁnnﬂmﬁqmm:lmdum

menm-mmwmﬂncmpmwhm
influenca the rsts:) portfolia and tharel: ly montor deved

of siones and the Group 3 sm to wreasa the square footage through
wvushie now retad space By mendonng stock ivels comectly theough saies
forecasting the Groxep c2n manage the peaks n demand end trading profiles
can be predicted

1
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Area

LORSILTIOG

Adverse pubicrty conceming any of the Group s brands, manulscturers or

The Group s success and sales are The d o usage of the Group s gwn brands to
dapsndent, in part, on the strength and uppiars could tead to R erosion i the reputation of, of valus assoctted snsure they are used i the comact manner

reputation of the brands it sells, end are wath the firoup

sutyect to consumers’ percaptions of the Spactic ndiviuzls n the media ere chosen o promete brands.

Group and of 123 products, which cao el The Group carshudly sslects mdividuals who will fit with the groducts end
out of tavour the tarpet market,

EAn DN mental [ I

The Group s tubject 1o the negauva effects E | i harve hagl d how it 15 Impossible to predict how en The Group constantly updates systemns to rutigate any delsy of koss of goods
that environmenta! disasters can have on the | will affact b i transt of tha sbsance of any employee or lange rumbers of employees that
business savironment, iy of sy not be sttered by ects of nature.
] e e e a—m—n . A - -

CONTRACTS ESSENTIAL TO THE BUSINESS OF THE GROUP

QUTLOOK

The Group has Ipng-established relationships with Nike and adidas, the major
suppliers of third-party branded sporting goods, particularty footwear, and
considers that continued supphies from these companies are cntical to the
business of the Group

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The Corporate Responsibility Report is on pages 52 to 55 and a review of
the assessment of the Group's impact on the environment 15 included in the
Corporate Responsibility Report on pages 53 and 54

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group's success depends on the strength of tha Group brands and, to a
lesser extent, the hcensed-in brands The Group's efforts to continually develop
or obtain brands in a timely manner or at all may be unsuccesshul

The start of the FY14 has already been busy with the acquisttien of majonty
stakes n two leading European sporting goods retailers n Austna and in

the Battic region This means that the Group 15 now active in 19 countnes across
Europe While management is focused on the successtul integration

of these businesses, we also expect to see more opportunities to grow the
Group internationally

The Group has witnessed a strong start to the year with trading ahead of
management s expectations This performance is attnbutable to a number of
factors including the mvestment in gross margin made last year, increased
operating efficiencies and the exceptional quahty and unbeatabla value Sports
Direct continues to offer to ts customers However, recent out-performance
versus management expectations may not continue for the full year FYl4sa
non-tournament year, which wilt make FY13 a tough comparator following the
UEFA European Championships and the London Olympics

With this performance in mind, we remain focused and dnven to achieve our

intemal stretch undertying EBITDA target of £310m (before the charge for the
2011 Employea and Executive Borws Share Schemes}

Dave Forsey
Chief Executive

18 July 2613
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The financial statements for the Group for the 52 weeks ended 28 Apnl 2013 are presented in accordance with Intemational Financial
Reporting Standards {IFRS) as adopted by the EU In order to make a companson to last year, ali references to financial performance
in respect of the income statement, cash flow and business reviews are made by reference to a pro-forma 52-week basis unless
otherwise spectfied

SUMMARY OF RESULTS

The Directors believe that underying EBITDA, underlying profit before tax and underiying earmings per share provide more useful information for shareholders on the
undertying performance of the business than the reparted numbers and are consistent with how business performanca s measured intemally They are not recognised
profit measures under IFRS and may not be directly comparable with “adjusted™ profit measures used by other companies

EBITDA 15 sarmings before investment income, finance income and finance costs, tax, depreciation and amortisation end, therefore, includes the Group's share of
profit from assocrated undertakings and jont ventures Underlying EBITDA 1s calculated as EBITDA before the impact of foreign exchange, any exceptional or ather
non-trading rtems and costs relating to the Employee Bonus Share Schemes

REVENUE AND MARGIN

Compared to the previous pro-forma 52-week year, Group Revenue increased by 20 9% Total Retail revenue in the year increased by 22 7%, with growth across all
dwvisions The UK eccounted for 90 6% of Total Retall revenues with the balance in continental European stores

Gross margin in UK Sports Retail increased from 41 0% to 41 1%

Our representation in both parts of treland 1s through Heatons, in which we have a non-controliing interest of 50%, the resufts of which continue ta be reported
as an associate

Brands revenue increased by 6 7% Within this, hcensing revenue increased by 12 0%, with an increass in wholesals revenue of 5 8% Brands overall margins
increased from 41 2% to 44 9%
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FINANCE INCOME

EBITDA AND PROFIT BEFORE TAX
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Underlying 52 week FY13 profit before tax excludes
L  wnpmrments which decreased profit by £2.2m,
L waeptional tsms which ncroesed profit by £0 Sim,
. renkzed foregn exchange ga:mns which incrensed FY13 profits by £2.3m,
Iv IFRS revaluation of foraign Y which ¢ d profit by £2.0m, and
v. Farviue withen which i profit by £0 4m.

SELLING, DISTRIBUTION AND ADMINISTRATION COSTS

Seling. distnbutien and adrumstration costs for the Group decreased as a
percentage of revenua This was as a result of cost and efficiency savings
offsetting inflation and tncreased investment onling

FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The Group manages the impact of currency movements through the use of
forward fixed rate cumency purchase and sales contracts The Group's policy
has been to hold or hedge up to four years {with generally a mummum of six
months) of anticipated purchases i foreign currency

The realised exchange gain of £2 3m (FY12 £2 Om loss) included
adrmmistration costs has ansen from

& accepting Dollars and Euros at the contracted rate, and

b the translation of Dollars and Euro dencminated assets and habilities at the
penod end rate or date of realisation

The exchange loss of £2 0m (FY12 £3 5m gain} included in finance costs /
ncome substantially represents the reduction in the mark-to-market asset
made {under IFRS} for the Group's unhedged forward contracts as at 29 Apri
2013 A number of the forward contracts outstanding at 28 Apnl 2013 qualify
for hedge acceunting and the fair value gain on these contracts of £15 6m has
been credited to equity through the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income The Group has sufficient US Dollar contracts to cover the majornity of
purchases in UK Retait for FY14 These hedged contracts are at an average rate
of USD /GBP 1 631

The Steriing exchange rate with the US dollar was $1 626 at 29 Apnl 2012 and
$1 547 at 28 Apnl 2013

ghanktoansandlo
gicans)

The nse mn interest payabla i$ a result of the increased use of the revohing credit
faciity This increase 1s attmbutable to the acquisiions during the year and the
mvestment in working capital

The lass on the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts anses undar

IFRS as o result of marking to market at the penod end those contracts that do
not qualify for hedge accounting

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

TAXATION

The effective tax rete on profit before tax m Y13 was 26 8% {FY12 30 3%} This
rate reflects depraciation on non-qualifying assets and overseas earmings being
taxed at & tugher rate
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HNAN[:IAI. HEVIEW continued

EARNINGS

568,581,000

Basic earings per share (EPS) ts calculated by dividing the eamings attnbutable to ordinary shareholders by the wesghted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding dunng the actual financial penod Shares hetd in Treasury and the Employee Benefit Trust are excluded from this figure

The underlying EPS reflects the undertying performance of the business comparad with the prior year and 1s calculated using the weighted average number of shares
lt 15 not a recogmsed profit measure under IFRS and may not be directly comparable with "adjusted” profit measures used by other companies

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The tems adjusted for amwing at the underying profit after tax and rmungnty
interests are as follows

Jicliorwardlforeign!

DIVIDENDS

Tha Board has decided not to propose a dividend in respect to FY13 The Board
feels that it remains in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders
to maintasn financiat and strategic flexibility, including pursuit of potential
acquisition opportunities and ongoing mvestment n Group infrastructure

and store portfolic The payment of dvidends wall rerain under review for
consideration in future years

Capital expenditure amounted to £49 8m (FY12 £131 Om}, which includes
expendsture on licences within intangible assets In FY12 the Group purchased
fraehold property from Mike Ashley for a consideration of £86 8m

ACQUISITIONS

The Group made acquisitrons dunng the year meluding vanous assets acqured
from the administrators of the fashion retailer Republic and JJB as well as 3 51%
stake in the Flannels Group

STRATEGIT INVESTMENTS

Dunnyg the Year the Group cortinued to hold an 11 87% halding in JO Sports and
Fashion plc The fair value of the Group s holding at 28 Apnl 2013 was £47 6m
{29 Apni 2012 £46 6m} No shares were bought or sold in the year, the only
movement being in the farr valus of the shares held, which has been recogmsed
directly in equity in accordance with IFRS

CASH FLOW AND NET DEBT

Net debt increased by £8 8m from £145 2m at 29 Apnl 2012 to £154 Om at
28 Apnl 2013

The analysis of debt at 28 Apnl 2013 was as follows

1417 694
(2957  (2148)
(1540 {145.2)
The Group continues to operate comfortably within its bankeng facilities and
covenants The Group has a £300m syndicated facility in place until March

2015 Post year end the Group’s £50m and £25m bilateral facilities have been
extended to March 2015
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CASH FLOW

PENSIONS

Total movement 15 as follows
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The ncrease in working capital Is predominantly in inventory to support the
growth of the online business

RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT iN EQUIFY

Total equity movement 1s as follows
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The Group operates a number of closed defined benefit schemes i the Dunlop
Slazenger companies The net deficit in these schemes increased from £19 3m
at 29 Apn! 2012 to £19 9m at 28 Apnl 2013

Bob Mallors
Finance Dhrector
18 July 2013
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THE BOARD

® Audrt Committee
® Remuneration Committee

® Nomination Committee

o o Dr Keith Hellawell QPM

Non-Executve Chairman, Chairman of Nomination Committee

Appueinted 24 November 2009

Pravious Rolas Prior to joining the team at Sports Direct Intemational plc, Dr Hellawell spent over 40 years m
public sector management being a former Chief Constable of two Brtish polics forces While working directly
for the Pnme Mim:ster between 1998 and 2002, he wrote and coordinated the Unrted Kingdom national and
internaticnal anti-drugs policy

Prasent Roles Or Hellawell has been involved n the private sector since 1998 when he joined Evans of Leeds,
a fully hsted property company Smce then he has served on the boards of both Dallua plc and Stenence Limited,
subsidianas of the French company Vegha Env Dr Hellawell 1s currently a Non-Executive Director of Mortice

plc, a Singapore based faciities management company and a Director of the Super-League team Huddersfietd
Giants He was Non-Executive Chairman of Goldshield Group ple, a marketing led pharmaceutical and consumer
health company, fram May 2006 to its sale in December 2009 He has held a number of other Non-Executive
board positions in pnvate companies including vehicle manufactunng and IT He also runs his own management
and training consultancy company

Key Skills/Strengths Or Hellawell has worked in both the public and pnvate sector for over 50 years
Throughout this time he has built up a wealth of expenence which he brings to the Group to ensure the
successful and effective operation of the board

Mike Ashley

Exacutve Deputy Chairman

Appointed 1982 (founder}

Previous Rolas Mike estabhshed the business of the Group on leaving school in 1982 and was the sole owner
untl the Group's listing in March 2007

Key Skills/Strengths Mike was the founder of the Group and has the necessary skills for formulating the wiston
and strategy of the Group With over 30 years in the sports retail busmess with Sports Direct, he 15 invaluable to
the Group

Dave Forsey
Chref Executive

Appointed 1984

Key Skills/Strengths Dave has been with the business for over 28 years, during which time he has acquired
signficant knowledge and expenence of the sports retall business In conjunction with the Deputy Charrman, he
agrees strategy, appropnate objectives and policies for each of the businesses Dave has overall respansibility
for the daily management of the Group

Bob Mellors

Group Fmance Director

Appointed 2004

Previous Roles A graduate in Economics, he qualified with PncewaterhouseCoopers in London before joining
Eacott Worrall, where Sports Direct became a ¢ligntin 1982 He was Managing Partner and Head of Corporate
Finance at £acott Worrall before joiming the Group

Koy Skilla/Strangths Bob qualified as a Chartered Accountant with PreceWaterhouseCoopers and has
extensive financial expenence Bob has extensive knowladge of Mergers end Acquisitions
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Simon Bentley
Seniar Independent Non-Executve Director, Chairman of the Audrt Commmittee

Appointed 02 March 2007

Previous Roles Simon qualdied as a Chartered Accountant in 1980 and in 1987 joined Blacks Leisure Group Pic where he was Chairman and Chief
Executive for 12 years

Present Roles Simon chairs and 1s on the board of a range of companies and orgamisations Arnong these, he 1s Charman of the hair brand Umberto
Granmuini, 15 the principal owner and Chaimman of the leading molule ATM operator Cash on the Move, and 1s Chairman of Yad Vashem - UK Foundatian

Koy Skills/Strengths He has lengthy expenence of the sporting goods industry

David Singleton

Non-Executive Diractor, Chairman of Remuneration Committea

Appointed 27 October 2007

Provious Roles Dave spent 25 years with Reebok Intemational imited He steppad down in Apni 2007 having assisted wath the successful integration
of Reebok following its acquisition by adidas Group in Jenuary 2006 For eight years he was Vice President of Northem Europe Region & UK and then was
Senior Vice President of Europe, Middle East & Afnca

Present Roles Dava 15 Chairman of Bolton Lads & Girds Club, Charman of Botton Cornmunity Leisure Trust and 2 Trustee st Bofton Wanderers
Community Trust

Key Skills/Strengths. Dave has an extensive Senior Management record and brings valuable experience of imtermational sports brand aperations

Charles McCreevy

Non-Executive Director

Appointed 31 March 2011

Pravigus Roles Charles i1s a highly expenenced poliician who previously served as EU Comnussioner for intemal Markets and Services between 2004-
2010, and has held positions in several Insh Gavernment Ministenal Offices, including Minister for Finance betwesn 1397-2004, Minister for Tourism &
Trade between 1993-1994 and Minister for Social Weltare from 1992-1993

Present Roles Charles currently holds Non-Executive Director positions at Ryanar Holdings ple, Senterval Linited, Celsius Funds ple, Grove Limited and
Barchester Holdco (Jersey} Limited

Key Skills/Strengths Charles has extensive al-round business knowledge with particutar relevance to the European Union

Claire Jenkins
Non-Executrve Diractor

Appointed 25 May 2011

Previous Roles Untd recently, Clare was Group Director Corporate Affairs and a member of the Executive Leadership Team, responsible for the company s
sustainability and communications activities, at Rexam plc, a leading global beverage can maker and a major player in ngid plastic packagmg Prior to that,
she was a member of the Management Committee of intemational tobacco company Gallaher Group ple {acquired by Japan Tobacco n 2007) where she
was responsible for investor relations and Group planning Claire has also gained corporate expenence in vanous consutting roles at Laing & Cruickshank,
and as a Non-Executive Director of Retro Classics Fund

Present Reles Claire 1s Chairman of Amicus, and a Non-Executive Director of Medsa For Davelopment

Key Skills/Strengths Claire has excellent all-round business expenence and, in addition, has particular corporate governance and communication skills
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors of Sports Direct Interattonal pic present ther Annual Report and Aceounts for the year ended 28 Apnl 2013

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Chief Executive's Report an pages 18 to 31 provides a detalled review of
the Group's current activitres and potential future developments together wath
factors kkely to affect future development, performance and condmons There

15 also a table of the pnncipal nsks and uncertamties hkely to affect the Group
The financial position of the Group, its cash flow, kquidity position and borowing
facilities are descnbed n the Fiancial Review on pages 32 to 35 The Corporate
Responsibility Report on pages 52 to 55 reports on environmental matters,
including the impact of the Group’s businesses on the environment, the Group’s
employees, and on socia! and community ssues

The pnncipal activities of the Group dunng the Year remamned unchanged
and were

= retailing of sports and leisure clothing, footwear and equipment,

« wholesale distnbution and sale of sports and leisure clothing, footwear and
equipment under Group-owned or licensed brands, and

* hicensing of Group brands

Further information of tha Group’s princtpal activities 1s set out in the front of this
document and i the Cheef Executive s Report on pages 18 to 21

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR AND DIVIDENDS

Revenue for the 52 weeks ended 28 Apnl 2013 was £2,185 6m and profit before
1ax was £207 2m compared with £1,835 8m and £151 Sm n the prior year The
trading results for tha Year and the Group s financial posttion as at the end of the
Year ara shown in the attached Financial Statements, and discussed further in
the Chief Executive’s Report and Business Rewview and in the Financial Rewview
on pages 18 to 31 and 32 to 35 respectively

The Board has determined not to recommend a dwidend this year

SHARE CAPITAL AND CONTROL

The suthonsed share capital of the Company 1s £100,000,000 dwded into
959,500,010 ordinary shares of 10p each and 499,990 redeemable preference
shares of 10p each

Further information regarding the Group s 1ssued share caprtal can be found on
page 78 of the financial statements

Details of Executive and emplayee shars schernes are also sgt out on page 78
No votes are cast in respect of the shares held in the Employes Benefit Trust and
dividends would be waived

There are 640,602,369 ordinary shares of 10p in 1ssue and fully paid of which
42,137,508 are currently held in Treasury

There are no specific restnctions on the transfer of shares, which are
govemned both by the general provisions of the Articles of Asseciation and
prevaifing legislation

Tha Directors are not aware of any agreements between holders of the
Company’s shares that may result in restnctions on the transfer of secunties or
on voting nghts

The Directors were authonsed to allot shates in the capital of the Group up to an
aggregate nominal amount of £19,953,412 {being approximately ons third of the
then issued share caprtal) for the penod expinng at 11 September 2013, the data
of the next 20%3 Annual General Meeting

In ing with guidance from the Associatton of Bntish Insurers the Company was
also granted authanty to 1ssue a further third of the 1ssued share capital to 8
nonnal amount of £39,906,824 (being approximately 35% of the ssued share
caprial) in connection with a nghts issue

A further authonty to allot shares up to @ maxmum nominal value of £2,993,011
(being approximately 5% of the then i1ssued share capital} as if statutory pre-
emption nghts did not apply, was also approved

The authonties expre at the close of the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company, but a contract to allot shares under these authonties may be made
prior to the expiry of the authonty and cancluded in whole or pant after the
Annuzl Generai Meeting, and at that meeting sumilar authonties will be sought
from shareholders

The Group was authonsed to make market purchases of ordinary shares of

10p each in the Company of up to a maximum aggregate number 59,855,236
representing 10% of the Company’s 1ssued ordinary share capital at the 2012
Annual General Meeting The above authonty expires at the close of the next
Annual General Meeting of the Company, and at that meeting a similar authonty
will be sougttt from shareholders

SHAREHOLDERS

No shareholder enjoys any special contral nghts, and, except as set out below,
there are no restrictions n the transter of shares or of voting nghts

Mike Ashley has emered into a Relattonship Agreement with the Company
Under the terms of the Agreement Mike Ashley undertook that, for so long as he
is entitled to exercise, or to control the exercise of, 15% or more of the nghts to
vote at general meetings of the Company, he will,

= conduct all transactions and relationships with any member of the Group on
anm's length terms and on a norma! commercial basis and with the approval
of the Non-Executive Directors,

exercise his voting nghts or other nghts in support of the Company being
managed in accordance with the Listing Rules and the principles of good
governance set out tn the UK Corporate Governance Code and not exercise
any of s voting or other nghts and powers te procure any amendment to
the Articles of Association of the Company,

other than through his interest in the Company, not have any interest in

any business which sells sports apparel and equipment subject to certamn
nghts, after notification to the Company, to acquire any such interest of less
than 20% of the business concemed, and certain ather lrited exceptions,
without recenving the pnar approval of the Non-Executive Diractors, and not
salicit for employment or employ any senier employee of the Company
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As at 18 July 2013, the Company has been adwised that the fallowing parties had a signifrcant direct or indirect shareholding in the shares of the Company

'MASH Holdings Limited 1s wholly ownied by Miks Ashiay

SUPPLIERS

10dey Asset Management indiractly held 3,478,023 thares m & contract for differanca actount

The Group understands the importance of maintaining good relationships with
suppliers and 1t 1s Group policy to agree appropniate terms and conditions for its
transactions with suppliers {ranging from standard written terms to indradually
negotated contracts) and for payment to be made in accordance with these
terms, provided the supplier has comphed with its obligations

Trade creditors of the Group's UK operations as at 28 Apnl 2013 were 28 days
(2012 29 days)

CONTRACTS ESSENTIAL TO THE BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY

The Chief Executive’s Report on pages 18 to 31 details information about
persons with whom the Group has contractual or other arangements and are
deemed essential or matenat to the business of the Group

TAKEQVERS

The Directors do not believe that there are any significant contracts that may
change in the event of a successful takeover of the Company Details of the
wnpact of any successful takeover of the Group on the Directors bonus and
share schemas are set out 1n the Director's Remuneration Report on pages
47 to 50

EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEMES

Details of the Executive Bonus Share Schemes are set out in the Directors’
Remuneration Report on page 48 and detalls of the Employes Bonus Share
Schemes on page 52 of the Corporate Responsibility Report

EMPLOYEE INVOLVEMENT

The success which the Group has enjoyed is largely a result of the loyalty

and enthusiasm of our ¢ 24,000 employees Both the 2009 Employee Bonus
Share Scheme and the 2011 Employee Bonus Share Scheme have incentivised
employees and provided them with an opporturity to own shares in the listed
Company wiite working towards a shared target The Schemes are subject

to a number of conditions, including personel performance conditions The
purpose of the Schermes has been to encourage hard work in our employees

in order that the Group achieves the requisite underying EBITDA targets and
the employee achieves a bonus The Schemes have also assisted the Group to
retan key employees whose skills and expertise are necessary to the success
of the Group The first part of the 2009 Employes Borus Share Scheme vested
in August 2012 and the second part of the Scheme is due to vest in August
2013 These awards will provide many employeas with ife-changing sums The
2011 Employes Bonus Share Scheme vests in September 2015 and September
2017 This Scheme has four essential underlying EBITDA targets, two of which

have already been achieved Both of these Bonus Share Schemes will operate in

addtion to the current workplace bonus schemes, which are directly related to
spectfic workplace performance

Further mformation on relationships with employees can be found in the
Corporate Responsibility Report on page 52

EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES

The Group's palicy for employees end all applicants for employment 15 to match
the capabilities and talents of each individual to the appropnate job Facters
such as gender, race, retgion or belief, sexual onentation, age, disability or
ethnic ongin should be ignored and any decision which 1s made with regard to
candidates should be irespective of these Discnminatton in any form will not be
tolerated under any circumstances within the Group

Applications for employment by disabled persons are given full and farr
consideration for all vacancies, and are assessed in accordance with therr
particular skills and ahiities The Group does all that 1s practicable to meet its
responsibilitses towards the traiming and employment of disabled people, and
to ensure that training, career development and promotion opportunities are
available to all employees

The Group makes every effort to provide continuity of employment where
cument employees become disabled Attempts are made in every circumsience
1o provide employment, whather this mvolves adapting the current job role

and remaining In the same job, or moving to a more appropnate job role Job
retraining and job adaptation are st two examples of how the Group works

n the mterests of employees to promote equal epportunities in order that the
employee’s employment within the Group may continue The Group values

the knowledge and expertise that employees have gained throughout their
employment with us, and therefore does not wish to lose valued employees

RESEARCH AND DEVELDPMENT

The Group designs clothing and some fogtwear for sale in stores and has
arrangements with suppliers for the research and development of goods for the
Brands dmvision

CHARITABLE AND POLITICAL DONATIONS

Ouring the Year, the Group made chanitable donations of £25,132 {2012
£30,060) in the UX No political donations were made {2012 nid} There have
been a number of further donations of sporting equipment made to warthy
causes, and these are set out on pages 54 to 55
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DIRECTORS

Details of current Directors, dates of appointment, therr roles, responsibiities
and significant extemal commutments are set out on pages 36 and 37

Although the Company s Articles of Association require retirement by rotation of
one third of Directors each year, the Group has chosen to comply with the 2012
UK Corporats Governance Cede and at each Annual General Meeting all of the
Directors wall retire and stand for reappointment

Information on service contracts and details of the interests of the Directors and
their famibies in the share capital of the Company at 28 Apnl 2013 and at the
dats of this Report 1s shown n the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages

48 and 49

Copies of the service contracts of Executive Directors and of the appointment
letters of the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors are available for inspection
at the Company’s registered office dunng normal business hours and at the
Annual General Meeting

No Director hag a directorship in common or other significant nks with
arty other Director (except in the case of the Executive Directors holding
directorships of subsidtary companies of the Group)

DIRECTORS' CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Tha Board has formal procedures to deal with Directors’ conflicts of interest
Dunng the Year the Board reviewed and, where appropriate, approved certam
situational conflicts of imerest that were reported to it by Directors, and a
register of those situational conflicts 1s maintained and reviewed The Board
noted any transactional conflicts of interest cancerming Directors that arase and
were declared No Director took part in the discussion or determination of any
matter in respect of which he had disclosed a transactional conflict of interest

DIRECTORS INDEMNITIES

The Group have granted the Directors with Quakifying Third Party Indemnrty
provisions within the meaning grven to the term by Sections 234 and 235 of
the 2006 Act This Is In respect of habilities to which they may become hable
w therr capacity as Director of the Company and of any Company within the
Group Such indemnities were in force throughout the financial year and will
remain in force

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The 2013 Annual General Maating will be held on 11 September 2013 at Unit D,

Brook Park East, Shirebrook, NG20 BRY The Meeting will commence at 3 00pm
The Board encourages shareholders to attend and participate in the meeting

GOING CONCERN

The Company's business actrvitses, together with the factors hkely to affect
its future development, performance and position are set out in the Business
Review on pages 18 to 31

The financial position of the Company, its cash flows, hiquidity position and
borrowang facilities are descnbed in the Finance Director's Review on pages 30
to 34 In addition, the financial statements include the Company s objectves,
policies and processes for managing its capntal, its financial nsk management
objectives, details of its financial instruments and hedging actaties, and its
exposures to credit nsk and hguidity nsk

The Group 15 profitable, highly cash generatve and has considerabte financial
resources The Group Is able to operate comfortably wathin its banking facilihes
and covenants, which run until March 2015, end 1s well placed to take
advantage of strategic opportunities as they anse

As a consequence, the Directors believe that the Group 1s well placed to
manage its business nisks successfully desprte the continued uncertain
econormic outicok

The Group s forecast and projections, taking account of reasonable possible
changes in trading performance, show that the Group should be able to operate
within the level of the current facility

The Directors have thoroughly reviewed the Group’s performance and position
and the Directors are therefore confident that the Group will continue 1n
operational existence for the foreseeable future On this basis, the Directors
continue to adopt the going concern basis for the preparation of the Annual
Report and financial statements

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

A statement by the Auditor can be found on page 56 detaihing their reporting
responstbilities The Directors fulfil their responsibilities and these are set out in
tha responsibility statement on page 51

AUDITOR

Grant Thornton UK LLP have expressed a wilingness to continue in office In
accordance with section 489 {4) of the Companies Act 2006, resolutrons to
determine remuneration are to be agreed at the AGM

By Order of the Board

Rebacca Tyleo-Birdsalt
Company Secretary
18 July 2013
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The Group 1s committed to hugh standards of Corporate Governance The followang section will detail how the UK Corporate

Governance Code has been applied dunng the year

CHAIRMAN'S INTRODUCTION

COMPLIANCE WITH THE UK CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

| am pleased to introduce the Corporate Govemance Statement wiuch contains
details of the actwmties of the Board and its committees and how the Group
complied with the UK Corporate Governance Code 2012 for the 52-week penod
ended 28 Apnl 2013 The Annua! Report 1s regarded as the comerstone of the
Groups’ communication with shareholders This report 1s asmed at providing &
clear understanding of the governance tn the Group

Our diverse Board remains commutted to ensunng that corporate govemance

15 mamtamed n the current challenging elimate The structure of the board has
remained constant for some time now, and the Group has found that this has
led to a egher degree of trust and undormity when 1t has coma to making tough
business decisions

In hing wath the recommendations of the Tyson Repont, the Group wholeheartedly
agrees that board diversity should ultimately benefit shareholders Following

on from the Davies Report in February 2011, the Group s Board {excluding the
Chairman} 1s made up of 14% women This 1s in excess of the figures prowided
from the Cranfield Report in Apnl 2013 which stood at 13 3%, and also bears
compansan to the number of semior women in the public sector Diversity in our
boardroom 1s a major conssderation to the Group, as ts ment, and these will be
key objectives when appointing future board members as and when suitable
vacencies anse However, dus to the geographical locations, complexity, and
the nature of the operations of the Group, ensunng that we have the correct
lsve! of reevant knowledge, skills and expenence in the boardroom is the
immediate prionty

Woa are aware of the European Commission proposal on 14 November 2012
for a Gender Diversity Directive, which atms for 40% of board members to be
made up by women by 2020, and Lord Davies recommendation that FTSE 350
companes should aim towards voluntary targets As a result of these, over
the forthcoming year we have set a voluntary target in kne with the European
Comrussion proposal, which 1s both fair and achievable However, we do not
agree with the Trades Union Congress’ proposal to impose compulsary quotas,
as we fee! that this will be both prejudicial to women and detnmental

10 businesses

Across the Group we employ thousands of indmwiduals from a wealth of
backgrounds We aim to employ individuals based on relevant skills, knowledge
and cntena, rather than based on age, race or gender We are looking to
replicate our success of women in the business to senor management and

the boardroom

Succession planning 1s extremely important to the Group 1n order to mitigate nsk
and bauld on the strengths, skills and competencies which we cumrently possass
Although our current structure remains appropnate at prasent, we aim to share
the knowledge of key individuals in order that when they leave, the skills that
they have leamt remain in the Group Under our forward-losking approach we
aim to utiise the resources from our own talent pool We offer a large vanety

of activities, including site visits and speciaised traiming, to improve personal
development and to progress our colleagues to the next step in their careers
within the Group Current and future vacanctes are advertised both internally and
externally to ensure that the largest range of indwiduals view 1t and can apply, in
the hape that the appaintment 1s awarded to the most suitable individual

The Group 15 actively considering how to make management roles more
attractive In future we are looking at how to attract the highest calibre of
ndviduals, including explonng family-fnendly working and graduate traning
schemes We hope to encourzge both men and women of all backgrounds to
senior positions within the Group

The overall responsibility for the Group s nsk management and internal controls
systems sis with the Board This is an an-going process which relates to the
identrfication, evaluation, management and mon:toring of significant nsks This
compltes with the UK Comporate Govemance Code

The Board 1s subject to the latest Corporate Governance Code, which was
issued in September 2012 The main pnnciples of the Code are

Leadarship

Effectivenass
Accountability
Remunsrations

Relations with Shareholders

The Board has reviewed the Company s corporate governance processes and
policias, and has conduded that dunng the 52 weeks ended 28 Apnl 2013 (the
Year) the Company complied with the provisions of the Code except es set out
below

Provision 8 11 states “The Board should state its reasons if i determunes that
a Director 1s independent notwithstanding the existence of relationships or
circumstances which may appear relevant to its determination, including if the
Director has receved or receives additional remuneration fram the company
apart from a Oirector’s fee, participates in the Company s share option or &
performance-related pay scheme, or s @ member of the Company’s pension
scheme™ Kerth Heflawell, the Group s Chairman, has the option to buy 50,000
shares for the nominal value of £0 10 per share in the Group on &n annua!
basis The Board and Remuneration Committee are satisfied that the additionat
remuneration does not impair tus independence This year, as with last year,
Keith Hellawell has opted to waive his right to take the shares

THE BOARD

The Board consists of a Non-Executive Chairman, Keith Hellawell, the Deputy
Chairman, Mike Ashley, two other Executive Directors, and four further Non-
Executive Directors The names, skills and short biographies of each member of
the Board are set out on pages 34 and 35

The size and composition of the Board are regularly reviewed by the Board to
ensure that there 15 the appropnate balance of skills and expenence

Role of the Board

The rote of the Board 15 to ensure the overall lang-term success of the Group
This i1s achieved through the review, development and implementation of

the Group's strategy The Board also maintains responsibility for corporate
responsibility, accountability and to ensura effactive loadership 1s delegated to
management for the day to day running of the Group and ensures an appropnate
strategy 15 i place for succession planming

The Board has a programme n place to enable it to discharge its responsibility
of prowiding effective and entrepreneunal leadership to the Group within a
framework of prudent and effective controls

The Board plans to meet on a formal basis six times duning the year with up to
four addional strategy meetings at convenient times throughout the year when
broader 1ssues conceming the strategic future of the Group will be discussed
The Board will meet on ather occasions as and when the business demands
Ounng the Year the Board met on five occasions
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THE BOARD continued

A detailed agenda 1s established for each meeting, and appropnate
documentation 15 provided to Directors in advance of the mesting Regqular
Board meetings provide an aganda that wall include reports from the Chief
Executive, the Group Finance Director, reports on the performance of the
busmess and current trading, reports on meetings with investors, reports from
Committees of the Board and specdic proposals where the approval of the Board
1s sought The Board will monitor and question monthly performance and review
anticipated results

Presentations are also given on business of strategic 1ssues where appropriate,
and the Board will consider at least annually the strategy for the Group Minutes
of the meetings of Commuttees of the Board are circulated to all members of
the Board, unless a conflict of interest anses, to enable all Directors to have
oversight of those matters delegated to Commuttees, and copies of analysts’
reports and brokers notes are provided to Directors

It 15 the responsibility of the Directors to ensure that the accounts are prepared
and submuttad Hawving assessed the current Annual Report, along with the
accounts, the Directors confinm that, taken as a whole, they are fair, balanced
and understandable The Directors authonse that these documents provide

the necessary information in order for shareholders to assess the Group s
performance, business model and strategy

Koy Activities

* Ensunng the long-term success of the Group
= Considenng the obligations ta shareholders and other stakeholders

» Considenng the effect the Group's actvities have on the emaronment and
community in which it operstes

« Maintamng a high business reputation
= Maintaining relatonships with suppliers, customers and the wader community

There is a formal schedule of matters that require Board approval they are
matters that could have significant strategic, financial or reputational effects on
the Group as & whole

Matters Reserved for the Board

« Sets budgets

+ Monitors and reviews strategy and business performance

» Approves acquisitons, expansions into other regions / countries
= Appointments and removal of Board members

* Succession planning

« Overell responsibility for mternal control and nsk management as descnbed
on pages 28 to 31

The Chaurman and Executive Directors

The dwision of responsibilities between the Non-Executive Chairman, the
Executive Deputy Chairman and the Chief Executive 1s i writmg and has been
agread by the Board however they work closely together to ensure effective
deciston-making and the successful delivery of the Group's strategy

The Chasrman is responsible for leadership of the Board, ensunng its
effectiveness and that all Directors are able to play a full part in the actwties of
tha Company He ensures thet the Durectors receive accurate, timely and clear
wiormaton The Chawman officsates effective communication with shareholders
and that the Board understands the views of major mvestors, and 15 available to
prowide adwice and support to members of the Executive team

The Executive Deputy Chaimman is an ambassador for the Company He takes
the tead in the strategic development of the Company, formulating the wisien and
strategy which he does in conjunction with the Chief Executive

The Company has entered into a Relationship Agraement wath Mike Ashiay, the
Executive Deputy Chairman, whose wholly owned company, MASH Holdings
Limited, cumently holds approximately 64 40% of the issued share capial of
the Company {excluding treasury shares) This agreement 1s descnbed in the
Directors’ Report on pages 38 to 3%

The Chief Executive 1s responsible for the runming of the Group’s business for
the dehvery of the strategy, leading the management team and implementing
specific decisions made by the Board to help meet shargholder expectations
The Chief Executive reports to each Board meeting on all matenal matters
affecting the Group s performance No one indmdual has unfettered power
of decision

Given the structure of the Board, the fact that the Chairman and Chief Executive
roles are fulfilled by two separate indnaduals and the terms of the Relationship
Agreement with Mike Ashley, the Board beligves that no indwidual or small
group of indvduals can dominate the Board's decision making

The Non-Executive Directors

The Board consists of four Non-Executive Directors and the Chairman The role
of the Non-Executive Birectors 15 to understand the Group in its entrety and
constructively challenge strategy end management performance, set Executive
remuneration levels and ensure an appropnate sucgession plannung strategy 15
inplace They must also ensure they are satisfied with the accuracy of financial
informaticn and that thorough nsk management processes are in place

The Non-Executive Directors have exceflent expenence from a wade range of
sectors The Nen-Executive Directors assist the Board with 1ssues such as
govemance, intemnal control, remuneration and nsk management

Simon Bentley 1s the Semor Independent Non-Executive Director He supports
the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors and 1s available 1o shareholders f
they have concerns

The Non-Executive Directors — External Appomtments

Non-Executive Directors are required to disclose prior appointments and other
significant commitments to the Board and are required to inform the Board

of any changes to or additional commutments Details of the Non-Executives
Directors external appointments can be found an pages 36 and 37

Before accepting new appointments Non-Executive Directors are required to
obtain approval from the Chairman, and the Chairman requires the approval of
the whole Board It 1s essential that no appointment causes a conflict of iterest
or jeopardises the Non-Executive Drector s commitment and tima spent with
the Group in their existing appointment

Tha Non-Executive Directors - Independenca
The Group considers the Non-Executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the 2012 UK Corporate Governance Code

Claire Jenkins had been a consultant for the Company on an ad hoc basis for
appreximately fifteen days each year between 2007 and 2010 Notwithstanding
this involvernent, the Board still believes that she 1s independent in character
and udgement

Exectiive and Non-Executive Directors - Confitcts of Interest

The Board has set procedures to deal with Directors’ conflicts of interest that
anse Dunng the Year the Board reviewed and, where appropnate, approved
certain situational conflicts of interest that were reported to it by Directors, and
a register of those situational conflicts s mantained and reviewed The Board
noted any transactional conflicts of interest concerning Directors that arase and
were declared No Director took part in the discussion or determination of any
matter in respect of which he had disclosed a transactional confhict of interest
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Executive and Non-Executve Directors - Re-alection
The Group complies with the 2012 UK Corporate Govemance Code and afl
Directors offer themselves for re-election every year

The Board have determmed that all Cirectors must put themselves forward
for election or re-election at the 2013 AGM to comply with the UK Corporate
Govemance Code Retining Directors may seek reappointment if willing and
eligble to do so and «f so recommended by the Nomination Committee All
Directors appointed by the Board are appointed after considerabion of the
recommendations of the Nomination Commuttee, and those so appointed must
stand for reappointment at the folowing Annual General Meeting

Details of Executive Directors’ service cantracts and of the Chairman’s and the
Non-Executive Directors’ appointment letters are given on page 49 Copies of
service contracts and of appointment letters are available for mspection at the
Company's registered office dunng normal business hours and at the Annual
General Mesting

Executive and Non-Exacutive - Traming and Development

All newdy appointed Directors are provided with a tailored induction programme
based on therr existing skills and expenence The Board 1s also informed of any
matenal changes to laws and regulations affecting the Group's business

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary,
and each Director and each Board Committee may take independent professional
advica at the Company’s expense, subject to pnor notification to the other
Non-Executive Directors and the Company Secretary The Company maintains
appropnate Directors and Officers insurance

Exacutive and Non-Executive Directors - Performance Evaluation

There 1s a formal process in place for the performance evaluation of the Board,
its Committees and individual (irectars Each Director 1s given the opportumity
to express their views on the organisation and operation of the Board and 1ts
Commuttees, thew effectiveness and contnbution to the business, and on any
other matter they consider refevant

The Chairman holds reguiar development reviews with each Director and an
internal Board evaluation was factitated by the Chairman who provided the
other members of the Board wath a confidential questionnare The findings were
presented to the Board

The evaluation did not highlight any areas of concem and the Diractors are
satshied the Board and its Commuttees are operating effectvely

The Board and the Nomination Committee will consider the utput from the
evaluation programmae in their evaluaton of the skills, knowledge and expenence
of the Board, and in formulating development plans

BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board with their duties, there are three principal Board
Committees, being the Audit Comnuties, the Rermuneratron Commuttee and the
Nemination Committee The Commutiees are govemed by terms of reference
which provide detail of matters delegated to each Commuttes and the authonty
they have to make decisions Full terms of reference are available on request and
on the Company’s website

i

Attendance by Directors at Board and Cornmittee meetings dunng the Year and
the total number of mestings that they could have attended are set out in the
table befow All Directors sttended all meetings of the Board and of Committees
of the Board of which they were members unless prevented from doing so

by pnior commitments The Board 15 satisfied that currently no one Director
aexercises a disproportionate influence
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Attendance at mestings of Commuttees 1s set out on page 43

Directors who served on the Committee dunng the Year werg

Simon Bentiey, the Chairman of the Audit Commuttee 1s 8 Chartered Accountant,
has relevant financial expenence and 1s supported by the rest of the Committes
All of the members of the Commuttee are considered independent, ensunng that
the interests of the Sharehalders are properly protected in relation to financial
reporting end intemal control

In addition to the Committee members, the extemal auditors are invited to
attend meetings of the Commuttee, save for those parts of any meeting when the
Committee reviews the performance of the audrtors and when the Commuttee is
hawving separate discussions with the Group Finance Director, who also attends
when requested The Committee meets the auditors in the absence of Executive
Management at least twice a year and the Chairman of the Audit Commttee
meets with the auditors as and when it 15 needed

Where requasted by the Board, the Audit Committee can prowide advice on
whether the Annual Report and accounts, taken as a whole, 1s fair, batanced
and understandable and provides the information necessary for shareholders to
assess the Company s performance, business model and strategy

The Comnuttee met on three accasions dunng the Year The Audit Commuttee
will meet not less than three times a year this could be mereased depending on
the Group's requirements

Tha Commuttes’s programme 18 pre-planned to ensure that each aspect of its
rasponsibiities 1s discharged as part of an annuat cycle dunng the Company's
financial year

The main rasponsibilities of the Audit Committes include

* Assisting the Board wath the discharge of its responsibilities in relation to
internal and external audits and controls

= Agreeing the scope of the annual eudit and the annual audit ptan and
monitarmg the same

* Reviewing and montonng the independence of the extemal auditors and
relationships with them and n particular agreemg and monitonng the extent
of the non-audit work that may be undertaken

Monitoring, making judgements and recommendations on the financial
reporting process and the integrity and clarity of the Group s financial
statements

* Rewviewing and momtonng the effectiveness of the internal control and nisk
management policies and systems in place

+ Montonng the audit of the annual and conschdated accounts
+ Reporting to the Board on how it has discharged its responsibilibies

What haz the Committes done dunng the year?

+ Montored the effectiveness of internal controls, and also considered the
current economic cimate and its hikely impact on the Group

« Considered the reappointment of the auditors
* Reviewed accounting policies, presentations and the financtal statemants
= Approved policy for non-audit work

On an annual basis, the Audit Committee considers the reappointment of the
auditors and their remuneration and makes recommendations to the Board The
auditors are appointed each year at the Annual General Meeting The Committes
consider the leve! of service provided by the auditors and therr independence

The Commuittee recommend the reappaintment of Grant Thornton UK LLP for
£¥14 The Commuttee behieves therr independence, the objectivity of the external
audit and the effectiveness of the audit process 1s safeguarded and remains
strong This s displayed through their robust intarnal processes, therr continuing
challenge, their focused reporung and thewr discussions with both management
and the Audt Committes

To mantain the objectiity of the audit pracess, the external auditors are
required to rotate audit partners for the Group audit every five years and the
current lead partner has been in place for four years Under the Corporate
Govemance Code 2012, audit sewices must be put to tender at least every
ten years or else we must explain why we have not dene so Our current
auditors, namely Grant Thornton UK LLP, have been in place since the histmg
n February 2007

The Committee has approved a pelicy on the engagement of the external
audrtors for non-audit work, in order 1o ensure that the objectivity of the auditors’
opinon on the Group’s financial statements 1s not or may not be seen to be
imparred, and hes established a process to monitor compliance

The policy identified three categones of potential work.

Auditor Authority
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Directors who served on the Commuttes dunng the Year were

The Remuneration Committee assists the Board to ensure appropnate levels of
pay and benefits are in place for Executve and Non-Executive Directors A key
pnonty s to ensure that remuneration policy 1s ahgned with strategy to achieve
the long term success of the Group The Commuttee ensures that it complies
with the requirements of regulatory and govemance bodies including the UX
Code whilst meeting shareholder and employee expectations All members of
the Committee are Non-Executive Directors and are considered independent

The responsibilibes of the Remuneration Committes include

= Determiming the Company’s poficy on Executive remuneration, including
the design of bonus schemes and targets and payments made thereunder

Deterrmiming the levels of remuneration for the Chairman and each of the
Executive Directars

Monitonng the remuneration of Servor Managemertt and making
recommendations in respect thereof

« Agreeing any compsnsation for loss of office of any Executive Dhrector

The Rernuneration Comimittee meets at [east three tmes a year and met on
three occasions during the Year

A report on the remuneration of Directors appears on pages 48 to 50
What has the Commuttes done dunng the year?

* Reviewed Executive remungration to include salanes and bonuses

« Reviewed and approved the Directors” Remuneration Report contamned
on pages 47 to 50

Full detads of Directors’ remuneration can be found in the Remuneration Report
on pages 48 and 49

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Members of the Nomination Commuittee dunng the Year were

The Nomination Commuttee will meet at least once a year and will also mest
when appropriate The Committee met on two occasions dunng the Year

All of the Nomination Commuttee members are Non-Executive Directors and
considered independent

The responsthilties of the Nominatton Commuttae include

* Review the Board's structurs

« Review the composition and make up of the Board, meluding evatuating the
balance of skills, knowledge and experience of the members of the Board

« Gve constderation to succession planning for Directors

« Prapare a descnption of the role and capabilities required for any
Board appointment

* Make recommendations to the Board concerming the standing for
reappointment of Directors

Identtify potential candidates to be appointed as Directors, and make
recommendations to the Board as the need may anse

The Board has established a Nomination Commuttes to ensure a formal, ngorous
and transparent procedure for the appontment of new Directors to the Board
The composttion of that Commuttee and & descnption of its terms of reference
are et gut on the Sports Direct Intemattonal plc website

The Nomination Commuittee also determunes successton plans for the Chaiman
gnd the Chief Executive who are not present at meetings when the matter 15
discussed Succession plans are reviewed by the Nomination Commuttee at
least once a year

Dave Forsey, the Chief Executive, will usually attend meetings of the Nomination
Committee, unless the Nomination Committee (s dealing wath matters relating to
tum or with the appomtrment of s successor

The Board believes that the Board and ts Committees as currently constituted
are working well
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UK BRIBERY ACT

REMUNERATION

Following the intreduction of the UK Bnbery Act, all policies and procedures
have been reviewed to ensure that they comply with the Act and measures are
n place to prevant employees accepting bnbes

BUSINESS MODEL

The Remuneration Committee ts responsible for determiming and reviewing
remuneration policy and setting remuneration levels See Remuneration Report
on pages 47 to 50

SHARE DEALING CODE

Qur business model, which sets out the basis on which the Company generates
or preserves value over the longer term, and the strategy for delivering the
ohjectives of the Company can be found &t page 5

WHISTLE-BLOWING

The Group has a formal whistle-blowing policy for employees who wish to raise
any 1ssues or concemns relating to the Company s or Group's activities on a
confidential basis

GOING CONCERN

The Company’s business activities, togsther wath the factors likely to affect
its future development, performance and position are set out in the Business
Rewiew on pages 1810 31

The financeal position of the Company, its cash flows, liquidity pesition and
borrowang faciities are descnbed in the Finance Director 5 Review on pages
32to 35 Inaddon, notes 27 and 28 of the financial statements include the
Group's objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital, s financial
nsk management objectives, details of ats financal instruments and hedging
activities, and ts exposures to crednt nsk and liquidity nsk

The Company 1s profitable, ighty cash generative and has considerable financial
resources The Company continues to operate comfortably within its banking
facilities and covenants, which run untl March 2015 The Company 1s well
placed to take advantage of strategic opportunities as they anse

As a conssquence, the Directors believe that the Company s well-placed

to manage its business nsks successfully despite the continued uncertain
economuc outlook The Directors have a reasonabls expectation that the
company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foresesable future Thus they continue to adopt the going concem basis of
accounting n prepanng the annual financial statements

RELATIONS WITH SRAREHOLDERS

The Board recognise the importance of communicating with shareholders This
15 dong through the Annual Report and financial statements, tntenm statements
and trading updates All Directors are available at the Annual General Mesting
when shareholders have the opportunity to ask questions

The Chairman, Chief Executive and Finance Director requdarty meet with the
Company's institutional shareholders to discuss the Group's strategy and
financial performance within the constraints of information already available to
the public The Senior Independent Non-Executive Director 1s also available to
meet with shareholders

Keith Hellawell, Dawd Singleton and Claire Jenkins met with shareholders and
instrtutions to discuss various topics throughout the Year and to gan a better
understanding of the views of sharehotders

Tha Company’s webstte 1s an important method of communication and holds
all matenal information reported ta the London Stock Exchange together with
copies of financsal reports, intenm management statements and trading updates

The Group has adopted the Model Code as published in the UK Listing Rules

Anyone deemed to have ‘insider mformatien’ must seek consent before dealing
n the Group s shares

The Executive Directors require the consent of the Chairman or the Sentor
Independent Director and the Chairman requires consent from the Chief
Executive and the Senior Independent Non-Executive Director Any other
employees with ‘insider information’ must gan the consent of the Chief
Executrve or Company Secretary before dealing in the Group s shares

Details concerming the share caprtal structure of the Company can be found in
the Director s Report on pages 38 to 40

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The kay features of the Group s systemn of intemal control and nsk management
systems in relation to the finangial reporting process and the preparation of the
Group accounts are set out below or cross-eferred to other parts of the Annual
Aeport where relevant

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for determining the nature

amd extent of the significant nisks it 1s walling to take in achieving its strategic
objectives and for mantaining scund nsk management and intemnal centrol
systems, and for reviewing therr effectiveness The nsk management process
and systems of internal control are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
nsk of fatures to achieve the Company s objectives It should be recogmised that
such systems can only prowide reasonable but not absolute assurance agamst
matenal misstatement or loss

ASSESSMENT OF BUSINESS RISK

A system to identify, assess, and evaluate busimess nsk 1s embedded wathin
the management processes throughout the Group Strategic nisks are regularly
reviewed by the Board Risks relating to the key actwvities within the subsidiary
operating units are assessed continuously

Further details of the nsks and uncertainties relating to the Group’s business,
and how the Group sesks to mitigate these, can be found on pages 28 to 31

By Order of the Board

Rebecca Tylee-Birdsall
Company Secretary
18 July 2013
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The remuneration policy of the company 15 very closely aligned to ts commercial strategy for long term profitable growth, its very
strong employee performance culture and a reward ethos of “One Team”

The remuneration package for Sentor Executives 1s mghly performance-based,
with the performance element paid in shares, which encourages the growth
and long-term success of the Group The Executive Directors’ basic salanes
have been set at a level well below the lower quartle for a business of the size
and complexity of the Group and have remained the same since 2002 Semor
Executive salanies will not increase in 2013 / 2014 The Semor Executives enjoy
no additional bensfits

The Executive and Employee Bonus Share Schemes are closely aligned and
reflactive of the “One Team” ethos To dnve sustained business performance,
nstead of granting smaller awards on an annual basis, larger upfront awards are
grented which only vest if significant and consistent growth 1s delivered year

on year The extended time honzon for vesting of awards for the 2011 Executive
Share Bonus Scheme 1s six years {in 2017}

Clzar, published and stretching performance targets must be fully satisfied
before any proportion of the share awards vest Aligned to the Company’s
performance culture, the executive and employee share schemes are designed
on the basis that awards should vest in full for achieving the upper end of stretch
targets {1 8 with an ‘all or nothing vesting schedule) rather than providing for

a lower level of vesting for meeting a threshold targst nsing to full vesting for
achigving the stretch targets (1 e a scaled vesting schedule}

In 2014 the Remuneration Commuttes intend to raise the required shareholding
value of Executive Directors to two times annual salary whie employed by
the Company

The Remuneration Commuttee strongly believes that this simple and transparent
incentive framework ts aligned with the Company strategy for growth We
bebeve that this remuneration strategy has also directly dnven histonc
out-performance of the stretch targets set by the Remuneration Commuttee,
cemented a “One Team" culture across all tevels of the Company, supported

the Group s success and has clearly led to increased shareholder value snce
inception in 2009 In this regard, cur remuneration arrangements are talored

to the cutture and strategy of the Company, take account of the cument and
forecasted economic climate, and are already providing a strong platform for the
ongoing long-term success of the Company

This report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Regulation
Il and Schedule 8 of the Large and Medwm-sized Companies and Groups
{Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 (the Regulations) and of the Corporate
Govemnance Code

THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee consists of Simon Bentley, Dave Singleton, Claire
Jenkins and Charles McCreevy who are Independent Non-Executive Directors,
and Keith Hellawell who is the Non-Executive Chairman

The role and man responsibiities of the Committee are detaled n the Corporate
Governance Report on page 45

Attendance at the meetings held dunng the Year is detailed on page 43

ADVISERS

Dave Forsey, the Chief Executive, Bob Melors, the Group Finance Director, and
Mike Ashley, the Executive Deputy Chairman, have also adwised or matenally
assisted the Commuttea when requested

REMUNERATION POLICY

The aim of the Group 1s to achieve long-term success and increase shareholder
vatue This is underpmned by the main principles of the Remuneration
Commuttee to ensure polictes and practices are i place to encourage
performance which will in turn help achiove this success

The Committee has endorsed the provisions of Section O of the UX Corporate
Governance Code, and has had those prowisions in mind when deterrmining
remuneration policies for the past, cument and future years

The retail environment in which the Group operates 15 lighly competitive so
the Commuttee ensures that the level and form of remuneration is sufficient to
attract, retain and motvate Directors and Senior Managers of the guality and
talent required to run the Group successfully

The remuneration policy for Executive Directors 1 hughly performance-based
which links the Executive Directors reward to the growth and long-term success
of the Group All performance-based remuneraton 1s paid in shares to align the
interest of the Executive Directors with the interest of shareholders

Basic salanes have been set at a level wefl below the lower quartile fora
business of the size and complexity of the Group and have remained the

same since 2002 Dunng the Year the performance-related elements of the
remuneration packages consisted of participation in the Executive Bonus Share
Scheme, although there are no other benefits Full details are on page 48

Mike Ashley does not receve a salary for his role and has not received a bonus

The Commuttee consults major shareholders and representative Groups where
appropnate concerning remuneration matters

The Commuttes is at all tmes rmindful of the Company's social, ethical and
environmental responsibilities, and i1s satished that current remuneration
arrangements do not inadvertently encourage rresponsible behaviour

The Committee has reviewed the salanes, ather remuneration and other
employment condrtions of sensor and middle managers throughout the Group,
and has taken them into account in considenng Directors’ salanes and the
creation of néw incentive schemes in order to create a sense of common
purpose and shanng of success The Executive Bonus Share Scheme
performance targets muror those to be apphed to awards under the Bonus Share
Scheme which will apply to all UX permanent employees of the Group in UX
Retadl, Brands and Head Office on the same basis

The Committee is mindfut that any bonus arrangements are balanced against
delivening sustainable growth in eammings for shareholders

The Committes’s remuneration policy In respect of the Non-Executive Directors
1 to pay annual fees which reflect the responsibdities and duties placed upon
them, whils also having regard to market practice
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT continue

BASIC SALARY

Basic salanes are reviewed annually In the review in 2013 the Committee
decided again not to after Executive Directors salanes Executive Directors’
salaries have now been at the same level since 2002

The bas:c salanes of Executive Directors at the Year end and at 18 July
2013 (the latest practicable date before the prnting of this report) were
as shown balow

£150,000
£150,000

ANNUAL BONUS SCHEME

The Committee has determined that no Annual Bonus Scheme will be
operated for Executive Directors while the Executive Bonus Share Scheme is
bemng operated

EXECUTIVE BONUS SHARE SCHEME

The Exectiive Bonus Share Scheme was approved at the Company’s

Annual Genera! Mesting 1n September 2010 to motivate and help improve the
retention of the Executives and to drive underlying Group EBITDA 1 ine with
Group strategy

Subject to continued employment, each Executive and two members of Senior
Management will have the night to exercise their options te acquire one milion
shares each in the Company from August 2013 as the Company has attained the
following targets

* Underhying EBITDA of £195m (Net of the cost of the scheme) in 2010-2011,
and

= Underlying EBITDA /Net Debt ratio of 2 or less at the end of 2010-11
A further Executive Bonus Share Scheme 1s currently in operaticn Each
Executive and two members of Serior Management have been granted an
award of one million shares each which will vest if the Company attains all the
following targets

¢ Underlying EBITDA of £215m in 2012

+ Underlying EBITDA of £250m 1n 2013

+ Undertying EBITDA of £260m m 2014

+ Underfying EBITDA of £300m in 2015

* Indwidual satisfactory employment performance

The bonus will vest in 2017 subject to continuous employment to this date The
targets and vest dates are n line with the Employee Bonus Share Scheme

In respect of each relevant year, the Committee will adjust reported underlying
Group EBITDA for the purpose of the scheme to ensure consistency i the
calculation of underlying EBITDA end to ensure that underying EBITDA 15 a far
companson year by year, for example, by eliminating the impact of acquisitions
where the cost of acguisitions 15 not reflected in undertying EBITDA

Undertyng EBITDA is as defined on page 33 and is not at constant foreign
currency exchange rates

In the event of a takeover, schems of arrangement {other than a schema to
create a new holding company for the Company having substantally the same
shareholders as the Company) or voluntary winding-up of the Company, share
awards will vest in full following such an event to the extent the performance
conditions have been met If the performance condihions have not been met the
awards will lapse

PENSION

The Executive Directors are entitled to partcipate n a stakeholder pension
scheme under which the Company makes a contnibution although they have
opted out of this

SHARE OWNERSHIP POLICY

The Board believes 1t 1s important that Executive Directors have a significant
holding in the captal of the Company

In order to participate in the Executive Bonus Share Scheme, there are current
internal guidelines that the Executrve Directors wilt be required to maintain a
munimum level of shareholding in the Company equivalent to one year's salary
while they reman employed by the Company However these guidelines can

be waived with the permission of the Board The Board applied ther discretion
dunng 2013 and allowed Dave Forsey and Bab Mellors to sell their remaining
shares Permission to sell the shares was granted by the Board as they had the
knowledge that hoth Dave Forsey and Bob Mellars would shortly receive a large
number of shares due to the vesting of the Executive Bonus Share Scheme

The sale of the shares by the Directors was reported in an RNS announcement
and also on the Company’s website

SERVICE CONTRACTS

All Executive Directors are employed on a rolling 12 month contract which 1s
terminatle by erther party on 12 months wniten notice The Company may elect
to termunate the employment of Dave Forsey and/or Bob Mellors by making 2
payment in heu of notice equal to the basic salary that the Director would have
recesved dunng the notice penod or, if notice has already been grven, dunng the
remainder thereof

Details of the letters of appotment are set out below

Engtand & Wales

England & Wales
England & Wales

LZMoriths

Any enttlement to benefits under any share-related incentive scheme 1s
determuned in accordance wath the rules of that scheme

Each Executive Director’s service contract automatically terminates on the date
that the Director reaches such age as is determined by the Board from time to
time as the retirement age for Executive Diectors
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORSHIPS

The Non-Executive Directors enter nto an agreement with the Group for a Details of the letters of appomtment are set out below
penod of three years The appointments of the Non-Executive Directors may be
termunated by either party on one month’s written notice and tn accordance with
the Articles of Association of the Company Termination would be immediate in
certain circumstances {including the bankruptcy of the Non-Executive Director)

24/11/2009

Non-Executive Directors do not and are not entitled to participate in any bonus K 02/03/2007
or share scheme For more infarmation see Chaiman’s opton on page 50 T g S
: o ) 2501072007
Non-Executive Directors are subject to confidentalty undertakings without
31/03/20m
fimrtation in tme  Non-Executive Directors are not entrifed to recewve any - - ——i - -
compensation on the termination of their appointment e Jldn . A 25/05/2001

Fees for Non-Executive Directors are set out on page 50

PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph, shows the Company s performance measured by the Total Shareholder Retum compared with the performance of the FTSE 250 index (excluding
investrnent trusts)

The Commuttee considered this an appropnate index aganst which to compare the Company's perfermance as it 1s wadely eccepted as a national measure and
inctudes the companies that investors are likely to consider alternative nvestments

Histeric Toto! Sheteh Return
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DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT continues

AUDITOR'S REPORT

DIRECTORS” SHAREHOLDINGS

The aucitors are required to report on the informatron contained in the
follawing section of this report, other than in respect of Non-Executive
Directors’ shareholding

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 2013

The follpwing pages set out an analysis of Directors’ emoluments and
annual bonus, entitiements under the Executive Bonus Share Scheme
and shareholdings

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

An analysis of Directors’ emoluments relating to salary and Directors fees,
annual bonus and other benefits {other than entitements under the Executive
Bonus Share Scheme and in respect of pensions) for the Year 15 set out below

Executive Diractors Dave Forsey and Bob Mellors have 1,000,000 share options
eath which vest in August 2013 These have not been inserted into the table as
they have not yet been earned by the Directors Due to this the Directors have
not had the option to teke the shares dunng the Year

The aggregate of Directors’ emoluments in the Year was £655,000
(2012 £774,000)

For further details on the Executive Bonus Share Scheme refer to page 48

CHAIRMAN'S OPTION

As part of his fee, Keith Hellawell 1s entitled each year to exercise an option to
acquire 50,000 shares for £0 10 per share From the 30 Apnl 2012, Xeith opted
to permanenty waive his share entittement

ANNUAL BONUS SCHEME

There is cumently no annual bonus scheme in place

The beneficial nterests of the Directors in office on 28 Apnl 2013 and of ther
families in both cases at the begmning of the Year, or at the date of appointment
if later, and at the end of the Year in the share capital of the Company are
shown below

385,400,000

. 50,00 50,000
803,922 .
130,000 130,000

20,000
53,621

Dave Singleton
Charman of the Remuneration Commuttee
18 July 2013
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES ana responsibitey statement

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors ara responsible for prepanng the Annual Report, the Remuneration
Report and the Company and Group financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each
financial year Under that law the Directors are required to prepare the Group
financial statements in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting
Standerds (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union

The Directors have elected to prepare the Company financial statements in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practices
{UK GAAP}

Under company law the Directors must not approve the Financial Statements
urdess they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affars
and profit or loss of the Company and Group for that peniod In prepanng the
financial statements the Directors are required to

« select surtable accounting pelicies and then apply them consistently,
+ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

« for the Group financial statements, state whether apphcable [FRSs have
been followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explaned
in the financial statement,

+ for the Company financial statements, state whether applicable UK
Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unfess it1s
nappropnate to presume that the Company and Group will continue in
business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records

that are sufficient to show and explam the Company s transactions and

disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tme the financial position of the
Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements, and the
Remuneration Report, comply with the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of

the IAS Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other irreguiariies

The Directors confirm that

+ go far as each Diractor i1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of
which the Company s audstors are unaware, and

* the Directors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
auditors are aware of that information

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnity of the corporate
and financial information included on the Company’s website Legislation in

the tUnited Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financia!
statements may differ from legislation in other unsdictions

To the best of our knowledge

{a} the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the applicable set of
accounting standards, give a true and fair iew of the assets, habilives, financiat
position and profit of the Company and of the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole,

and

{b} the management report includes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the Company and the
undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a
description of the pnncipal nsks and uncertainties that they face

On behatf of the Board

Dava Forsey Bob Matlors

Chief Executive Group Finance Director
18 .July 2013
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

Corporate Responsibility 1s central to our vision to be an industry leader Our established Corporate Responsibility framework focuses
on five key areas Employees, Health and Safety, the Environment, Customers and the Community Sports Direct has developed Key
Performance Indicators {KPIs) to ensure we deliver on our commitments These KPls are further discussed in this report and in the
Chief Executive’s Report and Business Review, and are based solely on our UK operations

EMPLOYEES

Our people are at the very heart of our business, and as we continue to grow

it 15 the skill and enthusiasm of our ¢ 24,000 employees that are key to our
success Our abiity to attract, retain and develop the best people 1s crucial to
achieving our strategic objectves Wa have an established Bonus Share Scheme
that is apphcable to employees at every level of our businass, and robust training
iniatives to ensure our employees best understand the essential rofe they play
in driving the business forward

KO Oilights

DI 4 | VLB
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Attracting our People

In no small measure, the progress we continue to make 1s down to the
dedication and expertse of our staff We belteve that performance-based
rewards motivate colleagues, help improve employee retenbon and align the
interests of employees and shareholders We incentivisa our staff by enabling
them to share in the business’ success through the Bonus Share Scheme (f the
Group reaches the EBITDA targets (detailed in the table below) and employees
performance 13 deemed satistactory, eligible employees wall receive Sports
Direct shares

Alof £215m

B

2015305

Approximately 27 rillion shares will be distnbuted between eligible employees
upon successful completion of the scheme, ¢ 6 milkion shares will vest m 2015
and ¢ 21 mallion n 2047

Retaining our People

Employes retention is extremely important in order for us to retain expertise and
measure employes satisfaction For this reason 1t 1s one of our key performance
ndicators This year 15 5% of our UK employees left the business, down from
17% 1n 2012, the vast majonty of them were from our stores

Salaned staff turnover since FY09

0%

0%
FYo9 FY10 Y FY12 Y13

The Group also has several policies and systems to in place to ensure employee
welfare 1s monitored and maintained These are latd out in the diagram befow

EQUAL OPFORTUNITY &
DIVEASITY POLICY

TAILORED EMPLOYEE ® RIGHT TG A

HANDROOK TRADE UNION

STAFF FORUM

Developing our Peopla

Sparts Oirect 15 commutted to encouraging and developing our people We
believe that offening the nght training and development for our statf wall not only
help each mdviduat prograss, but will also enhance productivity and the overall
customer expenence We have invested significantly in training over the last few
years, and in 2012 alone over 40,000 hours were spent on trainung at

Sports Direct

We are proud to offer a great portiolio of traiming courses, al! housed in state of
the art faciives at our Shirebrook Campus This ensures every member of our
team has the opportunity to be insprred, stmulated, motivated and to be better
n their role




The Business Raview Mansgement & Gevernancs Financial St & Notes Addi

5l

Wa have extensive operationa! and skilis training at Sports Direct, as well as
genera! job performance and management development courses Our operational
and skills traming takes place n four specialised traimng enviranments at our
Shirebrook Campus, focused on running, football, women's and SKU (Sports
Knowledge Underground) These specialised emvironments ensure that our staff
are equipped with the most up-to-date knowledge to enable them to confidently
adwise customers on specific product choices, such as the most relevant tramer
for thewr runnung style

Nike Training
Our Internationa! Nike Academy 1s the only such facility in the world and offers
an unnvalled training expenence

Sports Direct uses an online training programme in conjunction with Nike, called
SKU {Sports Knowledge Underground) Full completion of the academy training
programme means that staff have invested 15 hours of their time in learning
about Nike products, Nike technology and how best to sell it We are the warld
Number One m terms of the percentage completion for a multiple door retader

Key Highlights of Traming Programma Include

+ 32 specialist Nike traiming days have taken place since August 2010

« 252 staff have progressed to graduate level

+ G4 graduates have also attended a bespoke post-graduate training day
* Further product and graduate traiming will take place in 2013

adidas and Puma and Traiming

We also work closely with adidas and Puma to create extensive traming
programmes to support in-store iIntiatives and products In 2012, 358 people
sttended adidas sessions on product knowledge and selling skills This year we
opensd new Puma training rooms at our Shirebraok campus and, throughout
2013, wall continue to offer traiming to capture new product releases

Induction Training

All of our managers attend a two-week residential induction programme at
Shurebrook to ensure that they are able to perform therr job effectively The
modules covered consist of a mudure of shop floor-based traming and classroom
actvities, and focus on merchandising, product training, administration, delivery
process, health end safety, shop closure procedurs and retail business skils

Management Development Training

We have an internal promotion programme aimed at full-tme staff and
supervisors who are aspinng to move into management posiions As part

af this, we hold a 5-day residential programme at our Shirebrook campus
which consists of a combination of trainer-led modules The modules focus on
operational tramning and the skills and behaviour measures that form part of
an employes's role, covenng areas such as communication, leadership, and
decision-making

The Future of Yraiming

2013 15 set to be another groundbreaking year as we work to develop a bespoke
onhne training platform that wall farm the basis of every new starter’s induction
to the business Designed to be informative, interactive and fun, the platform will
be available on any mobile device and will provide knowledge, consistency and
improved selling and service skills to all employees

WA

v s, NANY -

HEALTH AND SAFETY

Sports Direct 1s committed to appropnate standards of health and safety

Qur Board has uttmate responsibdity for health and safety across the Group,
and we regularly review our procedures to ensure safety management 1s robust
The continued emphasis on in the business has improved awareness of
reporting and recording of incidents

Key Figures

* No environmental prosecutions or work related fatalmes

* In FY13, 1854 (2012 1711) accidents were reported to Head Office,
of which 67 (2012 65) were reportable to the Health and Safety Executive

* 3% of accidents occurred in store and 29% were ships, tnps and falls

The increase in accident figures has coincided wath the increase in
store portfolio
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[:UHPUHATE HESPUNSIB'”W HEP"HT continued

ENVIRONMENT

Wa recognise that we have a responsibdity to manage the impact our business
has an the environment, and we are comunitted to reducing this both now and
n the future We continue to comply with the Govemment’s Carbon Reduction
Commitment, and have identfied key areas where we can make a difference, in
particular energy usege in our stores, transport and waste managemsnt

Carhon Footpnm

We are continuously aiming to reduce our carbon footprint The single most
signficant element i1s electnoity, which makes up 83% of the footpnnt The
carbon footpnnt spread across all UK sites 1s detailed in the chart below

Carbon Footprint Analysis 1st April 2012 - 31 March 2013

I Erectncny 83 4%
- Diesel 12 9%
Other 10%

The effect of mcreased trading hours in the run up to the Olympics has
contributed to a small increase in energy consumption across 239 like stores,
and therefore an unavoidable increase in the amount of electneity used We set
our energy efficient banchmarks against FY08 year, compared to wiich we have
made sigmificant reductions of 25% across the like stores

Energy Consumption Indexed on 2008 kWh per 000 sq &t

2008 009 W Fulll m2 03

The table below details Electnoity vs Sales and shows a pro rata saving of 5%
across the year

2013
30,952
9%

The emissions for electncrty and gas are based on CRC scheme methodology
and enly include CO, emmssions The ermissions declared are for the penod
Apni 2012 — 31 March 2013 in line with the CRC protocol

Waste Reduction
We are actively reducing the amount of waste we send to landfill and segregate
waste to ensure that we recycle as much as possible

o (R I ) e

All stores now use biodegradable carmer bags and prowide the option of “a
bag for kfe” This 15 actively promated in-stors through high levels of
employee engagement

Looking ahead, we will continue our commitment to nunimise waste and
improve energy efficiency across our stores

CUSTOMERS

Custorner service 1s at the forefront of our busmess We aim to prowide
customers with an enjoyable expenence both in-store and online and ensure all
our products are safe and fit for purpose

Monrtonng customer satsfaction and responding to quenes 1s a continuous
process All written complaints are recorded, including an analys:s of the nature
of the complaint so that trends can be assessed and appropnate action taken

We have an online customer contact form that reduces the tms it takes for
our customers to contact us and ncreases the volume of contact Online
communication has reduced the amount of tme it takes for us to respond to
guenes thereby increasing our service levels, while reducing the print and
postage costs for both the Group and customers

Wa are continuously working to improve customer service at all levels within the
Group from the retail stores, Head Office and through to our website

COMMUNITY

Supply Cham

Wae are committed to responsible bus:ness practices in our own business

and within our supply chain We continug to procure merchandise from
manufacturers who have proved to uphold ethical employment and trading
practices, and we have a stnct Code of Ethics that we require every suppber to
adhere to The code prowides for the fair treatment of workers, ensuning a safe
environmant in accordance with the local and national laws where workers are
treated with respect and paid fauty for what they do The code also ensures
there 1s no child labour and no use of illegel means or matenals in the production
of goods

Wa have longstanding relationships with our supplers who have demonstrated
that their work practices are consistent with the Sports Direct’s standards
Approximately 40% of our current supphers have been working wath the
Company for 10 years or more

We have worked with two leading supply chain companies in Singapore and
South Korea for a number of years Using their local knowledge and expenence
hefps benefit the business and the communibes in which they operate Both
businesses have the highest social and business ethics code which aligns
with our own Code of Ethics, the BSCI Code of Conduct (wiich s based upon
the United Nations Dectaration of Human Rights), 1S09001 and the Social
Accountability 8000 (SA8000) Code
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Sports Direct relies on those supply chain companies to inspect the premises of
all supphers and manufacturers Frequent inspections are camed out randomly
to ensure that goods meet our quality standards as well as assessing conunued
comphiance with SAG000 end our Code of Ethics We cease immediately to work
with suppliers who do not meet our cntena

We comply with an intemationally recognised hist of chemicals that are banned
for use in fabnes The supply chain companies conduct random tests on fabric
which ara then taken to a recognised labaratory for qualty testing and to ensure
that banned chemicals are not being used

Charity
Sport 1s our passion We believe that everyone should have a chance to

paricipate in sports and enjoy the health and bfestyle benefits it bnngs Wa
provide a wide range of equipment and clothing to promete sports participation
amongst peaple of all abilities, including those who would not normally have
access to equipment and facilities

Slazenger Chance to Shine’

Slazenger are the exclusive cricket equipment supplier to the country s most
recognised grassroots cncket development programme, ‘Chance to Shine
supported by Bnt Insurance Each project provides structured coaching and a
competition progremme for a group of schools who would not have otherwise
had the chance to participate in the sport

8y 2012, the programme had reached one third of all pnmary and secondary
schools emounting to almost 7,000 schools and has supported two million
young people, almost half of whom are girls Cver £500,000 worth of cricket
equpment has been supplied by Slazenger to enable the programme to

run successfully

Dunlop

Dunlop works together with its sponsored professional golfers Lee Westwood
and Darren Clarke to supply clothing to their ‘golf schools’ These are junior
player development schemes which prowde qualified coaching and mentonng
10 youngsters

Cver £20,000 worth of clothing has been prowided through sponsorship to the
schemes so far

Lonsdale

Lonsdale 15 the Official Equipment and Fight Sports Apparel Supplier for all
three individual armed sesvices 1n the UK consisting of the RAF, the Army and
the Royat Navy Product to the value of £10,000 15 prowided each year and used
n competitrons

At a grassroots level, Lonsdale 1s also a sponsor of the Amateur Boxing
Association’s juruer and school boy finals and prowides 100 pairs of golden
ploves, worth £2,500 to the finalists

Evorlast

Everlast supplied USA Baxing, the national goverming body of amateur Olympic-
style boxing, with traming and competiion apparel, footwear and equipment for
the 2012 Olympic Games m London Everlast contrbuted over $200 000 to help
the womnen’s and men’s teams prepare for and compete n the Summer Games

Everast will continue to support the New York Gotden Gloves, the most
prestigious amateur boxing competrion in the US 1n 2013 Late last year,

the Golden Gloves headguarters were flooded dunng Humcane Sandy and all
equpment and ring dressings were lost Everlast supplied the New York
Golden Gloves with over $30,000 worth of apparel, footwear and equipment in
order to replace what was lost or demaged in the storm Everlast also provided
approximately $5,000 worth of equipment to local area gyms affected by

the storm

Everlast 15 also a major supporter of the Dr Theodore A Atlas Foundation, a non-
profit organisation that provides financial support to those in need, particulardy
children In 2012, Everast gave $10,000 in chantable donations Everlast has
also been a proud supporter of The Breast Cancer Research Foundation®
(BCAF} since 2006 Each year, Everdast donates a partion of sale proceeds from
select Everlast pink products, to help the foundation raise money for chinical and
genetic research In 2012, for the second consecutive year, Everlast made its
largest donation to date, handing over a cheque for $122,000 to the Foundation

Antigua Group

Also 1n the US, the Antigua Group has been & consistent supporter of a number
of chantable efforts, including The Salvation Army, Cystic Fibrosis Research,
Men Against Prostate Cancer, The Teddy Atias Foundation for Hurncane Sandy
Relef and The Phoenix Children’s Hosprtal

The Antigua Group also provides significant support for Jursor Golf in Arzona
Jumior player intiatives indude the Jumior Golf Association of Amenca, “Gids
Golt™ through the LPGA Foundation and The Antigua National High School Golf
Invitational
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

to the members of Sports Direct International plc

We have audited the group financial statements of Sports Direct intemational plc for the 52 week period ended 28 Apnl 2013 which

compnse the conselidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated balance sheet,

the consolidated cash flow statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the related notes The financial reporting
framewaork that has been applied in ther preparation 1s applicable law and Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as

adopted by the European Union

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been
undertaken 50 that we mght state to the company s members those matters we
are required to state to them in an auditor s report and for no other purpase To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our
audit work, for this teport, or for the opintons we have formed

Respective responsibilibies of Otrectors and auditor

As axplained more fully in the Directors Responsibilities Statement, the
Duectors are responsible for the preparation of the group financral statements
and for being satished that they give a true and fair wew Our responsibility s to
audst and express an opimon on the group financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and (ntemational Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)
Thosa standards require us to comply with the Auditng Practices Board s
{APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
A descniption of the scope of an audit of financial statements 1s prowided on the
APB's websita at www frc org uk/apb/scope/pavate cfm

QOpinion on financial statements
In our opinton the group financial statements

* give a true end fair view of the state of the group s affairs as at 28 Apnl 2013
and of s profit for the 52 week penod then ended,

» have been properly prepared in accordance with [FRSs as adopted by the
European Union, and

* have been prepared in accordance with the requrements of the Companies
Act 2006 and Articte 4 of the IAS Regulation

Cpinion on other matters prescribed by the Compames Act 2006
In our opimion

* tha information grven in the Directors” Report for the financial year for which
the group financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the group
financial statements , and

* the mformation given in the Corporate Governance Statement set out on
pages 39 to 44 with respect to intemal control and nsk management systems
n relatigon to finaneial reporting processes and about share capnal structures
15 consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to repart by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Compamnies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our
opinion

= certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law ara nat made,
or

« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our
audit, or

= a Corporate Governance Statement has not been prepared by the company
Under the Listing Rules, we are required to review

= the Directors statement, set out on pags 38, in relation to going concem,

the part of the Corporate Governance Staternent relating to the company's
compliance with the nine provisions of the UK Corparate Govemance Code
2010 specified for our review, and

certain elements of the report to shareholders by the Board on Directors
remuneralion

Other matter

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of
Sports Direct Intemational ple for the 52 week period ended 28 Apnl 2013 and
on the information in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that 1s descnbed as
having been audied

Paul Etheringtan BSc FCA CF

Senior Statutary Auditor

for and on behalf of Grant Thomton UK LLP
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
London

18 July 2013
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

for the 52 weeks ended 28 Apnil 2013

\

1,835,756

14 2,185,580

e {1.290822)  {1.091.480)

/), e FHMRS T T T 94,758 744,276
o, Sl e e E RGeS - : TR {689,578) (596,383)
R T 7199 5,263

T 6 625 5,619

’ 4,7 213,004 158,795

9 1473 {5,800}

10 3,066 5.426

i {11,637} {8 481)

’ 16 1,320 558

207,226 151,498

12 {55.569) {45,857)

151,657 105,631

151,596 106,198
61 (567)
4 151,657 105,631

Hisicleamingsipesshare]

SN "
ilitedibarmingsipar{sharo] , T 13 2442 1670
CrsenyanBasicieamngeipensharo i . K 26 85 1919

The consolidated income statement has heen prepared on the basis that all operations are continunng

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these hnancial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the 52 weeks ended 28 Apnt 2013a

151,657 105,631

12,436 {2.301)

o 7 15,408 {1,305)
R 196 8,085
e . 24 {2.018) {5.501)

o 17 1,011 {6,986}
-7 - 7,146

) 25 4,636 1,483

_108.253
182,865 106,820

61 (567)
182,526 106,253

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

for the 52 weeks ended 28 Apnl 2013

ASSETS -

Non-current 3 b i s LN O A
ET) et GhulEng . 14 332,036 313023

DRIV

- i5 240,420 225,150
T 16 32,117 29,470
T T 17 47,645 46,634

e n % 47,952 32,625

646,902

100,170

446,962

316,800

19 96,111 83,877

27 17,965 5,926

20 147,375 78,574

_— : - 708,413 485,277

JOTANASSELS R : o 1,408,583 1132179
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES R REREE ———
S e ' el o 21 64,060 54,060
o . 874,300 874,300

T {56,234} (55,839)

50 50

. 8,005 8,005

o 38,398 25,962

T (982,312) (987,312}

i ) {54,375) {57,684)

B oot 16,021 M7

Vo . 752,018 600,431

R 644,931 472,380

i - 7 (254) {505)

471,885

644,677

23 245621 214587

24 19,940 19,318
25 24,978 25,789
26 41.072 62,889

331,617 322,583

5 . ' 7 . 1,570
S W S 28 320,261 282819

23 55,753 9,303

. 56,275 44,019
432,289 331,711

763,906 660,294

1.408.583 1,132,179

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements The financial statements were approved by the Board an 18 July 2013 and
were signed on its behalf by

David Forsey
Director
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the 52 weeks ended 28 Apni 2013

159,004 206,679
‘ (44,673) (41,253}
114,421 165,426

19

T 625 -
I (96) -
TTa 2 {46,941) 126,214)
T {2,282) (2.921)

- - 14 {48.287) {129,402)
o . (523)
o 1473 1,346
1117 590

{155,804)

{94,272)

{7.196) (5,955)

B 404,970 160,435
(323,942) {143,309)

. . 5
{21,792) -

52,090 11,176

72,239 20,798

69,435 48,637

o 141,674 59,435

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the 52 weeks ended 28 April 2013

[6094) 440931 (47,255) 330,746

28,263

331,135

- - 5 5 . 5
" 20,643 - 20,543 - 20,643

KNP S 18,17 - 14178 - 14176
b bt s, o - - - - @ B
, - 34,819 5 34824 (327) 34497

(567) 10563

- 106,198

22,341

- {1,305)  (1,305) - [1,305)
< .7 . . 8086 8086 - B086
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T T . 160 . 160

. " 1,483 - 1483 - 1483
. . 80 . 80
TR o L, . - {2,381} - {2.381)

}79%74 W(z*iﬁ‘mi‘fm 593} 124681 6781 106820 (567)

106,253

(40480) 472.399 {505} 471,885

i : . 4o|z - a0 - 4m2
e .t 15,555 (16,728) - 2072) - {2072)
3581 - 3581 - 358

6.207 - 8297 - 629

i s;:f; DU - (398 - (395)

SRS 2.3 347) o7 {21,347) (21,347}

i fais i - - - - 19 190

i {2,838} - (9,924) 180 {9,734}

)] - 151,596 151,657

15,408 15,408 15,408
196 196 - 196

{2,818 . {2918} - {2818
- i 1,01t YT Y

R - 4,83 - 4636 - 4636
I P K . . - M35 - 1L135
1,301 - 130

164,425 15,604

182,465 182,526

,375) 752,018 (24,876} 644,931 {254} 64

The foreign currency translation reserve 15 used to record exchange differences ansing from the translation of the financial statements of foreign subsidianes and
associates

The Company holds 42,137,508 ordinary shares tn Treasury
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the 52 waeks ended 28 Apnl 2013

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements of Sports Direct Intematignal plc (the
“Company”) and its subsidianes (together the “Group™) have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union ("IFRS”)

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared i accordance

with IFRS as adopted for use mn the European Union (including Intemational
Accounting Standards {“IAS“) and Intemational Financral Reporting Standards
Commuttee {"IFRSC") interpretations} and with those parts of the Companies
Act 2006 applicable to compantes reporting under IFRS as adopted for use in
the European Union The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the histonical cost convention, as modified to include fair valuation of
certain financial assets and denvative financial instruments

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements consolidate the revenues, costs, assets,
liahiliies and cash flows of the Company and its subsidianes, being those
entibies i relation to which the Company has the power to govemn the financial
and operating policies, generally achieved by a share of more than 50% of the
voting nghts

On acquisttion, the assets and liabihties and contingent liabilities of a subsidiary
are measured at their fair values at the date of acquisiton Any excess of faur
value of the consideration transferred over the farr values of the identfizble

net assets acquired 1s recognised as goodwill Any deficiency of fair value of
congideration transferred below the fair values of the identifiable net assets
acquired 15 credited to the consolidated income statemnent in the penod of
acquistion The non-contralling interest rs stated &t the non-centroling mterest s
propartion of the far values of the assets, ltabiities and contingent liabilities
recogmised Costs incurred relating to acquisitons are expensed to the income
statement

The results of subsidianes acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated income statement from the effective date of acquisition or up
to the effective date of disposal, as appropniate

Intercompany transactions, balances end unreahsed gans and losses on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated

Associates and joint ventures

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence but not
control, generally accompanied by a share of between 20% and 50% of the
voting nghts

A joint venture is an entty in which the Group holds an interest on a long
term basig and which 15 jointly controlted by the Group and ane or more other
venturers under 8 contractual agreement

The Group's share of the results of associates and joint ventures 1s mctuded

in the Group's consolidated income statement using the equity method of
accounting lnvestments in assoctates and joint ventures are carmed in the
Group's cansolidated balance sheet at cost plus post acquisition changes in the
Group's share of the net assets of the assoctates and joint ventures, less any
mpaiment in value The carrying values of investments in assoctates and joint
ventures include acquired gosdwill

i the Group's share of losses i an associate or joint venture equals or exceeds
its investment i the associate or joint venture, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations to da so or made payments on
behalf of the associate or joint venture

Unreatsed gams ansing from transactions with associates and joint ventures are
ehminated to the extent of the Group’s tterest in the entity

investments

Available-for-sale mvestments are imtially recognised at fair value Where fair
value 1s different to cost, this is recognised in the income statement on initial
recegnition Subseguent gains and losses ansing from changes in fair value ara
recogmsed in the statement of other comprehensive income When the security
15 disposed of, de-recogmsed or 15 determined to be impaired the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised In other comprehensve rmcome 15 reclassified
from equity to the income statement as a reclassification adjustment within
other comprehensive income

Acquisttions

For business combinations achieved in stages, the Group re-measures its
previousty held equity interest in the acquiree at its acquisition-date faxr value
and recognises the resulting gain or loss, if any, 1n the income statement s
appropnate

Goodwill

Goodwall ansing on consolidation 1s recognised as an asset and reviewed for
impairment at least annually or when a change in circumstances or situation
ndicates that the goodwall has suffered an impairment loss The need for
impairment 15 tested by companng the markst value of the cash-generating unit
{CGU} to the camrying value Any impairment 1s recognised immediately in the
income statement Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed Gams and
losses on the disposal of a business include the amount of goodwiii relating to
that business

When the non-controlling interest of an existing subsidiary 1s acquired the
camying value of the non-controlling interests in the balance sheet 1s eliminated
Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interest 1s
adjusted and the farr value of the consideration paid «s recogmsed directly in
equity

Other intangible assets

Brands, trade marks and licences that are internally generated are not recorded
on the balance sheet Acquired brands, trade marks and licences are intially
camed on the balance sheet a1 cost  The far value of brands, trade marks and
heences that are acquired by virtue of a business combination i1s determined at
the date of acquisition and 1s subsequently assessed as being the deemed cost
to the Group

Expendsture on advertising and promotional activities 1s recognised as an
expense as Incurred

No amortisation s charged on those brands, trade marks or perpetual/ranewable
ficences with an indefinite Uifa as the Group believes that the value of these
brands and trade marks can be maintained indefinitely The Group carmes out

an impairment review of mdefinite iifa intangibles, at least annually, or when

a change in circumstances or situation indicates that those intangibles have
suffered an tmpairment loss Impairment s measured by companng the carrying
amount of the intangible asset as part of the cash-generating unit {CGU) with the
recoverable amount of the CGU, that 1s, the higher of its fair value less costs to
sell and 1ts value muse Value m use is calculated by using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the tme value of money and
the nsks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted

Amortisation 1s provided on other brands, trade marks and licences with a
definite ife on a straight fine basis over therr useful economee lives of 10 to 15
years and is accounted for within the seling, distnbution and administrative
expenses category within the income statement

Proparty, plant and aguipmant

Property, plant and equipment are stated at histoncal cost less depreciation lgss
any recogrused impaimment losses Cost includes expenditure that is directly
atinbutable to the acquisttion or construction of these items Subsequent costs
are mcluded in the asset’s carrying amount onty when 1t is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the rtem will flow to the Group and the costs
can be measured reliably
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All other costs, mcluding repairs and mantenance costs, are charged to the
income statement in the penod in which they are incurred

Depreciation 1s prowvided on all property, plant and equipment other than freehold
land and 1s calculated on a reducing balance basis or straight-ine basis,
whichever 1s deemed by the Directors to be more appropnate, to allocate cost
less assessed residual value, other than assets in the course of construction,
over the estimated useful hives, as follows

Freehold bulldings - 2% per annum - straight line

Long-termyshort term - over the terms of the lease - straight line
leasehold improviments

Plant and equipment - between 5% and 33% per annum - reducing balance

The assets’ useful lives and restdual values are reviewed and, if appropnate,
adjusted at each balance sheet date

The gain or loss ansing on disposal or scrapping of an asset 1s determingd as
the difference between the sales proceeds, net of selhing costs, and the carmying
amount of the asset and s recognised n the income statement

Impairment of assots other than goodwill and intangible assets with an
mdefinite ifa

At pach balance sheet date, the Directors review the carrying amounts of the
Group's tangible and intangible assets, other than goodwill and intangible assets
with an indefinite Iife, to determine whether there 1s any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset 1s estmated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss, f any Where the asset does not generate cash flows that
are independent from other assets, the Group estirnates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit, (CGU) to which the asset belangs With respect to
property, plant and equipment, each store is considered to be a CGU and where
onerous leases are noted the assets of each indwidual store are individually
assessed for impaiment

Recoverable amount 1s the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in
use In assessing value in use, the estmated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the nsks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of futura cash flows have not been adjusted

if the recovereble amount of an asset {or CGU) 1s estimated to be less than
its camrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (CGU} 1s reduced to
its recoverable amount An rmpairment loss 1s recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset (s carried at a re-valued amount, in
which case the impairment loss 1s treated as a revaluation decrease

Impairment losses regogised for CGUs, to which goodwill has been allocated,
are credited imihally to the carrying amount of goodwill Any remaining
imparment loss 1s charged pro rata to the other assets in the CGU

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset (CGU) 1s increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but
50 that the increased carrying amaount does not exceed the carrywng ameunt that
would have been determined had no imparrment loss been recogmised for the
asset {CGU) in pror penods A reversal of an impairment toss 15 recogrused in
the tncome statement immediately

Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s measured at the farr value of the consideration recerved, or
receivable, and represents amounts recevable for goods supphed, stated net of
discounts, returns and value added taxes

In the case of goods sold through retail stores, revenue 1s recogrised at the point
of sale of a product to the customer, less prowision for retums Accumulated
expenence is used to estimate and provide for such returns at the time of the
sale Retail sales are usually in cash, by debit card or by credit card

In the case of good sold on the internet revenue 1s recogmsed at the point that
the nsks and rewards of the inventory have passed to the customer, which 1s
the point of delivery to the customer Transactions are settled by credit card
or payment card Provisions are made for intemet credit notes based on the
expected fevel of returns, which in tum 1s based upon the histoncal rate of
retums

In the case of income generated from trade marks and licences, revenue 15
recognised on an accruals basis in accordance with the relevant agreements ar
on & transactional basis when revenue 1s hnked to sale or purchase velumes

Exceptional tems

The Group presents as exceptional stems on the face of the income statement,
those significant tems of income and expense which, because of their size,
nature and infrequency of the events gang rise to them, ment separate
presentation to allow shareholders to understand better the elements of financial
performance in the year, so as to faciitate comparison with prior penods to
assess trends in financial performance more readily

Intarast income
Interest income 1s reported on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method

Government grants and stmilar income

Income from government grants that compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset is recogmised n the balance sheet as a deduction t arrving at the
camying amount of the related asset This 1s considered to reflect the true
cost of the asset to the Group The amount 1s recogmised in the consolidated
income statement over the life of the depreciable asset by way of a reduced
depreciation charge To date the Group has not received gavernment grants in
compensation for expenses charged in the consohdated income statement

Fareign currencies

The presentational currency of the Group 1s Sterling The functional currency of
the company I1s also Sterhng  Foreign currency transactions are translated mto
Steriing using the exchange rates prevailing on the dates of the transactions
Exchange differences of the company ansing on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are included tn the income
statement for the penod Exchange differences ansing on the retranslation of
non-monetary items camed at fair value are included in the income statement
for the penod except for differences ansmg on the retranslation of non-
monetary 1tems in respect of which gains and losses are recogrised in other
comprehensive income For such non-monetary fems, any exchange component
of that garn or loss 15 also recognised directly in other comprehensive income
Monetary assets and babilihies denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the rate of exchange ruking at the bafance sheet date

On cansolidation, the assets and labiities of foreign operations which have a
functional currency other than Stering are translated into Sterling at foreign
exchange rates ruling at the balance shest date The revenues and expenses of
these subsidary undertakings are translated at average rates apphicable in the
period Al resulttng exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and documented in a separate component of equity

When a foreign aperation is sold, the cumulative exchange differences that have
been recognised as a separate component of equity are reclassified from equity
to the income statement when disposal ts recognised

In order to mitigate its exposure 1o certan foreign exchange nsks, the Group
enters into forward contracts {See Chief Executive s Report and the cash flow
hedging accounting pelicy on page 65)

Inventories

Inventones are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value Cost mcludes the
purchase pnce of the mamdactured products, matenals, direct labour, transpart
costs and a proportion of applicable overheads Costis calculated using FIFQ
{first in, first out} Net realisable valus 1s based on the esumated selling pnce
less all estimated selkng costs
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the 52 weeks ended 28 Apnl 2013

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

The company recerves trade discounts and rebates from suppliers based upon
the volume of orders placed tn a given time window and as a contnbution
towards marketing costs Where there is sufficient certainty that a discount
or rebate will be receved m the future that relates to histonc purchases this s
reflected in the cost of inventones

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are recogmised inthally at fair value plus transaction
costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost under the effective interest
method less proviston for impairment Prowvision for impasrment 15 established
when there 15 objective ewdence that the Group will not be able to collect
amounts due according to the ongial terms of the receivable The amount of
the impatrment 1s the difference between the asset s carrying amount and the
present value of the esumated future cash flaws, discounted at the onginal
effective interest rate

Cash and cath equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents include cash in hand and deposits held on call,
together with other short term highly hiquid investments, that are readity
converlible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificam
nsk of changes in value

Trade and other payablas
Trade and other payables are initially measured at far value, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation 1s calculated using the bability method, on temporary
differencas ansing between the tax bases of assets and Liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements However, if the
deferred tax anses from the intial recognition of goodwill or inibal recogniticn of
an asset or hability 1n a transaction other than a business combmnation that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, 1115
not accounted for Deferred tax on temporary differences associated with shares
m subsidianes and joint ventures 1s not provided if reversal of these temporary
differences can be controlled by the Group and it 1s probable that reversal will
not occur in the foreseeable future In addition, tax losses available to be carmed
forward as well as other income tax credits to the Group are assessed for
recognition as deferred tax assets Deferred tax 1s determined using tax rates
and tsws that have been enacted (or substantively enacted) by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset 1s
realised or the deferred tax lability 1s settled

Deferred tax habilities are provided in full

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utlised

Changes i current and deferred tax assets or liabdities are recogrised as &
component of tax expense 1n the Income statement, except where they relate
to items that ara charged or credited directly to equity in which case the related
deferred tax 15 also charged to other comprehensive income or credited directly

to equity

Pensicns
The Group operates pension plans for the benefit of certain employees, including
both defined contniburtion and defined benefit plans

In relation to nts defined contnbution plans, the Group makes contnbutions to
independently admimistered plans, the contributions beng recognised as an
axpense when they fall due The Group has no legal or constructive obhigation to
make any further payments to the plans other than the comnbutions due

In refation to its defined benefit schemes, the Group recognises in its balance
sheet the present valua of its defined benefit obligations less the farr value of
plan assets The current service costis charged agamst operating profit Interest
on the schemes habikties 15 included in finance costs and the expected retum on
schemes assets s included wm finance income

The defined benefit obligation 1s calculated at each penod end by independent
actuaries using the projected unit credit method The present value of the
obligation 15 determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows
using Interest rates of high quakity comorate bonds that are denominated

in the curmency n which the benefits will be paud and which have terms to
maturity approximating the terms of the related pension labilities Actuanal
gains and losses ansing from expenence adjustments and changes In actuanal
assumptions are reflagted tn the other comprehensive ingome in the penod in
which they anse

Borrowings and bommowing costs

Barrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred, and subseguently at amortised cost Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value 15 recognised

n the income statement over the penod of the borrowings using the effective
interest method

Borrowings are classified as current hiabilites unless the Group has an
unconditional nght to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months from
the balance sheet date

Bomrowing costs, being interest and other costs incurred in connection vaith the
servicing of borrowings, are recognised as an expense when incurred

Provistons

A provision 1s racogrised when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligatton and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation

The Group prowvides for its legal responsibility for ditapidation costs following
advice from chartered surveyors and previous expenence of exit costs The
estimated cost of fulfiling the leasehold dilapidations obbgations is discounted
to present value and anatysed between non-capital and capital components The
capital element 1s recogrused as a decommissioning cost and depreciated over
the ife of the asset The non-capital element ts taken to the income statement
in the first year of the lease where the cost i represents 1s of no lasting benefit
to the Group or its landlord “Wear and tear costs are expensed to the income
statement Provisions for onerous lease contracts are recognised when the
Group beligves the unavoidable costs of meeting the lease obhgations exceed
the economic benefits expected to be receved under the lease

Loases

Leases of property, plant and equipment whera the Group has substantially al)
the nsks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases Finance
leases are capitalised at the lease’s inception at the lower of the fair value of the
leased asset and the present value of the mmmum lease payments Each lease
payment is allocated between the hability and finance charges so as to achieve
a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding The assel subject to the
finance lease 1s depreciated over the shorter of its useful life and the lease term
The correspending rental obhgations, net of finance charges, are included as a
lrability

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group does not have
substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating
leases Payments made under operating leases are charged to the income
statement on a straight-ine basis over the lease termn Incentives prowvided by
the lessar are credited to the income statement on a straight-ine basts over the
minimum lease term

Contingent rental payments, ahove standard payments, are conditional on
the Group s operating performance derived from the lease item, {e g tumover
levels) These are expensed n the pented inwhich they are incurred

Rental income from operating leases where the Group acts as a lessor is
recogmsed on a straight-ine basis over the term of the relevant leese
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Dervative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The maost significant exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations relates to
purchases made in foreign cumrencies, pnncipally the US dollar The Group’s
policy 1s to reduce substantially the nsk associated with purchases denominated
in fereign currencies by using forward fixed rate cumrency purchase contracts,
taking into account any forergn currency cash flows

Denvative financial mstruments are measured at fair value Where denvatives
do not qualrfy for hedge accounting, any gains or losses on re-measurement
are immediately recognised in the income statement Where denvatives qualify
for hedge accounting, recogrition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship and the item being hedged

In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the Group is required to document
from inception the relationship between the tem being hedged and the
hedging instrument The Group is also required to document and demonstrate
an assessment of the relationship between the hedged tem and the hedging
instrument, which shows that the hedge will be highly effective on an on-going
basis This effectiveness testing 1s performed at each period end to ensure that
the hedge remains highly effective

Cash flow hedging

Denvative financial mstruments are classified as cash flow hedges when

they hedge the Group's exposure to vanability in cash flows that are esther
attrbutable to a particular nsk associated with a recognised asset or hability, or
a highly probable farecast transaction

The effective element of any gain or loss from re-measuring the dervative
instrument Is recogrused directly in other comprehensive income

The associated cumulative gan or loss 1s reclassified from aother comprehensive
ncome in the same penod or perinds dunng which the hedged transaction
aflects the profit or loss The reclassification of the effective portion when
recogmised ih the mcome statement is the same as the classification of the
hedged transaction Any element of the re-measurement of the denvative
instrument which does not meet the critenia for an effective hedge 1s recognised
immediately in the income statement within finance income ar costs

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or

15 sold, terminated or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting

At that posnt in time, any cumulative gain eor loss on the hedging instrument
recogrised i equity 1S retained In equity untl the forecasted transaction occurs
If a hedged transaction 15 ne longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain
or loss recogrused n other comprehensive income 1s reclassified from equity to
the income statement as a reclassification adjustment

Treasury shares

The purchase pnce of the Group’s own shares that it acquires s recogrised as
‘Treasury shares’ within equity When shares are transferred out of Treasury the
difference between the market valug and the average purchase price of shares
sold out of Treasury 1s transferred to retained earmings

Employea Benafit Trust
The cost of shares acquired by the Sports Direct Employee Benefit Trust 1
recogised within Own share-reserve’ in equity

Share-based payments

The Group 1ssues equity-settied share-based payments to certam Directors

and employees These are measured at fair value at the date of grant, which 15
expensed to the consolidated income statement on a straight-ine basis over the
vesting penod, with the comesponding credit going to equity

Non market vestmg conditions are not taken into account m determining grant
date far value Instead, they are taken ito account by adjusting the number of
equity instruments to vest

Farr value 1s based on the market share price on the grant date The expected
staff numbers used in the mode! has been adjusted, based on management’s
best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions, and
behavioural considerations A share-based payment charge of £22,183,000 was
recogmised in seling, distnbution and administrative expenses for the 52 weeks
ended 28 Apnl 2013 The key details in respect of the share scheme charges are
set out in note 21

The credit for the share based payment charge does not equal the charge per
the income statement as it excludes amounts recognised in the balance sheet

In relation to the expected national msurance contributions for the shares and a
transfer of accrued national insurance contributions n respect of previous years
charges which had prewiously been recogmised in equity The amount transferred
15 not matenal to the financial statements

Equity instruments

An equity instrument Is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its habilibes Equity instruments issued
by the Group are recorded at the proceeds recewed, net of any direct 1ssus
costs

Drndends

Dividends are recognised as a liabilty in the Group's financial statements and
as a deduction from equity m the penod in which the dividends are declared
Where such dwidends are proposed subject to the approval of shareholders,
the dwidends are regarded as declared once shareholder approval has been
obtained

Matenality

In preparing the financial statements, the Board considers both quantitative and
qualitative factors in forming its judgements, and related disclosures, and are
mindful of the need to best serve the interests of its stakeholders and to avoid
unnecessary clutter bome of the disclosure of immatenal items

In making this assessment the Board considers the nature of each item, as well
asits size, in assessing whether any disclosure omissians ar misstatements
could influence the decisions of users of the financial statements

International Financial Reporting Standards {“Standards™) i r$sue but not

yeot offective

At the date of authonsation of these consolidated financial statements, the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and International Financial
Reporting Standards Commuittee {IFRSC") have 1ssued the followang standards
and interpretations which are effective for annual accounting penods beginning
on or after the stated effective date These standards and interpretations are not
effective for and have not been applied in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements

= {FRS 9 Financial Instruments (effective 1 January 2015}

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements (effective 1 January 2014)

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements (effective 1 January 2014}

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entties {effective 1 January 2014}
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (effective 1 January 2013}

IAS 19 {Revised), Employee Benefits (effective 1 January 2013)

IAS 27 {Rewised), Separate Financtal Statements {effective 1 January 2013)

IAS 28 {Rewised), Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures {effective 1
January 2013)

Deferred Tax Recovery of Underlying Assets - Amendments to IAS 12 Income
Taxes (effective 1 January 2012)

* Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle {effective 1 January 2013)

The Directors ancipate that the adoption of these Standard and Interpretations
in future periods will have no matenal impact on the finaneial statements of
the Group except for the treatment of the acquisition of subsidianes in future
accounting periods
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the 52 weeks ended 28 Apnl 2013

2. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The entical accounting estimates and judgements made by the Group regarding
the uture or other key sources of estimation, uncertamty and judgement that
may have a sigmificant nsk of giving nise to a materal adjustment to the camying
values of assets and hahlities within the next financial year are

Impairment of goodwil

The calculation for considenng the impairment of the carrying emount of
goodwill requires a companson of the present value of the CGUs to which the
goodwall has been allocated, to the value of goodwill and associated assets i
the balance sheet The calculation of present values requires an estimation of
the future cash flows expected to anse from the CGUs and the selection of a
surtable discount rate The key assumptions made m relabion to the impairment
review of goodwill are set out in note 15

Impairment of other intangible assets

The calculation for considenng the impairment of the earrying amount of other
ntangible assets with an indefinite life, specifically brands, trade marks and
hcences, requires a companson of the present value of the related cash flows to
the value of the other intangible assets in the balance sheet The calculation of
present value requires an estimation of the future cash flows expected to anse
from the sther intangible assets and the selection of a suitable discount rate The
key assumptions made in relation to the impairment review of other intangible
assets are set out In note 15

Useful acononuc life of intangible assets

For intangible assets which have a finite Iife, the Directors rewisit therr estimate
of useful economic life at each penod end and revise accordingly Licences and
trade marks typically have a ife of between 10 and 15 years

Identification and valuation of acquired intangible assets

On acquisition, each matenal, separable imtangible asset 1s identrfied and valued
by the Directors with assistance from a professional third party Any such
calculation 15 judgemental in nature as it 1s based an a valuation methodology

Brand valuations are typically valued using the relief from royalty valuation
methodelogy

The nature and carrying amounts of these assets are set out In note 15

Impairment of tangible assets

The Directors review the carrying amounts of the Group's tangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impawment loss The key assumptions made n refation to the impairment review
of tangible assets carned cut in the penod are set out in note 16

Pravision for obsolets, slow moving or defective inventories

The Directors have applied their knowledge and expenence of the sports retail
industry in determining the level and rates of provisioning required in calculating
the appropnate inventory camying values

Financial position of retirement benefit plans

The net defined benefit pension plan assets or liablites are recogrised in the
Group's balance sheet The determination of the financial positon requires
assumptions to be made regarding inter aba future salary increases, mortality,
discount rates and inflation The key assumptions made in relation to the
pension plan are set out in note 24

Prowision for dilaprdations and onerous lease contracts
Tha basis of the estimation of the provisioning for dilapdations and onerous
lgase contracts 1s detalled in the provision accounting policy and note 26

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on histoncal
expenence, extemnal advice and other factors, ncluding expectations of future
events that are beheved to be reasonable under the circumstances

Where an onerous lease has been identified, the assets dedicated to that
contract ave impaired

Calculation of bonus share scheme charge

A share-hased payment charge is recogmsed in respect of share awards
based an the Directors’ best estmate of the number of shares that will vest
The charge 15 calculated based on the fair value on the grant date, which 1s
deemed to be the date on which the entity and counterparty reached a shared
understanding of the scheme The key details in respect of the share scheme
charges are set out in note 21

3. INANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group s current activities result in the following financial nsks and set out
below are management s responses to those nsks in order to minirruse any
resufting adverse effects on the Group’s financial perfermance

Foreign exchange nsk
The Group 1s exposed to foreign exchange nsk principally via

a Transactional exposure from the cost of future purchases of goods for
resale, where those purchases are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the purchasing company Transactional exposures that
could significantly impact the income statement are hedged These expasures
are hedged via forward foreign currency contracts which are designated as
cash flow hedges The notional and farr value of these contracts 15 shown in
note 27

b Net investment exposure, fram the fair value of net investments outside
the UK The Group hedges its international investments via foreign currency
transactions and borrowings in matching currencies

¢ Loans to non-UK subsidiaries These are hedged wia foresgn currency
transactions and borrowings in matching currencies, which are not formally
designated as hedges, as gans and losses on hedges and hedged loans wall
naturally offset

Interest rate nisk

The Group has net borrowings, which are pancipally at floating interest rates
hnked to bank base rates or LIBOR The Greup does not use interest rate
financial instruments to hedge its exposura to interest rate movements The
Group regularly mondors and reacts accordingly to any exposure to fluctuations
n interest rates and the impact on its monetary assets and habilities

Credst nsk

The Directors have a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit nsk

1s monitored on an ongomg basis Credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requinng credit over a certatn amount The Group does not require
collateral in respect of financial assets

At each balance sheet date, there were no significant concentrations of credit
nsk The maxtmum exposure to credit nsk is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset in the balance sheet

Investments of cash sumpluses, borrowings and dervatrve instruments are made
through banks and comparues which must fulfil credit rating and investment
criteria approved by the Board

Liquidity nsk

The avaitability of adequate cash resources 1s managed by the Group through
utiiisation of its revolving bank and other faciities together with equity and
retained profits thereby achieving continuity of funding and short-term flexobilnty

Capital management
A descniption of the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for managing
caprtal are included n note 27
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4. SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

IFRS 8 - Operating Segments requires the Group s segments to be identified on the basis of intemnal reports about compenents of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker to assess performance and allocate resources across each operating segment

The Chief Operating Decision Maker has been identified as the Executive Directors and the operating segments are wentified as the store fascia o brand i line wath
the internal reparting to the Executive Directors

Sales and gross profit for sach operating segment, as well as underlying EBITDA, are the main measures used by the Executive Directors to assess performance
In accordance with paragraph 12 of IFRS 8 the Group's operating segments have been aggregated into the following reportable segments

+ UK Sports Retall — includes the results of UK retall network of sports stores,

* Premium Lifestyle & other — includes the results of the premum retall businesses such as Republic, Crwise and USC,

* International Retail — includes the results of the Group s international retail network of stores, and

« Brands - includes the results of the Group’s portfolio of intemationally recognised brands such as Everlast, Lonsdale and Dunlop

Information regarding the Group s reportable segments for the 52 weeks ended 28 Apnl 2013, as well as a recencihation of reported profit for the period to underlying
EBITDA, 15 presented below

Segmental information for the 52 weeks ended 28 Aprit 2013
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Sales to other segments are pnced at cost plus a 10% mark-up

Other segment tems included in the income statement for the 52 weeks ended 28 Apnl 2013
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the 52 weeks ended 28 Apn) 2013

4, SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS continued

Information regarding segment assets and liabilities as at 28 Apnl 2013 and capital expendsture for the 52 weeks then ended

IE000) 1 < ’
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1,823 - 6,730
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Segmental mformation for the 53 weeks ended 29 Apni 2012
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Other segment items included in the ncome statement for the 53 weeks ended 29 Apni 2012
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Geographic information
Segmental information for the 52 weeks ended 28 Apni 2013

-1, 842 429 343,151 - 2,185,580

T

¥ T 59,555 14,237 - 73,193
i T 214,920 271,178 (32,915) 1,408,583

Segmental information for the 53 weeks ended 23 Aprit 2012

ol
: frizoe]
307.263 - 1,935,756
3915 - 158,200
7,249) 1,132,179

The followang table reconciles the reported operating profit to the underlying EBITDA as it 1s one of the main measures used by the Chief Operating Decision Maker
when reviewing performance

Racanciiration of operating profit to underlying EBITDA for the 52 week penod ending 28 Apni 2013
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Lifestyle & Other includes £9,737,000 {2012 £1,991,000) relating to Wholesale trade which ts included within the UK Sports and Retad figures in the Chief Executive s
Report
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the 52 weeks ended 28 Apnl 2013

5. OTHER DPERATING INCOME

Wﬂﬂ(ﬁ-ﬁ EDQj_IE‘JIrn{r:‘_I:}:

TR 4,243 273
e . 2,950 2,552
R 1,199 5,283

The exceptional profit on disposal of leasehold property arose when an exit premiem was received from a landlord for 8 leasehold property that had Nil net book value

The exceptional profit on disposal of Freehold property refates to a property with a net book value of £442,000 for which proceeds of £1,404,000 were received

7 OPERATING PROFIT

Operating profit for the period 1s stated after charging / (crediting}

DT OC )

DRI
- (2,333) 2015

o 47,920 58,152

4676 4,358

. 2217 2473

- 93,320 99,924
) 699 786

2636 ]

Sarvices provided by the Group's auditor

For the 52 weeks endad 28 April 2013 the remuneration of the auditors, Grant Thornton UK LLP and associated firms, was as detaled below

T wi%ag,m B
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8. EMPLOYEE COSTS

The average monthly number of employees, meluding Executive Directors, employed by the Group dunng the penod was

11,078
2,998
14,076

52 weaks ended 53 wasks snded
28 April 2093 (£'000] 29 April 2012 (£'000)

204,885 169,309
15,407 12,588
811 677
221,103 182,574

A share-based payment charge of £22,183,000 (2012 £20,643,000) was recogmised in respect of share awards dunng the year
Aggregate emoluments of the directors of the Company are summansed below

52 weowhs endad 53 wesks mded
20 Apri) 2013 (£ 000} 29 April 2012 (£7000)

i P QIEMAND 895 LU

Further details of directors remuneration are grven i the Directars” Remuneration report on pages 47 to 50

Details of certain key managerment remuneration are given in note 34

9. OTHER INVESTMENT INCOME / (COSTS)

aed 53 Waeks soded]
HR 2SI AR |20 L 201000 ]

) . 7,146)
1473 1,346
1473 {5,800

o The fac vedue acgustment 1o forward foregn exchange contracts relatas 1o diflerentes betwean the fax value of forward foresgn cumency not designated for hedge g from one penod end to the next.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the 52 weeks ended 28 Apnl 2013

11. FINANCE COSTS

P ——"——
fontathegioansiandifinance)lease ;

 Tha fair value adustment to forward loresgn exchange contracts relatas to differences batween the fair vakue of forward foreign cumency contracts not designated for hedgs sccounting from cne penod end ta the next

12 TAXATION

glaLwosksenisd
128 Aprifi 201 LAEC000}
51,935

59,298

o 1,476 1219
60,774 53,150

{5,205}
55,569

(7,281}

207,226
%) 49,734

151,498
39,839

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE FROM TOTAL AND CONTINUING OPERATIONS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS

Basic eamings per share s calculated by dividing the earmings attributable te ordinary shareholders of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding dunng the year

Far diluted earmings per share, the weighted average number of shares, 568,971,942 (2012 568,591,423), 1s adjusted to assume conversion of all difutive
potential ordinary shares under the Group's bonus share schemes, being 51,852,895 (2012 67,161,036}, to give the dirted weighted average number of shares of
620,824,837 (2012 635,752,459}

Basic and diluted earnings per share

" S R
106,198 106,158
LT '...f:,‘,':jl'v"ﬁ[‘.‘ﬂvr_ nis}
568,59

Rrotiifoythelperiod]

WL e G T SRS !

635,752

[Eamingsinedshers]

Underlying earmings per share

The undertying earmings per share reflects the underying performance of the business compared with the pnor year and 15 calculated by dividing underying earnings
by the werghted average number of shares for the penod Undertying eamings 1s used by management as a measure of profitability within the Group Underlying
eamings 1s defined as profit for the period attributable to equity helders of the parent for each finaneial period but excluding the post tax effect of certain non-trading
Items

The Directors beheve that the underlying eamings before exceptional items and underlying earnings per share measures provide additional useful information for
shareholders on the underlying performance of the business, and are consistent with how business performance 15 measured internally Underiying earmings 15 not a
recognised profit measure under IFRS and may not be directly comparable with “adjusted™ profit measures used by other companies
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106,188

ST 4 T TR 556 151, 106,198

' {763 B (1,73

o 1.476 1,476 {2527} {2,527}
R ) - 7,146 7,146
S - (1,639) (1,639)

T {463) {463) {1,153} (1,153)

i . . {1,187) (1,197}
. {213) {273) {929) {929)
"Qj’;z%w g1 227 1,756 1,756

108,086 109,086
568,591 635,752
[Peasts persiaral

24 61 1919 1716

152,790

Zave 152,790

3zine 574,343
. (5.806) {4.941)
1123 4,384 5,684

4554 30,438 129,402
{2,514) (13,082) {17.205)

113,220 343,043 687,193

__ ; 3,706 4,011

2,811 5,196 16,180

SARLN ] . 40 376 50,883

0 557 T (256) {1.963) {5,0686) {13,485)

T e e 112951 108078 387.255 744.782

{62,.217) (238,439) (338,246)

57 - 5,260 6,253
{79) {12,698} {43,328) (58,152)
5 “ 1,658 13,070 15,975

{73,257) {263,437} (374,170}

{1.318) (1,426)
. {6.742) {40,352) {47,920
M 5,612 5,066 10,770

. (74,387 (300 041) 412.745)

33,691 87,214 332,036
35913 79,608 313,023

Assets held under finance leases have a net baok amount of Eml {2012 £nil)

Addtions do not reconcile directly to the purchase of property, plant and equipment per the consolidated cash flow statement due to non-cash additons
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15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

78,338

228,329

T . 10,495
T 200193 . 20,193

C Taen - 2,021
{1,679 _ (2,300) (3.979)
(eSSl - 4,429
50,037 76,039 262,388
I . 6,731
4,048 . 4,448

- 2,282 - 2,282
5 1,128 4,952 9,975

285,824

57,895 80,991

7 {11,062) {2,300) {23.279)

- a3sm) - (4,358)

Fmom o . (2.473)
L 2,300 2,300

T (1,889 - (7.889)

¥ © 52 . (1,539)
3i pEfasey  (22,657) - {37.238)
SEETTTTT T (a,676) . (4,676
oz . 2217
g -{335) {938) . (1.273)
(28,271 (45,404

| 29,624 80,991 240,420
Fe——
BT m 27,380 16,638 225,150

Amgrtisation 1s charged to selling, distnbution and administrative expenses in the consolidated mcome statement

The carrying value of goodwaill and brands that are considered to have an indefinite hife are allocated to the Group s operating segments before aggregation With the
exception of Everlast, none of the indwidual cash-generating urits {CGUs) are considered matenal to goodwill or indefinite ife intangibles (Brands) The carrying value
of goodwill and brands allocated to the Group’s CGUs, (as aggregated except i the case of Evertast}, 15 shown below

9,051

N 13,288 .
) 6,747 -

46,281 2,437

o 54,438 70,054
- 129,805 80,991

The Group tests the carrying amount of goodwaill and assets with an indefinite Iife annually for impairment or more frequently i there are indications that thewr carrying
value might be impawred The cammying amounts of other intangible assets are reviewed for impairment of there 1s an indication of impasrment

imparment 15 calculated by companng the carrying amounts to the value in use denved from discounted cash flow projections for each EGU to which the intangible
assets are allgcated A CGU s deemed to be an individual fascia, these have been grouped together into simitar classes for the purpose of formulating operating
segments as reported in note 4

Value in use calculations are based on 5 year management forecasts with a terminal growth rate applied thereafter, representing management's estimate of the long
term growth rate of the sector served by the CGUs
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The key assumptions, which are equally applicable to each CGU, in the cash flow projections used to support the camying amount of goodwall and intangibles with
indefinite lives as at 28 Apnl 2013 were as folows

M % %
T A0%-45% 15% - 50% 25% - 30%
T UNI-EIm Nil - £1m Nii - £1m

1185% 11 85% 1200%

The key assumptions are based on management's histoncal expenence and future plans for each CGU

A reasonably possible change (n any key assumption would not cause the carmrying value of any CGU to exceed its recoverable amount

The ntangible assets that have an indefimte Iife are brands and trading names and are considered to have an indefimite Ife on the grounds of the proven longewity of
the brands and trading names and the Group s commutment to maintaining those brands

All key assumptions are consistent with known external sources of information

16. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS AND JOINT VENTURES

Tha Group uses the equity method of accounting for associates and joint ventures The following table shows the aggregate movement in the Group's investment in
associates and joint ventures

_m_%m_ 31,259 1,088
g, O _ {2,381) -

gRTiT T T - (7.054) (7,054}

I :’"‘“’ i 1,308 . 1,308
SNy {716) {34} {750)
TR e 29,4790 - 29,470
. 1,301 - 1,301

T 26 - 26

) 369 . 369

i 951 - 951

32,117 . 32,117

Associatos

The business activity of Heatons is that of household, sporting and lessure goods reta:l Heatons operates in the Republic of Ireand and Northem Ireland The Directors
do not consider that thay have significant influence over the financial and operating policies of Wanmambool, the parent company of Heatons, and so will continue to
account for the Company as an assocrate

The remaining associates are not matenal i the context of the group accounts

The Group s share of assoctates assets, labiliies and income statement, which 1s included in the consolidated financial statements, 15 as follows

1201 3 ({000 ES Apei 201 2160004

44,108 42,971
18,889 12,301
{18153} . (19.826)
{11,727} {10,976)

32117 29,470
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16. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS AND JOINT VENTURES continued

e e - [P o

§ Yy DT
3 o E
:

97,791 84,755

{95,93%) {85,950}

- 1,800 (1.195)

. {849) 479
_____ 951 {716)

Heatons has a coterminous year end with the Group There are no significant restrictions on the ability of essociated undertakings to transter funds to the parent,
other than those imposed by legal requirements

As stated in the Group’s accounting policies the Directars review the carrying amounts of the Group's fixed assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss I any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 1s estmated i order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, If any

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to seli and value In use In assessing value n use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to thew
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the nsks specific to these assets

Indicators of impairment exist for certain of the freehold properties held within our associate Accordingly an impairment review has been performed in accordance
with the above palicy

Value in use calculations have been prepared based on 5 year management forecasts with a terminal growth rate of 2% applied thereafter, representing management s
estimate of the long term growth rate of the sector served by these assets

These cash flows have been discounted at a nsk adjusted pre-tax weighted average cost of caprtal of 11 9%
No impairment charge has been recogmised as a result of the review performed

Joint Ventures
On 25 July 2011 the Group acquired the remaimng 50% of No Fear Intemational Limited

The Group s share of its joint ventures’ assets, Labilities and income statement, which 1s included in the consolidated financial statements, 1s as follows

17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

o e

___Feo SRR R e 201 o s 1201000
42.645 46,534

The fair value of the available-for-sale investments 15 based on bid quoted market prices at the balance sheet date
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The following table shows the aggregate movement in the Group's financial assets dunng the year

_ %) { 28 Apri2( 12 510000
heqinIngloypenod s . s i 46,634 53,097

i ' T o . 573
ATyt oTe e CTp anene Ve ] T 1,011 {6,986)
cloinenoa B i 47,645 45,634

The financial assets at 28 Apnl 2013 relate to a strategic investment held of 11 87% in share capital

At 28 Apnl 2013 the Group had no investments in excess of 20% of share capital

18. INVENTORIES

3,861

- - 864
iDh e ) 443,101 311,833
446,362 316,800

i '.fl
1,290,822 1,088,381

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

1,564 445

8,804 9,405
T 29,326 29,905
T 96,111 83,877

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates to therr far value The maximum exposure to credit nsk at the reporting
date 15 the camrying value of each class of asset above, plus any cash balances

Ageing of trade receivables

50,417 44,122

The credit quality of assets nesther past due nor impaired 1s considered to be good
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES continued

The movement in the bad debt prowision can be analysed as follows

N 52 woeks or:ded] 530vass 1
S 2/ A pri 261 31,000 1Y 2 SIAT TP LI ELODD

4,061 4,683
3322 2,174

T {520) {644)
N {189) 2.152)
T 6,674 4,061

The Group has no significant concentration of credrt nsk, with exposura spread over a large number of customers These bad debt prowisions / charges have been
determunad by reference to past default expenence and knowledge of tha individual circumstances of certain recervables

The other classes within trade and other recemvables do not inctude impaired assets

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

106,617 59,679
: 17,309 1371
22,706 10,912

743 306

147375 78,674

{5.701) {3.239)

141,674 59,435

99,950 99,950
50 50
100.000 100,000

Allotted, called up and
W, 1201796201602%388 fordiarylsharestofll Opleach

64,060

64,060

64,060

64,055
- 5
64,060 64,060

The Group holds 42,137,508 shares in Treasury On 6 August, Appleby Trust {Jersey) Limited, as trustee of the Sports Direct Employes Benefit Trust {the “the Trust”),
purchased 7,115,754 ordinary shares at & pnce of 300 00 pence per share, representing all the ordinary shates which the Sports Oirect employess elected to sefl on
vesting of therr awards under the 2009 Bonus Share Scheme {the “Share Schemg™} A further 506,245 shares vested and were distnbuted to relevant staff

Contingent shere awards

The Executive Bonus Share Scheme

Under the terms of the Executive Bonus Share Scheme, which was approved by Shareholders on 10 September 2010 and i1s a Revenue approved scheme, the Board
may make share awards i respect of the ordinary shares in the company Awards may be made to Executives and Persons Discharging Managenal Responsibiities
over a fixed number of shares subject to performance conditions Further details are set out in the Remuneration Report on pages 47 to 50

An award of 8,073,036 shares was granted on 10 September 2010 at a share price of 125 5 pence and none of these shares have since lapsed These shares wall only
vest if the performance conditions (EBITDA targets) and senvice conditions {contnued employment) and are met No consideration is payable in respect of
these awards

The Bonus Share Scheme

Under the terms of the 2009 Bonus Share Scheme, which was approved by the shareholders on 9 September 2009, the Board may make share awards in respect of
the ordinary shares in the Company to employess based on a percentage of salary and subject to performance conditions No considergtion is payable by employees
in respect of these awards Further details are set out in the Corporate Responsibilty Report on page 52
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The first awards of 34,898,000 shares were granted on 19 November 2009 at an everage pnce of 99 5 pence On € August 2012, 7,621,999 shares vested under
the 2009 Bonus Share Scheme At 28 Apnl 2013 21,108,000 (29 Apnl 2012 29,088,000) awards were outstanding under the scheme, with the decrease in the year
being attnbutable to shares vesting and leavers These shares will only vest if the service conditions (contmued employment) are met

The 2011 Bonus Share Stchema was approved by the Board on 10 September 2010 The first award of 30,000,000 shares were granted on 10 September 2010 at
an average pnce of 125 5 pence At 28 Apnl 2013 22,672,000 (29 Apnl 2012 30,000,000} remained outstanding These shares will only vest f the performance
condrtions {EBITDA targets) and service conditons {continued employment} and are met over the next 3 years

A share-based payment charge of £22,183,000 was recognised in respect of these share awards for the 52 weeks ended 28 Apnl 2013, based on the Directors best
estimate of the number of shares that will vest The charge s calculated based on the farr value on the grant date, which is deemed to be the date on which the entity
and counterparty reached a shared understanding of the scheme

A number of employees sold their shares upon vesting to the Sports Direct Intemnatonal plc Employee Beneft Trust The 2009 Bonus Share Scheme has been
accounted for as an equity settled share scheme This has been decided based on the followang

« The rules of the scheme are that the awards will be settled in equity and this has not changed,

« Upon vesting the company entered into a separate contract with the employees to buy their shares although the company only facilitated the sale of shares on
behalf of employees,

* The company enly communicated to the employees that the company would arrange the sale of tha shares, and not that the company would buy the shares,
* The employee does not have a choice of settlemsnt under the scheme nides,

+ Upen vesting the default settlement option f an employee failed to notify the company was to receive the shares, and

* There Is no obligation on the Group to buy the shares upan future vesting of the share schemes

22. OTHER RESERVES

T
53 %&: %
. sn-‘u‘m

i

(987,312) (5,354) (47,266)

- - 5

L - (1,305) {1.,305)

- 8,086 B,086

8,005 {987,312 17 {40,480)

A - 15,408 15,408

- . 195 195

14300&;25.&8& A0 8,005 {987,312) 16,021 {24,875)

The share premium account is used to record the excess proceeds over nomunal value on the 1ssue of shares

The permanent contnbution to capital relates to a cash payment of £50,000 to the Company on B February 2007 under & deed of capital contribution

The capital redemption reserve arose on the redemption of the Company’s redeemable preference shares of 10p each at par on 2 March 2007

The reverse comhbination reserve exists as a result of the adoption of the pnngiples of reverse acquisition accounting in accounting for the group restructunng
which cccurred on 2 March 2007 and 29 March 2007 between the Company and Sports World Intemational Limited, Brands Holdings Limited, Intematonal Brand
Management Limited and COS Holdings SA with Sports Word Intemational Limited as the acquirer

The hedging reserve represents the cumulative amount of gains and fosses on hedging instruments deemed effective in cash flow hedges The cumulative deferred
gan or loss on the hedging mstrument s recogmsed 1n the income statement only when the hedged transaction impacts the income statement, or IS included as a
bas:s adjustment to the non-financial hedged em, consistent with the apphcable accounting policy

Dthar Balance Sheet Reserves

The foreign currency translation reserve 1s used to record exchange differences ansing from the translation of the financial statements of foreign subsidianes and
associates

The own shares and treasury shares reserve represent the cost of shares in Sports Direct international plc purchased 1n the market and held by Sports Direct
International pic Employee Benefit Trust to satisfy options under the Group s share options scheme, see note 21
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23 BORROWINGS

EOBBED

Non-current

245,625 213,758
2 829
245,627 214,567

5,701
50,052 51

55,753
5,70t 9,233
B 295,677 213,809
2 842
301,380 223,890

) O EEETD

] 250,203 178,516
- 45,476 36,135
295,679 214,651

Loans are all at rates of mterest ranging between 1 5% and 2 0% over the interbank rate of the country within which the borrowing entity resides

On 7 March 2011, Sports Direct International plc and certain subsidianes (the “Borrowers™} entered into a committed, unsecured revolving facility agreement with ten
financial institutions, with HSBC Bank plc acting as Agent {the “Revolving Facility™) The Revolving Facility is available to any of the Borrowers

On 6 March 2013, the Revolving Facility was extended until 6 March 2015 and 1ts aggregate imit was increased to £300 mullion At year end a total of £242 million
was drawn down against this facibty, this included balanges in Sterding and US doltar This did not constritute a significant modification in accordance with IAS 39 -
“Financial Instruments™

The facility 1s capable of baing utihsed by way of cash advances and/or currency borrowangs The Group is required to observe certain covenants, including
undertakings relating to delivery of financial statements, and certain negative covenants, including in relation to creation of securtty and disposal of assets

On 27 September 2012 Sports Direct International plc and certam subsidianes {the “Borrowers™) entered into a committed revolving facility agreement with Barclays
Bank plc The Revolving Facility 15 available te any of the Borrowers and may be drawn to an aggregate hmit of £50 muthon 1t 1s capable of being utihsed by way of
cash advances and/or currency borrowings This facility 1s not secured against any fixed assets The Revolving Facility 1s available until 26 August 2013 At year enda
total of £50 milllon was drawn down agamst this facility

On 14 December 2012 Sports Direct International plc and certain subsidianes {the "Bomowers”) entered into a commutted revohing facility agreement with
Handlesbanken ple The Revahang Facility 1s avadlable to any of the Bomowers and may be drawn to an aggregate hmit of £25 milbon Its capable of bemng utihsed by
way of cash advances and/or currency borrewings This facility 15 not secured against any fited assets The Revohnng Facility 1s avadable until 26 August 2013 At
year end there was no draw down against this facibty

The Group has a E50m working capial facility with Mike Ashley which can be drawn down on request This facility was agreed at market terms atts inception This
faciity is not secured against any fixed assets At year end there was no draw down against this facility

The Group continues to operate comfortably within its banking facdies and covenants
The carrying amounts and fair value of the borowings are not materally different

Net debt at 28 Apnl 2013 was £154 Om {29 Apnl 2012 £145 2m)
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24 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Group's defined benefit pension obligations relate to Ounlop Stazenger Group Holdings Limited ("DSGHL"), which was acquired on 28 January 2004 DSGHL
operates a number of plans worldwide, the fargest of which 1s of the funded defimed benefit type The Scheme has been closed to new members since 2005

The amounts for the current and previous four penods following the acquisitton of DSGHL are as follows

Nalelotipfantasseds} 33,149 27,440

i 7(67.3510 % " 5{59.423) (53,044) {52,888} {39.764)
' : 24(19'940) ¥4 < (19,318) {16,186} {19,739} (12.324)
{7,190 (5.539) 869 {12.645) 5,887

.. 83120, " 1 1,208 4,461 (6,336)

The cumulative amount of actuanal gains and lesses recogrused in other comprehensive ncome as at 28 Apnl 2013 was an actuanal loss of £13,519,000 (2012
actuanal foss of £10,701,000}

There were no unrecognised actuanal gains or losses or past service costs as at 29 Apnl 2012 or 28 Apnl 2013

Amounts recogn:sed in the income statement are as follows

ooy BN
Apri 201 3 1£,000] RIS AP0

ERentsetvicelcost) o 14

WAL L 2,446 2,526

At ST {1,949) 2217
511 256

The current servica cost 1S included within cost of sales The interest on retirement benefit chligations and the expected return on plan assets are tncluded within
finance costs and finance income, respectively

Amounts recogrised in other comprehensive income 15 as follows

NI T I S D

{7,190} {5.539)
{2,818} (5,501)

The actual retum on plan assets for the 52 weeks ended 28 Apnl 2013 was a gain of £6,321,000 (2012 gain of £2,315,000}

The movements in the fair value of plan assets are as follows

f }
40,105 36,858
1,849 2,211

i 4,312 38
B 2,708 2553
T n ]
e {1.734) {1,636)
- 47,411 40,105

The Group expects to contnbute £2,708,000 to its defined benefit pension plans for the 52 weeks ended 27 Apnl 2014
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24. RETIREMENT BENEFT DBLIGATIONS continued

The assumptions used to determine the expected return on assets reflects the undertying asset allocation at each penod end The plan asset mix and the expected
returns on tha assets are as follows

| MOTOEEIT] ROm R ETTT

- ) 23,555 20,669
o 23,149 18,694
T 107 742
T 47,411 40,105
6 25% 5 25%

45% 325%

T 05% 05%

The overall expected rate of return on the Scheme s assets has been denved by considenng the expected rate of return on each major asset class of investments at
the start of the year and wesghting these rates of retumn by the proportion of the tota! investments that the class represents at the start of the year

The principal assumptions underying the actuanal assessments of the present value of the pfan liabiles are

53 weaks sndsd]

pri, 20) /{0001 R Aprilizn) 2008

{50,423} (53,044)
(14} m
(2,446) (2,526)
(7,180} (5,539)
{11} {9
1,734 1,636
il 56
(67,351) (59,423)

The net movements in the net present value of the plan habiliies were as follows

[53;wsaknonded]

R Py HCTOCIE)
HEei EDLTDFBE

29 Apri 201 ZHE\GONH

) {19,318) {16,186)
7,306 3.247

L {7.928) {6,379}
B {19,940) {19,318)

In eddition ta the arounts recognised in relation to the defined benefit retirement plans, amounts of £187,000 and £519,000 have been recognised i the income
statement in the penods ended 29 Apnl 2012 and 28 Apnl 2013 in relation to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
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25. DEFERRED TAX ASSET AND LIABILITIES

{17,081}

e 5132

N {14,795)
_{ars) {350} 2,946 7,281
- T 1430 53 1,483

. 14,176 14,176

. (1,315) {1,315)

6,212 {1.221) 6,836

" (258) 5,370 5,205

548 3,988 4,638

) - £.297 6,297

6,501 14,434 22,974

| RO PO TR

47,952 32625
(24,978) {25,789)
B 22,974 6,835

The tax rate used to measure the deferred tax assets and liabilities was 23% on the basis this was the tax rate that was substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date

Deferred tax assets are recogmsed for tax losses recoverable and pension plan habilities to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit is probable on the basis
of the Group's current expectations of future taxable profits

Included within other temporary differences 1s a deferred tax asset 1n relation to the bonus share scheme and a deferred tax hability recagmised on other intangible
assets upon acquisiion

The deferred tax effects of the acquisitions made in the year were considered and determined that there was no matenat impact on the group or the far value of net
assets acquired

26 PROVISICNS

32,630

30,259

1,91 840 2,151

(313) {1,358) {1,671)

(2,390) {20,507} {22,857

T A 31,838 9,234 41,072

The didapidations provision is the best estimats of the present velue of expenditure expected to be incurred by the Group i order satisfy its obligations to restore its
leasehold premises to the condition required under the lease agreements at the end of the lease discounted at 4% per annum The provision 1s expected to be utthsed
over the penod to the end of each specific lease

The prowision in respect of onerous lease contracts represents the net cost of fulfilling the Group s obligations over the terms of these contracts discounted at 5%
per annum The provision 15 expected to be utihsed over the peniod 1o the end of each specific lease Prowision 1s also made for the strategic rationalisation of certain
properties The onerous lease provision has reduced in the current year due to the closure of loss making stores, improved performance at other loss making stores,
the subdet of previously vacant space and a strategic decision to invest in other stores previously planned for closure

The unwinding of the discount on provision over time passes through the income statement
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21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

{a) Financial assets and lizhiliies by category
The cammying values of financial assets and kabilmes, which are pancipally denominated in Sterling or US doliars, were as follows

N FAxsest foir

(GED) le.00c]
332,036 332,036
240,420 240,420
- 32,117 217
47,645 . 47,645
_____ 41,952 47,952
446,962 445,952
. 17,965
T 29,326 96,111
S . . 147,375
47,645 1,128,813 1,408,583
313,023 313,023
| i ) 225,150 225,150
! ) - 29,470 29,470
T 4s,634 - 46,634
o 32,625 32,625
T 316,800 316,800
- 5.926
- 29,905 83,871
. . - - 78,674
! . 45,634 946,973 1,132,179

245,627

19,940 19,940

24,978 24,978

41,072 41,0712

56,318 320,261

. 55,753

56,275 56,275

198,585 763,906

) . 214,587

18,318 19,318

25,789 26,789

o . 62,889 62,889

1,570 . 1,570

| - 47,129 282,819
| T - 9,303
R 44,019 44,019

1,510 199,144 660,294

Carrying values do not matenally differ from farr value
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Fair value hierarchy
The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technigue

« Level | quoted (unadjusted) pnces in active markets for identical assets or kabilities,
* Level 2 other techniques for which all inputs which have a signuficant effect on the recorded fair vatue are observable, either directly or indirectly, and
* Level 3 techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded farr value that are not based en observable market data

As at 28 Apnl 2013, the only financial instruments were Denvative financial assets and liablities, which are classified as Level 2, and Available-for-saie financial
assets, which are classified as Lovel 1

{b} Derivatives foreign currency forward purchase contracts

The most significant exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations relates to purchases made in foreign currencies, pnncipally the LS doltar The Group's policy 1s to
reduce substantially the nsk associated with foreign currency spot rates by using forward fixed rate currency purchase contracts, teking inte account any foreign
currency cash flows The Group does not hold or 1ssue denvative financial instruments for trading purposes, however f denvatives do not qualify for hedge accounting
they are accounted for as such and accordingly any gain or loss 1s recognised immediately in the income statement

The carrying values of forward foreign currency purchase contracts were as follows

DATESBNGET TR
17,965 4,356

DO-SEREED) ORI

285,000 371,986
163 1 61-165

] . {40,000)

. 153154

o {44,031) {24,678)
- 1131 14 1131 54

At 28 Apnl 2013 £285m of forward US dollar purchase contracts qualified for hedge accounting and the profit on fair valuation of these contracts of £15 6m has
therefore been recogmsed in other comprehensive mcome This amount 15 split between a profit of £15 4m recogrused in the period, a gan of £2 5m reclassified and
reported in net profit and a loss of £2 3Im recognised in inventories

Forward foreign currency purchase and sale contracts generally have a matunty at inception of approximately 12 months At 28 April 2013 £Nif of purchase contracts
and £Nil of sale contracts had a matenty at inception of greater than 12 months {2012 £60 suillion of purchase contracts and £3 5m of sale contracts)

(¢} Sensitivity analysis
Foregn currency sensitivity enalysis

The Group s principal foresgn currency exposures are to US dollars and the Eurc The table below iustrates the hypothetical sensitivity of the Group s reported profit
and equity to a 5% increase and decrease in the US dellar / Sterling and Euro / Stering exchange rates at the year end date, assuming all other vanables remain
unchanged The figures have been calculated by companng the farr values of outstanding faresgn currency contracts at the current exchange rate to those if exchange
rates moved as illustrated The mcome statement figures include the profit effect of any relevant denvatives which are not in a designated cash flow hedge The
impact on US dollar related hedging instruments s included m equrty

Posttive figures represent an increase / (decrease) in profit ar equity

Stering strengthens by 5%

{1,783} (4,284}

34 (559}
Steriing weakens by 5% :

1,872 4.48)
[35) 587
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21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Interest rate sensitrvily analysis

The table below Wlustrates the hypothetical senstivity of the Group’s reported profit and equity to a 0 5% increase or decrease in interest rates, assuming all other
vanables were unchanged

The analysis has been prepared using the following assumptions

+ For fipating rate assets and Liabiitres, the amount of asset or kability outstanding at the balance sheet date 1s assumed to have been outstanding for the
whole year

* Fixed rate financial mstruments that are camed at amortised cost are not subject to interest rate nisk for the purpose of thns analysis

Posnive figures represent a (decrease] / increase in profit or equity

13 (2,000 M 28 Aprd 781735000 JEF W oed 1201 3| (00O R PSTAPCRIZ0 1 24 00H
C . (nug (1.507) {1,119}
B0i < ng 1,507 1,119

{d} Liquidity risk
Tha table betow shows the maturity analys:s of the undiscounted remaining contractual cash flows of the Group s financial habilties

303,035

L : 2
T . 169,976
S . (344,430)
. ; . 321,087

455,662
. 229,458
29 867
- 155,468

{418,502)
. 415,637
29 382,928

Capital management

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attnbutable to the equity holders of the parent, compromising 1ssued share capital, share premium and retamed
eamings and cash and borrowings

It 15 the Group's policy to maintam a strong caprtal base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustam the development of the business

In respect of equity, the Board have decded that, in order to maximuse flexthility in the near term with regards to a number of morganic growth opportunsties under
review, not to retum any cash by way of a dmdend at this time

The Board 1s commutted to keeping this policy under constant review and that it would look to evaluate altemative methods of retunung cash to shareholders when
appropnate

The objectve of the Bonus Share Scheme 1s to encourage employee share ownership and to ink employee’s remuneration to the perfarmance of the company Itis
not designed as a means of managing capital

In respect of cash and borrowings the Board regulary monitors the ratio of net debt to undedying EBITDA, the worlang capitat requirements and forecasted cash
flows however no mintmum or maximum rebios are $et The ratio for net debt to reported undedying EBITDA, excluding charges for the bonus share schemes, I1s 0 58
{2012 0 68} The abjective 15 to keep this figure below 2 0

Based on this analysis, the Board determines the apprapnate return to equity holders whilst ensuning sufficient capital 1s retained within the Group to meet it's
strategic cbjectives, including but not limited to, acquistion opportunities

These capital management pohicies have remamed unchanged from pnor year
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28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

| DACDETNALT DRI

e s~ 169,976 155,468
e 187 -
. S 23,684 6,855
_ i 32,634 40,274
- - 93,800 80,222
o 320,261 282,819
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approxumates to their farr value
Details of principal acquistions for the 52 weeks ended 28 Apnl 2013 are set out below
1 4 July 2012 Acquired 51% of the ordinary share capital of The Flannels Group Limited for cash consideration of £3 7m The pnmary business
activity 1s the sale ¢f fashion clothing and was acquired to complement existing business activities
" 14 September 2012 Acquired 100% of the ordinary share capital of Used Tackle Limited for cash consideration of £3 3m The pnmary business actiity
15 the sala of fishing equipment, and was acquired to complement exasting business activeties
w1 0ctober 2012 Acquired centain parts of the trade, assets and product brands from the administrators of JJB Sports plc (“JJB") for cash

consideration of £24 Om The pnmary business activity was the sale of sporting equipment and clothing, with the trade and assets
acquired to complement existing business actwities

w 28 February 2012 Acquired certain of the business, assets and brands from the administrators of fashion retailer Republic {UK) Ltd and Republic
{Retarl) Limited (“Republic”} for cash consideration of £13 2m The pnmary busiess acthaty 1§ the sale of fashion clothing, with
the trade and assets acquired to complement existing business actwiies

Tha farr value of constderation paid, assets and hiabilities acquired and resulting goodwall in respect of the above acquisitions 1s detailed below

[Er T

s e

13,245 7,759 45,004

{:asticonsideration]
altig (13.245} {1,028} {38,273}
Lt_u- q'rjlfl - 6,731 6,731

The goodwill 1s attributable to the premium paid to strengthen the Group’s existing business segments of UK Sports Retall, Lifestyle & Other, Intemational Retail and
Brands which is in ine with the Group's strategy

Legal fees relating to the above acquisitions of £500,000 were expensed through the income statement dunng the year and were recognised as
adminustration expenses

None of the other acquisitions are considered to be indwidually matenal

The asset values at acquisthon are detaled below

o
11,000 2,000

3,447 1 3,448
7,485 8,651 28,136

2,954 2,701 5,655

{815} (1,522) {1,937

(2.226) {11,563) {13,789)

- (247 {247)

: - {173} {173)
vﬁ%ﬁﬂumn 13,245 1,028 38,273

In respect of all the acquisibons in the penod there were no fair value adjustments made to camying values of the respective assets and fiabihbes acquired

The difference between the centractual value of the trade and other recevables and the fair value is not matenat
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29 ACAUISITIONS continued

Cash flows ansing from the acquisstion are as follows

quied L
autiewlinithalcashifiowistatement i g

14,931 19,083 52814
4,528 2 17,849
4,528 2 17,849

Had the above acquisitions been included from the stast of the period, £2,416,809,000 of revenue, £173,560,000 of operating profit and £111,882,000 of profit after
tax woutd have been shown in the Group's financial statements

There were no contingent habihties acquired as a result of the above transactions
A detailed post-acquisition review of each entity has not highlighted any previously unidentsfied intangible assets

On 29 May 2013 Sports Direct Intenational ple announced two further acquisitions Sports Eybl & Sports Experts AG (EAG), based in Austna, was completed on 26
Juna 2013 Sportland intemational Group {SIG), based in the Baltic region, 15 due to complete in the near future

Due to the proximity of these acquismons to the year end, there s insufficient information available to complete a full disclosure under IFRS 3
- “Business Combinations”

30. CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

207,226 161,498

N 8s5n 2,055
(1.473) 5,800
(1,320} (558)

213,004 158,795
47,920 58,152
4,676 4,358
2,217 247
(625} 1,679

14 7
(2,708} {2,558}
22,183 20,643
286,681 243,548
(6,579} 11,767
(102,025} (80,179}
{18,982} 25,603

159,004 205,679




The B Ravw ] Financid & b Notas Add

31 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

As at 28 Apnl 2013 the Group had cutstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows

306,390 278,148
245,896 333,742
640,330 688,638

The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal nghts There are no clauses n relation to restnctions concerming dividends, additional debt and further
leasing within our portfolie Contingent rents are payable on certan stare leases based on store revenue For those leases that are turnover-related leasss, the annual
net lease commitment is calculated using the estimated lease habdity and any changes m the rental charge are accounted for when known Amounts of £5,641,000
(2012 £4,388,000} were charged to the income statement in relation to contingent rent

The Group sub-lets certain stand-alone retatl stores which are no longer operated by the Group The property rental income eamed dunng the 52 weeks ended 28 April
2013 was £4,249,000 (2012 £2,730,000)

As at 28 Apnl 2013, the Group had contracts wath sub-tenants for the followang future mirimum lease rentals

13,147 12,898
15,124 15,961
32,122 32,909

32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group had capital commitments of E5 8 million as at 28 Apnl 2013 (2012 £4 5 million}

33. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

There were no matenal contingent assets or babilities at the balance sheet date
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for the 52 weeks ended 28 Apnl 2013

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group has taken advantage of the exemptions contamed wathen IAS 24 - “Related Party Disclosures™ from the requirement to disclose transactions betwseen Group
companies as these have been ebminated on consohdation

The Group entered into the following matenal transactions with related parties

52 weeks ended 28 Apnil 2013

Acpdasad otfiad

o Pl

- . ¥ i o
N OBNE LW IFASSOC | ates] ) : iy \sSociate

53 weeks ended 29 Apnril 2012

Mika Ashley leased certain properties to vanous companies tn the Group which operated as retail and distnbution prermises A commercial rent 1s charged in respect

of these leases

cutive andﬁgpixg:ywuvq Director Compengation; Y L. -

g e PR T 1,497 1,589
s 2,069 1,990

3,566 3,579

Key Manai;&munt. Exe
W glshort
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35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

The pnncipal subsidiary undertakings of the Company at 28 Apnl 2013 were as follows

nd Ielsure goods retail
] ¥ porng Hlneisure gouds wholesale and brand icensing
1003 b o Splrtmg and leisure goods wholesale and brand licensing

g’Spurtmg and Ielsure goods retail

* Hald by an intermediate subsidiary

All subsidianies have coterminous year ends All principal subsidiary undertakings operate in their country of incorporation
A full list of the Group's operating subsidiary undertakings will be annexed to the next Annual Retum filed at Companies House

There are no significant restnctions on the ability of the subsidiary undertakings to transfer funds to the parent, other than those imposed by the legal requirements
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Sports Direct Intemational ple will provide a parental guarantee for the followang companies allowing exemption from statutory audit

SOL{New . Caveridish Street) Limited
SOiNewerk limited
SO {Newton ABbot) imted

2 L SDI(Northampton) Limited

1 8DI4 uggftoglj.l_rgaled

5550 {Paisley} Lt;pwntad o
SO (Pergarica):Limited .
Sripeireeiuinded
L s e ag T Wi —_ -

O(PSole) Limited;

wr Ry

StAuStel Liited .«

b e

SSEe S i

e e —_— -

NSOl STEr g mited;

i

IS TWaRE B inuted

DI {Walsal) Liiied

SO (Wéymoutf) Limited

430iCoatbrdge Limted

SDI.Property Liffited
L S0 Wishaw Lifited
54 Stirtrigs (Argyle’Street) Limuted

= T 3
Queensdown Associates

36. ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

Company Nomber
06306917
07853470
06636665
07852272
07852249
07852363
02933408
07852297
07852401
05656295
07652250
02731452
07852669
06328463
07852055
07852417
08512480
(7852284
07852281
08568681
07853877
07852207
07852251
07852191
08483711
07852289
06716652
06656368
02767493
06656365
$C088108
04298804

The Group 1s cantrolled by Mike Ashley through his 100% shareholding m MASH Holdings Limited, which has a 64% shareholding in the Company

37. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 29 May 2013 Sports Direct Intemational ple anngunced two acquisstions Sparts Eybl & Sponts Experts AG (EAG), based in Austna, was completed an 26 June

2013 Sportland International Group {SIG}, based in the Baltic region, 1s due to complete in the near future

On 29 Apnl 2013 Sportsdirect com Retail Limited acquired the remaining 20% shareholding in Crwise Clothing Linuted As such Cruise 1s now a wholly ewned

subsidiary

There werg no other material post balance sheet events after 28 Apnl 2013 to the date of this Annual Report
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We have audited the parent company financial statements of Sports Direct International ple for the 52 week penod ended 28 Apnl
2013 which comprise the parent company balance sheet and the related notes The financial reporing framework that has been
applied in their preparation 1s apphcable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards {Umited Kingdom Generally Accepted

Accounting Practice}

This report 1s made solely to the company’s membars, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those matters we are required to
state to them in an audrtor's report and for no other purpose To the fuillest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responstbility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the

opmions we have formed

Respective responsihilities of directors and audrtor

As explained more fully in the Oirectors Responstbilities Statement, the
Directors are responsible for the preparation of the group financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility 1s to
audit and express an opinton on the group financial statements tn accordance
with applicable law and Intemational Standards on Auding (UK and Ireland)
Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board s
{APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audn of the financial statements
A descnption of the scope of an audit of fmancial statements 15 provided on the
APB's website at www frc org uk/aphy/scope/private cfm

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the parent company financial statements

 give a true and fair view of the state of the company s affarrs as at 28 Apnl
2013,

* have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice, and

s have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006

Qpimon on other matters prescnbed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opimion

* the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been
property prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006, and

+ the mformation given n the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the paremt company
financial statements

Matters on which we ars required to report by exception
Wa have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the
Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company,
or retumns adequate for our audit have not been receswved from branches not
visited by us, or

-

the parent company financral statements and the part of the Cirectors
Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the accounting
records and returns, or

-

certain disclosures of Directors remuneration specified by law are not made,
or

we have not recerved alt the information and explanations we require for cur
sudit

Other matter
Wa have reportad separately on the group financial statements of Sports Direct
International ple for the 52 week period ended 28 Apnl 2013

Paul Etherington BSc FCA CF

Serior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP
Statutory Auditer, Chartered Accountants
London

18 July 2013
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

as at 28 Apn! 2013

[GXest

Current assets

3 1,953 1,676

) 139 63
T 2,062 1,739

T4 T (834 {38,581)
. (87,049) 36,842)

978,977

1,003,840

64,060 64,060

5
6 874,300 874,300
.8 (56,234) {55,839)
D 50 50
.8 8,005 8,005
- 6 (64,375) {57,684)
s 153,171 170,548
B 7 978,977 1,003,440

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board on 18 July 2013 and were signed on s behalf by

Dave Forsoy
Drerector
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NOTES T0 THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the 52 weeks ended 28 Apnl 2013

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting policies

These accounts have been prepared 1n accordance with applicable United
Kingdom accounting standards A summary of the matenal accounting policies
adopted are described below

Basis of accounting
The acgounts have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, a profit and loss
account of the Company is not presented The Company's {oss after taxation for
the 52 week period 28 Apnil 2013 was £3,249,000 (2012 £2,015,000 loss)

Investments
Fixed asset investments are stated at cost less any provision for impairment

Cost represents cash consideration or the amount of ordtnary shares issued by
the Company at norinal value after taking account of merger relief available
under 5612 of the Companies Act 2006 plus related acquisition costs capitalised
at {arr value

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax 15 provided for on a full provision basis on all timmg differences,
which have ansen but not reversed at the balance sheet date No tming
differences are recognised in respect of gains on sale of assets where those
gains have been rolled over into replacement assets A deferred tax asset is not
recogmised to the extent that the transter of economic benefit in future 15 more
unlikely than not

Deterred tax 1s calculated on a non-discounted basis at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the penods in which tming differences reverse, based on
tax rates and laws enacted or substantvely enacted at the balance sheet date

Foreign currencias

Items ansing from transactions denominated m foreign currencies are transtated
at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the trensaction At the balance sheet
date all monetary assets and iablities denomnated in foreign currencies are
transiated at the closing rate or at the rate of exchange at which the transaction
15 contracted to be settled in the future All exchange diferences are recognised
m the profit and loss account

Dividends

Drvidends on the Company's ordinary shares are recogrused as e liabsity in the
Company’s financial statements, and as a deduction from equity, in the penod in
which the dwidends are declared Where such dividends are proposed subject
to the approval of the Company's shareholders, the dividends are only declared
once sharehotder approval has been obtained

Eguity instrumonts

An equity instrument is any centract that evidences a residual intersst in the
assets of the Company after deducung all of s habiiies Egquity instruments
1ssued by the Company, with the exception of those accounted for via merger
relief available under s612 of the Compamies Act 2008, are recorded at the
proceads received, net of any direct Issue costs

Income from Group undertakings
Incorne from Group undertakings 1s recogrised when qualifying consideration s
receved from the Group undertaking

Related party transactions
The Company has taken advantage of the exemption contained in FRS 8 and has
therefore not disclosed transactiens or batances wath wholly owned subsidianes
which form part of the Group

Shars-based payments

The Company has applied the requirements of FRS 20, “Share-based Payments”
The Company 1ssues equity-settled share-based payments to certain directors
and employees of the Company and its subsidianes These are measured at fair
value at the date of grant which 1s expensed to the profit and loss on a straight-
hine basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of shares that
will eventually vest

The expected Ife used mn the model has been adjusted, based on management’s
best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions, and
behavioural considerations A share-based payment charge of £22,183,000 was
recogrused for the 52 weeks ended 28 Apnl 2013 based on the directors’ best
estimate of the number of shares that will vest £21,345,000 of this share-based
payment was recharged to subsidiary undertakings of the Company

2. INVESTMENTS

1,040,282

25510
234
) 1,066,026

Nong of the Company's investments are hsted

The Company 15 the principal holding company of the Group The pnincipal
subsidiary undertakings of the Company are set oul in note 35 to the Group
financial statements

Dunng the Year and existing intercompany loan n a subsidiary entity,
Sportsdirect com Retail (Europe) SA, was converted to an investment in equity

3 DEBTORS

4

.. - 61
540 595
1,953 1,676

. dertaki " 81714~ 38,183
JAcCIUAls] f 190 242
o tax ESIA ] SCGI B SECTAT 39 .

K 89,141 38,581
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for the 52 weeks ended 28 April 2013

5. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

le AT ity e e MDeeRlyy > TR R ! . 99,930
1 Prefetencelsharestothl Opleach I § 50 50
R 100,000

Galled ap and fully paid B o
09T PP DA iy e A

A LI
4 ALl e 9
=

2 ] ] 64,060

64,060 64,060

{57.684) 170,548

_ . {3,249)
T . 528
. 14,656 {14,656)
T {21,347) .

8,005 {64,375) 153,171

The Company holds 42,137,508 ordinary shares in Treasury

The credrt for the share-based payment charge does not equal the charge per the profit and lcss account as it excludes amounts recognised in the balance shest in
retation to the expected national insurance contnbutions for the shares

7 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT ON SHAREHOLDERS” FUNDS

T PG (s U Tl ) ' 1,003,440
e {3,249)

(21,214)
978971

8. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

No matenal post balance sheet events occurred after 28 Apnl 2013 to the date of this Annual Report
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CONSOLIDATED FIVE YEAR RECORD

unaudited mncome statement

[1£5000}
conunuing operations )

z%‘s'?’s'}? 1,835, 156 1599237 1,451,621 1,367,321
(1,750,822}, 2 (1,091,480} {940,330} {862,480) (809,685)

75855 « © 744,276 658,907 589,131 557.636

578) . [B9A368) (527213} {524611) (463,297)

G o s 5,289 3,493 4,004

o 3 z?‘a %}ﬁm%@s fy . - {7,800} S -
ﬁﬂgjfi *g;:&tﬁwgsoa e, 3a28) {2,186} -
DS S w - . (14.832)
St - - - (15,682)
T e - -

___ (8386) (30514

'_ 1T 58,027 67.829

5 . (s481) 24,653 (51,949

2560 40,150 15,927

T (0953 (10,528) (23,633)

{8} 7,200 2,482

118,788 119,502 10,656

(35,566} (30,286) (25,164)

5531,“3“ . 83220 89216

1198 84,173 89,433 {15,838)
{567) {950} (217) 330
857 1%, = 106,631 83,223 89,218 {15,508}

Nates to the consolidated income statement five year record

1 Allinformation 15 presented under IFRS

2 The five year record has been prepared on the same basis as the financial statements for the 52 weeks ended 28 Apnl 2013, as set gutin note 1, basis of
preparation, of the consohdated financial statements
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Registrar and transfer office
Computershare Investor Services Plc
The Pavihons

Bndgwater Road

Bnstol

8513 BAE

Company Secretary and registered office

Sports Direct International plc

Unit A, Brook Park East

Shirebrook

NG20 8RY

Tetephone 0845 129 9200

Sports Direct Intemational plc 15 registered in England and Wales (No 6035106)

Solicitors

Freshfields Bruckhaus Deminger
65 Fleet Street

London

ECAY 1HS

Brokers

Espinto Santo Investment Bank
10 Paternoster Squara

London

EC4M 7AL

Cnel Securtties Limited
150 Cheapside

London

EC2V GET

Prmncipal Bankers
Barclays Bank plc

5 The North Colonnade
Canary Wharf

London

E14 4BB

HSBC Bank pic

8 Canada Square
Lendon

E14 SHQ

Auditors

Grant Thomton UK LLP
Grant Thornton House
Melton Street

Euston Square

London

NW1 2EP

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at 3 00pm on
Wednesday 11 September 2013 at Sports Direct Intemational plc, The
Auditonum, Unit O, Brook Park East, Shirebrgok, NG20 8RY Each shareholder
1 entrtled to attend and vote at the meeting, the arrangements for wiuch are
descnbed in a separate notice

Resuits

For the year to 27 Apni 2014

Intenm management statement 11 September 2013
Half year results announced 12 December 2013

Intenm management statement 20 February 2014
Preliminary announcement of full year results July 2014
Annual report circulated July / August 2014

Shareholdar helpling

The Sports Direct shareholder register 15 mamtained by Computershare who are
responsible for making dividend payments and updating the register, ncluding
detarls of changes to sharehoiders addresses !f you have a query sbout your
shareholding in Sports Direct, you should contact Computershare's Sports
Direct Shareholder helpline on 0870 707 4030 Calls are charged at standard
geographic rates, although network charges may vary

Address The Pavihions, Bridgwater Road, Bnstol, BS99 6ZZ
Website www computershara com

Website

The Sports Diract websita at www sportsdirectplc com provides news
and details of the Company s activittes plus information for shareholders
and contains real time share price data as well as the latest results and
announcements

Unsolieted mail

The Company 1s obhiged by law to make its share register publicly available and
as a consequence some shareholders may receive unsolicited mail, including
from unauthonised mvestment fims

For more information on unauthonsed investment firms targeting UK investors,
visit the website of the Financial Services Authonty at www fsa gov uk

If you wish to imst the amount of unschcited mail you receive contact

The Mailing Preference Service
DMA House

70 Margaret Street

London

WIW 8ss

Telephone 020 7291 3310

Fax 0207323 4226

Email mps@dma org uk or register on-line at
www mpsoniing org uk
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